FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED

Dated: May 26, 2025

To,

The Registrar

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
NEPRA Tower, Attaturk Avenue (East)

Sector G-5/1, Islamabad

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF DISTRIBTUION LICENSE FOR FFBL POWER
COMPANY LIMITED

|, Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd), Company Secretary, FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)is the
duly authorized representative of FFBL Power Company Limited by virtue of BOARD
RESOLUTION dated 01/2025, hereby apply to the National Electric Power Regulatory
Authority for the grant of Distribution License to the FPCL pursuant to section 20 of the
Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997.

| hereby certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are
prepared and submitted in conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority Licensing {Application, Modification, Extension and Cancetlation) |
Procedure Regulations, 2021 and undertake to abide by the terms and provisions of the
above-said regulations. | further undertake and confirm that the information provided in
the attached documents-in-support is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and
no material omission has been made.

A Bank Draft in the sum of Rs. 2,575,798 /- {(Rupees Two Million Five Hundred and
Seventy-Five Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety-Right), being the license application
fee calculated in accordance with Schedule Il to the National Electric Power Regulatory
Authority Licensing {Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure
Regulations, 2021, is also attached herewith.

‘\v
Authorized Representative Q_*" “d
FFBL Power Company Limite

FFBL Tower, C1 - C2, Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase 11, Islamabad, Pakistan
Tel No:- +92 51 876 3325, Fax No:- +92 51 876 3305, www.fpcl.com
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3.No.  Attachment No R e Baumant _Remarks
R PFOSDeCtUS Attached
2 hii Certificate of Incorporation, Memorandum and Article of Association Attached ;
3 111 Annual Returns of Company (as per Section 130 of Cornpames Act) Attached L
a4 v . Share-holding Pattern B ' Attached -
5 \J " Evidence of adequate financial and technical resources -
6 V(a) "Evidence of cash balances held in reserve by applicant, along with bank certificates , Attached
7 vV (b) | Details of charges or encumbrances attached to the applicant’s assets, if any i Attached
8 V(<] © Latest audited financial statements of the applicant Attached
g V (d} . Expressions of interest to provide credit or financing along with sources and details ’ Attached
10 Vel | Documents describing the net worth and the equity and debt ratios of the applicant VIS Report Attached
11 V() i Reasonably detailed profile of the applicant and the applicant’s staff ] Attached
12 V(g) 1 Employment records of engineering and technical staff of the appllcant : Attached
13 Vv {h) 5 Profite of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions of interest Not Applicable
14 V(i) Verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicant and sub-contractors Attached
15 Vi | Technical and financial proposals for O&M, planning & development Attached
16 Vi ! Board resolution Attached
17 VIIl : Affidavit for Correctness of documents Attached
18 IX i Bank Guarantee equivalent to applicable annual license fee for two years. Not Applicable
19 X i Envireonmental and Social Soundness Assessment (ESSA) Study Attached
i 20 XI . System Studies Attached
P21 XII i Patrolling and Inspection Procedures i Attached
22 X1 | Maintenance Plans and Procedures Attached
23 XV ¢ Fault Location/Troubleshooting Procedures Attached
P24 XV | Training and Development Procedure Manuals Attached
25 XVi : lnformatlon in support of distribution expans:on Attached
S e - - Additional Documents as per AMEC Regulations | -~ .o el L e
26 XVil ; Dlstnbutlon system configuration Attached
27 XViil [ Service territory, right of way, and feeder maps !
28 XIX ; Voltage levels and regulation 3 Attached
29 XX " Type of distribution system Attached
a0 XX1 Line equipment characteristics Attached
31 XX11 . Power quality controt Attached
32 XXI1I i Back-up/express feeder provision Attached
33 XX Accident protection and prevention procedures Attached
34 XXV Emergency provisions ! Attached
35 XXV Protection, control, and measuring instruments ! Attached
36 XXVII Type of metering system to be used Attached
37 XXVIII Metering installation and testing facilities ! Attached
Communication systems Attached

-+ The Eligibility Criteria {Distribution Licenses) Rules, 2023 ~

SECP Certlflcate of Incorporation

“Attached

of the grid code and distribution code.

company, provincial grid company and other distribution licenses as per the provisions

Service Territory Pls refer to Att. XVl
41 XX Minimum Solvency Requirements Fulfitment Attached
42 XXX Minimum technical and human resource Fulfilment Attached
shall have the ability 1o ensure prompt and effective coordination with the system
operator, market operator and other relevant entities to comply with the provisions of .
43 XAV tl-?e grid code, com?‘nerciai code, distribution code and other relevant legal instruments Not Applicable
! as applicable
a4 XV shall have the ability to ensure its quality of dlstrlbutlon service by Not Applicable
shall have a robust IT strategy outlining the planning and execution roadmap for
45 XV ensuringtransparency, effectiveness, efficiency, and security in all operations of the Not Applicable
distribution of electric power comprising
In addition to the requirements in sub-rule (1), the applicant shall have the ability to
46 VI prepare a distribution plan in coordination with system operator, national grid Not Applicabte

f
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PROSPECTUS



FPCL
FFBL Power Company Limited

PROSPECTUS

Introduction of the Company

FFBL Power Company Limited (“FPCL” or the “Company”) is an unlisted public limited
company incorporated in June 2014 as a Special Purpose Vehicle {(SPV) for establishing
a Coal Power Piant (CPP) at Port Qasim, Karachi. The Company started its Commercial
Operation in May 2017.

FPCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Company and Fauji Group (FF).
FPCL is a customized power plant providing “Power to existing Fertilizer Plant
(Ammonia, Urea & DAP production units) of FFBL @ 60 Hz along with Power Export to
Nationai Grid @ 50 Hz".

Salient Features of the Facility

>

The coal power plant (CPP) of FPCL is located at Port Qasim, Karachi, in the province
of Sindh, covering approximately 50 acres of land. The facility has the capacity to
generate 500 Tons Per Hour (TPH) of steam through two (02) equal-capacity
Circulating Fluidized Bed (CFB) high-pressure coal-fired boilers. The installed capacity
of the existing plant is 118 MW.

As part of the modification, the new project will incorporate modification to the
existing 'system. The modification involves the addition of FonGreen Silicon
Technologies Limited (FoST) “as BPC” to the current system, which has a total capacity
of 118 MW. Within this, >01 MW will be supplied via a dedicated Feeder from the FPCL
battery limit to the FoST battery limit.

The salient features of the facility are outlined below:



FPCL
FFBL Power Company Limited

s T R L R ExxstlngP!ant Features ~-

Plot No. EZ/1/P-1 Eastern Industrial Zone,

Plant Location ) .
Port Qasim, Karachi 75020

Type of Facility Coal Fired Thermal Power Plant
Fuel Coal
Buyers FFC, K-Electric and FoST (FoST as a New BPC)

Total Gross Installed Capacity 118 MW

2x24 MW & 1 x10 MW (60 Hz)
1x 60 MW (50 Hz)

Life of facility 30 years

Plant Configuration

Proposed Investment

The proposed power supply to the new Bulk Power Consumers (BPCs), namely
FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited {FoST) involves the following capital structures:

1. Power Supply Infrastructure for FoST
Total Capital Expenditure (CAPEX): USD 3.1 million.

Financing Structure: The entire investment will be equity-financed by the Fauji Group,
with no external debt component.

This arrangement ensures timely deployment of infrastructure within FPCL's existing
facility footprint, with full ownership and funding borne by the project sponsor.

This financial structure reflects the commercial viability and bankability of the project
components, without requiring any increase in FPCL’s licensed generation capacity.



FPCL
FFBL Power Company Limited

Social and Environmental Impact of the Proposed Facility - -

FPCL has carried out a detailed Environmental Impact Assessment Study ("EIA Study")
through M/s Hagler Baily in accordance with the standards and requirements of the
World Bank / Internationa! Finance Corporation and National Environmental Quality
Standards. EIA Study was submitted to the Sindh Environmental Protection Agency
("SEPA") and was submitted for approval.

Public and Technical hearing was conducted by SEPA and NOC No.
EPA/2014/03/04/EIA/05 from SEPA was granted to the project.

FPCL remains committed to environmental compliance in its operation and will
develop processes and programs to proactively prevent and mitigate any possible
adverse impacts on the environment.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

1st Floor SLIC Building No.7, Blue Area,
Islamabad

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

[Under Section 32 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984}
Corporate Universal Identification No. 0088996

[ hereby certify that FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED is this
day incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984) and

that the company is limited by shares.

Given under my hand at Islamabad this 27th day of June, Two

Thousand and Fourteen.

Fee Rs. 16,272,000/~

Additional Registrar'df Companies
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COMPANIES ORDINANCE 1984
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
OF
FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL)
{COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
The name of the Company is "FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED",

The Registered Office of the Company shall be situated in the Islamabad
Capltai Territory.

The objects for which the Campany is established are o undartake any or all of

the following activities and businesses subject to the approval from concemed

authorities:

1, To carry on all or any of the business of power generation, transmitt'ing.

purchasing, importing, transforming, converting, distribuling, supplying,
axporting, utitizing and dealing in electricity and all other forms of energy
and producls or services associsted therewith or resulting therefrom. and
of promoting the conservation and . efficient use. supply or sale of
electricity and aii other forms of energy and commodities produced
thereby, and to exercise all other poweré necessary or incldental to the
business of elsctricily generation, transmission, distribution, sale and
supply; including in the term “electricity’ all power that may be directly or
indirectly derived therefrom or may be mmdentally her&aﬂsr discovered in
A dealing with electricily.

2. To ascertain the tariff for supply of power that will secure recovery of

operating cosls, intefest charges and depreciation of assets redemption at
due time of loans other than those covered by dapreciation, expansion,
projects, payment of laxes, and a reasonable return on Iinvestment, o
obtain any approval thersof as may be required by law or license for the
time being in force, to quote the tariff to purchasers of electrical power.

3. To locate, establish, construct, equip, operate, use, manage, maintain and

own electric power generation facilities including all apparatus and things
required for or capable of being used in conneclion with generation,
distribution, supply, accumulation-and employment of electricity, ‘inter alia



10.

11

cantraclors, constructors, operalors, users, inspectors, recenditioners,
services, improvers, altars, protectors, removers, hirers, replacers,
importers and expariers of, and dealers in electrical appliances, systems,
products and services used for energy conservation, domestic,
commercial, agricultural, industrial, household and general equipment,
furniture, fixtures, fitings, devices, machinery, materials and instaflations,
including but not limiled to cables, wires, meters, pylons, tracks, rails,
pipelines and any other plant, apparaius equipment, systems and things
incidental 1o the efficient generation, procurgment. transfommation, supply
and distribution of electricity.

To purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire, import, apply for or
otherwise acquire angd hold for any interest, any rights, privileges, lands,
buildings, easements, trademarks, patents, patent rights, copyrights,
licences, equipment, machinery, plants, stock-in-trade and movable and
immovable property of any kind necessary or conveniant purpgses of or in
cannection with the Company's business or any branch or department
thereof and to use, exercise, develop, grant licences in raspect of or
otherwise turn to account any property, nights and information so acquired,
subject to any permission required under the law,

To acquire by concession, grant, purchase, harer, licence either
absolutely or conditionally and either solely or jointly with others any lands,
buildings, machinery, plants, equipment, privileges, rights, lcences,
trademnarks, patents, and other movabie and immovable property of any
description which the Company may deem necessary or which may seem
to the Company capable of baeing furned tﬁ account subject o any
permission as required under the law.

To enler into arrangements, contracts or lransactions, with the government

“or authority {supreme, municipal, local or otherwise) or any ‘corporation,

company, persons or entity (public or private} that may seem canducive
for the purpose of the Company's objects or any of them and o obtain
from any such government, authority, comporation, company or person any
charters, contracts, rights, privileges and commission which the Company
may think desirable and to camry on exarcize and comply with any such
charters, contracls, decrees, nghts, privileges and concessions.

To open accounts with any Bank or Banks and lo draw, make, ‘acoept,
endorse, execute, issue, negofiale and discount cheques, promissory
notes, bills of exchange, bills of lading. warrants, deposit notes,
debentures, letter of credit and other negotiable instruments and




V.

otherwise deemed required by the Company.

21. To apply for and obtain necessary consents, permissions and licences
from any Government, State, provincial, federal, local and other
Authorities for enabling the Company to carmy on any of its objects inlo
effect as and when required by law.

22. n g further declared that in case, the registration with the Secunliss and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, or other formaliies are required, the
Company will fulfill alt requirements accordingiy.

23. Notwithstanding anything stated in any object clause the company shall
abtain such cther approval or license from competent authority as may be
required under any law for the time being in force to undertake a particular
business.

24. W is declared that notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing
object clauses of this Mérmrandum of Associalion nothing contained
therein shall be construed as empowering the Company 1o undertake or to
indulge In business of security services payment systems.. E!ectromc
funds transfers in and outside Pakistan, deposit taking from gensral
public, nelwork marksting, referral markeling & direct selling barking
company, leasing investment, managing agency, insurance business, any
of the NBFC business, multi-level marketing: (MLM), Pyramid and Ponzi
Scheme, commadity, future contract or shares trading business locally or
internationally, directty or indirectly as restricted under the law or any
unlawful operation.

The liability of the members is limiled,

The authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 9,000,000,000. (Rupees Nine

‘Billion) divided into 900,000,000 (Nine hundred mitlion) cerdmary shares of

Ra 10 (Rupees ten only} each with powers to the company from time 3] time to
increase and reduce ifs capital subject to any pemmission reqmreq under the
law.

g



THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
ARTICLES OF ASSCCIATICN
OFf

FFAL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL}

The reguiations cantaned m Table '4° in the First Schedule to the Companies

Drdingnce 1584 smail rot apply 1o the Comoany exqept in 50 far 33 the zame
are expiessly ade applcable by ine sa.d Crdinance, or these Asticles The
reguiation for management of tne Comgany, ard 1or the observance thereal by
the members of Fe Compary, and ther representatives shall subjec! as
aforesaid and 1o any exerdise of he slalutory power af the Coampany n
reference 10 1he regest ar alleration of or additign to its regulatons by Specal
Resolutian as prescrbed by the san Ordinance, be such as are coriainad it
ness Anitiey

""?fiiurg__n PRETATION

In the Interpretation of these Anicles the following axpresscns shall have ihe
following meanings unleas repugndnt 10 of nconsistant wih the subject
AHCes.

2.1 “Anicles’ means these Aticles of Association 8s originally framed or.

aflered {rgre: trme to lime by Spegisd Resgimmns.

2.2 "Board” means a Baadd of bhe Daraclgm ‘alacted by the shareholdars, m'f

act on their behall in the management of the Company alairs;

2.3  “Chairman" means the Chaman of the Boasd appointed from time 12
ftme pursuant to Anicke 0. :

24 “Company” means FFBL Power Company Limited;

25 "Debenture” shall nciuty Pastcipation Tarm Ceanificales ard
Term Firance Cenificates;

28  "Ditestars” means the Oireclors ¢f the Company apposnied or efected
from time to tme pursuant 1o thess Artickes and shall unnludu aliernate

Chrectors;

27 "Dividend" means the gistrisution of profits of the Company to ite

Mambers ang includes Bonus sharas:

28 “Membesr" means a member of tha Company within the meaning of
Sechion 2{2Y) gt the Cedinance,

29 ‘“Memorandum' maans the Mzmerandumn of Associaiion of the Company
as originafy ramed of as shered from tme 10 time In acoordance with
tha prowisions of the Ordinance,

]
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(ACTEESE Ar rEq T2 Ihe eaces and ta fiackg e chares rls ceveral classes in
AcCOfANe wWith 1ne provisiens of tne Jrgnarces

The ghares shall te urdér the control of Ine Beard of Drectors wha may allot or
otharwise dspose of the same or gny of them to such Parsons, or such ‘erms
and cnndhfinns ardg al suen kmes a3 the Sdard of Udectors thenk 98 and at &
Sfgmiuim or 3t par ar, subject ta the provisians ol tre Crdinance, af @ 4scoun?
and for sucr consider 3tion 33 tha Board unks Nt Shares may alss be allotied
i gansidaraton other lhan cash it accordance with 'he provisicns of 1M
Rules. The mwumum subsenphan upar which the Diregtars may proceed to
rnake the firs{ allotment of shares snall be Rz + 090 000/« Rupees One Milion)
100 00 sharey of Bs 1) pach)

FLlly pa.c snares shatl be alleiied 1o all subscrpers 0 the first nstarce ard he
Companmy sha! ¢l be bound o recogrize ary eguiable comtirgent, fulure &r
parual ctaim 12 or interes! i @ sharg on the part of any person giher shan tha
regisiarad sharantider, save as herein proveded or save as ordeted by 4 Count
of competer! junsscton

The certficste of e to shares shalf be isgued ynder the Seal of the Campany

Every Member shall b enlitiad 10 ore cortificate for the shares registared in his
name, or &l the discrelion of ine Dwreciors o sevardl cortificates, each e one
or maore of such sihares.

Subrect 1o Seclion 88 of the Crdinarice . whers 31 ary tma the Board decides 1o
:ncrease the issued capial of the Company by sswing any lunther shareg, han
Subject 10 any direction o the contrary that may be given by the Company o
gendral meelng, such shares shall be offered 1o the Mambers in proporiion (o
{he axising shares hald by aach Member. and such offer shall be made by
nohce spectying the numbes of shares 10 which the Membaer ts antitied. and
limeting @ time within whech the offar, it not accepted, will be desmed Lo be
declinad and after the expurabon of guch hme or on.recspl of information from
the Member to wham such nglice i3 given that he dazines to acceps the sharas

.offerad. the Board may, subect to sub-section (77 of Section €6 of tha
Oedinance, dispose of the same in such mannet as it may consider mow!

beneficial to the Company.

‘Sub-act 1o tha provisions of the Ordirance, the Rulss and the Anicies the

Board may allol and issue shares in the capial of the Company as payrmnt &
gart paymant far any praperty sold or tranaferred, goods or machinery supplied,
or for services rendered 1o the Company In the conducl of B business o
aftairs.

if & shara certficale 1 wom oul, defaced, (o5, renderad usaless of destroyed, it
may ba renewad on payment ol such lee, f any, not sxcaeding one fundrad
rupeas {ar any Other bmit presenbed by taw), and on such tarms, if any, a% Lo
avidance and mdamnity and payment of expenses ncrrad by the Company in
invesfigating title as the Diractaors think 1.

Exgept to the extest and in the mannet aliowed by section 95, no pan of the
furtds of (he Company shall be ampioyed in the purchase of, ot in foans upon
ine secunty of this Company's ahnres
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Ir mE Dhieegicrs 't::iuw I{i 18¢3i 5" e*' a wansler af shares, they shall wan:n Uiy

. B . S my "- 'H
:-rui """l"" e thee Zale 27w h JART= S Y ..,I'L. IO P I_...a'..”.f.i : e

Comgany ~ctify tre gefect or nualdsty tu the yanslerse, who shall Bfer

B atih removal of such ewfect o invalidily be entilled 1o re-lodge 1r e fransfer geeg w1h
: -1-}' e lhe Campany.

The legat beirs, execulors of admnistratars of 3 deceased sharehoider shall pe
e gnby peodgn 10 be recpgnized by tre Diraciors 3s naving Wtle 10 the shares,
I case of shared registered in the name ¢f wo or move tgiders. the survivers
and the executnrs of the deceased shall be (he cnly porsons © 02 recogrnzead
by e Company s having any Lbe to lhe shares. Mothing herein conlaired
shall «atease the aslafe 0f 3 deceased sharsholdet ‘'whather soke Qr foint), fror
arty Lkabity cwhether sole o o Nty i respecy of any skare solaly ar jointy hele
iy hum

N shares sheit Go T:ta:us!ﬁrrwd o an insolvent or as olhorwise probtibaed by
faw.

TERATIO CAPITA

The Company may. [rom im0 ime, by Specal Resglubon increass the share
captal by suck sum. 1o be dvided inlo shares of such amount, 38 e Spatial
Resgiution shall prescrbe. -

All further issue af shares capital B“iaii firs! be subject to the p:rwmns i:f
Sachon B6 as are appiicabie 10 the Company

Excepl a3 gtherwise provides by the l;@nd&ﬁv:___ms of msyanca, the new shares
ghgll be mubject 1o the same prowvisions with referance 1o transter, fransmission
and othorwise as fhe shiares in the onginal shars captal.

The Carmpgany may, by Speciat Resalution

{a} cansnijmanﬁ angd divide iis share captal «ilo shasae of larger amound than
8 #Ehng shares,

{b} sub-divide 15 exstng shares of any of them inls shares of smalber ameust
than is fixed by the Company's Memaorandum, subsect, neusrihelass 1o Ing
provigiong of Sechon 82; of

{c; canced any shazes which, al lhe gate of e paasing of the resolution, have
not Deen takers or agreed (0 be taken by ary Person.
Tne Company may by Special Reselution, raduse i1s share Capltal in ary

manner and with, and subiss! 10 any inccent auithorized and consent tequired
by law.
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MQTICE ANC PROCEEDINGS OF GEMERA| WMEETING

Twermy 2% (2%} days rolce 3t the least (evclusive ot the day 2 which the
qehet 5 sarved or deemed 1o be servea. but nckusive of tha day for whioh
col:ce 3 gaven: spedityng the place e day and ihe haur of meebrng and. in
case of wpenial muempgs e manseal natipew of rat bosinees Shall by gooen o
e manner provded by the Ordinance for the general meeling, 1 sucr
Parscng as are under tme Ordirance or fhe regulations of the Comgpany,
enilied 1o recove such nolce fram the Cormpany, bul the accidenial orwssion
‘C gies nobce Yo, or the non-receipl o rotice by any NMember shalf not
myvalidale Ihe proceed ngs at asy gankral msaning

Al busiress sall be desme¢ specal naY s transacted at an extraocdinary
gendral maalng, ard algo alt 1mol 1§ ransacied 31 an anrual generel meshng
wih tha eacanuan of declanrg Dnndend. e consderation of e accoumss,
npatance sheel and t~g reports of the Direciors and audilors, the ekection of tha
Dractocs, the dpooriment of, and the fxing of tha rarnurer aton of 17 audilors,

QUORLIM

tg hisiness zhall De iracsacied ot any generdl meshng wriess a quorum of
Members i3 gresent at that lirme when the measling proceeds 10 busingss, 3ave
as herein othetwse provided. Members hawving twenty five percent of the voling
powes present i Person dr frough pfoxcy and threg Members personsfly
present wil! be ouorem of the Comgpany’'s meetng. .
i withm hatf an nour from the tme appa nteg for the meating @ quanJs is ﬂﬁt
prasent, tne meshng o catled upan the requisiton of Members., shall oe
gissoived In 3ny other case. it shall siang adjioumed to the same day in the
rax! ek a1 the samé time and placs, ard, il 8i the adjourned meating quarum
% rol presani wirin half ah hour om the lime. 3ppointed for the meestiag, the
Members present berng rofl less than three. shalf bnfa Quonum.

Tre Chayman may, wdh the consenl gl any maﬂmg ‘3 which 1he qLorum i3
aresent 3nd shall § 5o dimcted by 1ne meeling, adjiourn the meeting from time
@ e but no busness shall be ransacied al any adioumad mestag olhar
thar: the busingss lef unfinished al the meebng from which the adicumment
togk piace. When the maeting s adjourned for ten (10; days or more. neice of
the adjourned mealing shall be grven 33 in Iha case of an original meeting,
Save @8 aforesaid, ¢ shal not be necsssary to give any nobice. of an
sfjournmeny ¢f the business o be transacied at an adjourmed meetng.

Af sny gerarsl meeting. a resciution put tg the vobte of the mesting shall be
degided on a show of hands unkess a poll is befers or on the declaration of the
show of hangy. demarded, Urless # pol is so demanded, a declsrai:on by fhe
Chairraan that o resolution has, on 2 show of hands, being carried, or carried
wnarimausly, or by particuler magarnity, or lost an antry to tvat afeci in tha book
¢f the groceedi=gs of tne Company sha!l be conclusive evidence of the fagl
withaul proof of ine number o propotion of the votes recorded h f3vaur of, or
against that resobition

A poll may be demanded only i accordancs with 1he rovisidns of sachan 167
of ine Oed:narnce
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TERMS OF OFFICE, REMOVAL AND CASUAL VACANCLES
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_'l‘ Pz ::E'_ .:' i ”FD -:'ﬁ‘;h“.r! _.:?Mlg_: le-tuL u-.fpl----l
af ... as'my fproxy to yote for me and an may beharf at the
Lt L], nﬂraardzr‘a*y &5 the Co5E2 Mady be) gereral meetng of the Comoany, 10 be
giilbed cnthe . dav ol . ard at ary adipurnment theveo!
IRECTQORS

The ledowing persons shall pe the first Directors of the Company, wha are also
the subscnbers 1o e Memorandum, and sha hoid the othice upie the dale of
the first annwal general meelng.

¢ Mr. Maharmad Mustafa Kran

M WMobascmad <arcon Asiam

«  Afr Maeer <hald Lodh

= Mr Qaser Jaee

« Mr Madeem Inayat

» Syed Jamal Shatg

s Mr Guifam Alam

»  Syed Aamir Ansan

Mz [Tukhar Ahmed

The number of Disecioss. shall not be less 1ha%;_ three (3.

The Board snall fix the number of elected Directors of tha Sompany nof later
than thirty five (36} days defgre the carvening of tha genszal mesting at which
Direciors are to be zlected, and the number 50 fiked shall nol be changed
excapt with the prior apgroval of the Compary in general meeating.

NG person, whather a raliring Qireciar ¢r otherwise, shall be eligible for election
as @ Director unless nolice of his candidsture for edeclion has been ledged in
wriing a1 tha Office not less Lhan fouwrieen (14) days before the date of the
meetng a1 whick an elaction of Diectors i¥ to take place.

The Direcisrs shall comply with the provis:ons of sections 174 19 172 and
sec1ions 180 and 184 of the Drdinancs (alating 1a the alection of Dlragﬁnrs and
matiers ancillary thereta,

The Compary may remove 2 Director bui only in accesdance with the
peovisions of the Ocdinance,

Save as provided i Secton 187 of the Ordinance, no Fotson . shall 2e
appamied a8 o Director unless he is a Member of the Company..

& Diracior elected shall hold office fgr a persod of not more than shrae (3] yeass,
unleéss he rezigns, becomes disgqualifed from being a Director o otherwise
ceases o hold office eartier.

i e b
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(o purchase cr oiherwiss agouire for Ine Companu Ay propeny . righis or
Frlyodgde wioch the Compdny 5 oother sed ' goqure 3t 5o th proe qnd
geneeadly on such terms and congitiens as they ihink i and. sunject tq
lhe provisiary of Section 198(%ia) cf (he Ordinance, tn sell lel,
g¥change or otherw:sa gispose of, absciutely or cenditionally. any part of
the propery, prvileges ana under-takang of the Company upor auch
tgrms 30¢ condluns, and for such copsideraton as they may thak it

al theé: discration 1o pay for any propedty nghis and povileges acquired
by ar services ndenad {0 the Company =ither wholly or partially m cash
or I shares (sutyec! lo Section BE of ine Ordinance), bonds, debentures
ar olhar secunties of the Company, arnd any such bondsg, deberdures or
Qther securhes may b edher speciiicatly charged upen afi of any dar of
s propedly of the Company o7 net 52 charged

o secure Lhe fufilment of any coniracts, sgresments or engagements
enterec 0 by Lhe Company by mortgage or charge of all or any af the
properly of tte Company for the time being ac in such other manner as
thay think i1

to apgoinl, arg 3 ther dmscreton, remove &r suspend such agords.
secretaries, officers, legal advisors. clerks and servants for permanent,
temporary 3r speaa: servicés as lhey may friom ume 1o time thinx it and
to determine (heit powers and dules and fix their Saladies of
smélumenis and to fequire secwily in such nstances and 1 such
amount as ey think At gnd (o send any such persons lo foreign
countries for technical education gr othermse for lhe purposa of the
Company's husiness and pay aif expenses thereof on such terms 3s the
Derectors may think AL,

to appoirt any person or persons fwhaifer incarporated or not] ta accepl
and hold in wust for the Cempary any properdy belgnging 1o the
Campany or in wnich It Is iMerested ar-for any other purpeses ard o
execute and do all such trusts and also all such daeds, documen!s snd
things as may be requisde in relation to any such trust ang to prov da fo?
the remuneraticn of such trustee o7 trustees

to insttute, conouct, defend, compound of -abandan any legal
proceedings by of agmns! the Company of its officers or otherwise
concarning the affairs of the Company and also, subject o the
provisions ol Section 198(3ib) of the Ord:nance, o compound end
gliow time (or paymernt and satisfaction of eny debls due and af any
clalma or demande by or agains! the Company.

b refer any claims or demands by ar aganst the Company 1o arbiraton
and abaerve and parfarm ar rasist the awards.

ta acl 61 behall of tha Company in @il matters rafating to bankrupls arg
ingatvents.

ta determing who shall be entitied ta sign on the Company's behail baly,
notices, tecamts, acceplances endocsements, cheques, releases,
catifracts and doclments.

from 1ime to fima 10 grovide for the managemend of the Company adher
im diferant pans of Pak:stan or elsewhere ia such manner as they think
fit, and in particular o establish branch offices and 1o appornt any
pesona 10 be atiorneys or dgenis of the Company win such powers
(ingiudirg powor to Sub- dulegsﬂe] arg upon such lerms B§ may be
thought B



ottrght subeat ta any soedbons ar as coliateral secunly for anmy dest, llébmhj -
e ol sl i ol fi i Lo ity Of Gi di ip i i by s

in additen to or i furners~ge of ary requirgmeant under the Ordinarce. e
Nirgctors shall capse mingles 10 0 made H bookys provdsd 10r the purpdse -

i@l of al appoiatments of officers made by e Dsreclors,

(by  of Ihe nmreey of the Diracics praseni at gach maeting of the Direclors
and cf any zomeritiee of the Diregtors

{4 of 3 rescigticns and rocasdings at ail meetings of the Company ard cf
the Chractors ang af commitiges of Direciars

Every Chrecly: sressnt at any meebhg of Dirradiars $nall sigh his hame < &
pogx kepl lor that purpose.

OISTUVALIFICATION OF DIRECTURS

_ . Ng Person shall becormw: a Director of 3 Cormpany f e sulfers from: any ¢of the
! disabilities or disgualificatiass mentioned i saction 187 of the Crdinanca and, if
glready 3 Directos, shall caase 1o hole such office from the date ne 30 becomes
diagualified or disabled; provided. however, thal no Ditsttor shall vatate, his
o¥fica by raason only of his being & Membar of any company which had enferad
inta conlracts with. or dona any woi for, the comgany of which he vs directar,

but such Drector shali ngt vote in respedt of any sugh cortract or work, ard if
ne goas 39 vole s vote shall nyl ba cwntad .

85

§7  The Diracior shall cease te baid affice in mmdﬂﬂc& with the pfmm:}ns of
i Sectian 188 of the Crdinance

1 PROCEEDINGS COF maecmas.

8  The Dieeidrs may mesl together s the dispateh o Husitdds, adourn and
Gtharvise raguiste their meelings, as they think ., Questions m‘ismg g1 any
meeting £hall be decided by a majonty of vates. tn case of #n equality of voles.
the Chatrman 4hall have and axercise a second or casling voss. A Directar
may, and the secseiary on the reguisition of a Direcior shall, al any time,
summan A maeting of Dirgctors. 11 ahail not be necessary to gve notice of &
meeating of Dirsclars 1o any Directer for the time baing absent from Paistan.,

¢8. The Directors may elect the Chasman of their meehings who shall be the
rominea of Favji Foundation and delermine the period for which he té 1o ok
office; tut, if no sugh Chairman i3 elgcted, or it a1 any maeting the Chairman is
rot presant wdhin (80 renules after the time appointed Yor holding the same or
B unwilking 1o act as Chairman, the Diractors prasent may chogpse ong of thelr
prutiber who shall be the nomnee of Fauji Foundation to be Chairman of the
rmeating.

73, Aresclutien i writing signec by all the Directors present in gr pulside Paiustan,
for the time Being entitled 1o racaeive notice of a4 mealing of the Direciars shall
be as valic and effectual es f it had been passed al a meeting of tha Déreclors
duly convened ard haig



B4

&g

The Comaany i1 general meeling may cdeclarg Dwvdends, bu! na Dividends
shall mxceed the smount recommendgse by the Board

The Board may, from tme o tme, pay 1o tha Membecs suoh inlanm Jvidends
85 appear 1O L jLshles by the prafiis of e Lémpany

No Dwviderds shail be paid othamacse than oul of profits of the year Or any
other wundigtnibuted prolds from priod years.

Trie Board may, belore recommending any Dividend. se4 asige oul of the profits
al ma Compary. ¢uch 5™ 3§ they 1hink proper as a reso7ve ar rasarves, which
snal, at the ascration of the Board, be apphcatle for meetng cabit obiigatons
or cantingeraas, af for aqualizing Oridends, or !oe any other puposes 1o
wiich the piolis of the Company may propery ta appled, and pending such
applicaton may :n the like hscretion, githar be empiayed in the business of the
Campany of be nwested n such Invesiments, othar than shares of the
Company, as the Bcard may from fime to time think fit

No Divideng shall bear nterest aganst the Camozny The Lividend zhall be
paid within the penad e down in the Ordnance.

The Directers may carry farward any prafits which they may think prudent net ta
gistnbute, withaut satting then asos a3 2 1eserve

CAPITALIZATION

Any general meeting may, upon recommendation of the Board, by ressiution
resaliva that any undistributed prodits of the Company. {including profits carried
and standing to the cradit of any reserves of cther specsl Sccouniy or
reprasentng premiums recewed an the issue of ghares and standing o the
credit of the shars premium account and capital regerves srising from. reslized
ar unréadized appreciaban of the asssls or goodwil! of i Company or frerm any

‘acquisition/ sale of interast in olher undertpikings] not required for paying the

Dividends on any sharss, De capitalized. Such capitakzed undisinbuled profits
ard teserves shall be distributed amongst the shareholders in the  same
proportiens as if the same were beng disirbuted by way of Davidend, All or any
aar of such capualized furtd may be applied an behall of such shareheldgrs for
paymend in felt or in par either at par or al such premium as the rescluticn may
provide, for any unissued shares or Debeniures of the Company which shal be
distributed accordingly. and such distribulions ¢or payment shall be accepted by
such shareholders « fudl ‘satisfaction of fhair interest in e 2aid capilatized
gum.

IHE SEAL

The Directors snall pravide ‘or tha safe custody of the Seal and the Saal shall
net be affixed to any instrument excent by the authority of a rasclution of the
Board of Directors or by 8 committae of Directors autnorlzed in that behalf by
the Directors and the presence of al leasl two Dwectors: and those wic
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add-ess, or ! ha naz no registeced acdress n Pakistan o e address suppuod
o tha Cemeony Yo the 8 L 00 9 nohEs 1T e

WINDING UP

it the Carmpanry shail oe woungd up, whether wiuntanily ar atnerasa tha
iLuediar ruay, wilh e sancbon of a Special Kesoiution and any clher sanchon
requred by the Ordnznce divide amangs! the Membaers (0 specie or knd, the
whole or any part af ihe pssels of the Campany, whather they conssi of
property of the same kind of nct

Sor ing purpeses aforasdd, Ine ligugialar mAy 56t swch valug as he aeems fair
wDoar ary plopsrty to 6o divided as alorasa d and may dotermifie how suh
dwisan shatll o2 carmad ou! a5 berwean 'he Members or difterent classes of
Members

The liguidatar gy, with she ke sanction, vest the whale or any oarl of such
assels n bustess wpon such rus! for the Daneflit of Ihe contnoutones as the
Lgundator. wath e Lde sanclaor, (RAK 9, tut 3o thal no Membar shall e
compelied ta accept ary shares ar securikas whereupan there is any liaofity

INDEMNITY

Every Dreclor, Chairman, maraging diregtor. chief execulive, marages or
officer of the Company Or any persan {whether an officer of the Compary or
N3t} employed Sy the Company a3 auditar o7 adyisor shall by mdarvihied oyl af
the funds 0! the Company aganst any llabdisy incurmed by him 3s such Director
Chaisman, managng deector. chiof eseculwe, manager, efficer, auster or
adviser in delenging any preceedings, whether civil o+ crimingd, In which
judgmeni is given in mis favour of in which ne &5 acquilled, or in connecton with
|y application under sectan 438 of the Ordmam:e m which rekief is granted s
hiem by Court,

No Dwector, Chairmar, managing duecior ar olner officer of the Company wll
be lable fas the acly. recospls. negecis ar defaults of aay other Director or
officer or *¢r any loss or expenses happening ta the Company ihrough the
nsulhiciency or deficiengy of title to any property asquired by the order of tha
Roarsd or ather Clicar tar of co bahaif of the Company of for (ke insufliceency ar
dofivicney of Gle of any sagurity in or upen which eny of the manayt of tha
Company shall be Invested, o for any loss, or damape arising from the
bankruplcy. insolvency of tonigua acts of any iuss occasoned by any errsr of
puggment or oversight ont tvd part, or for any other I0ss, ¢amage or misfartune
whatevar which shall happen in the execubon of hd duties of hia office or in
reiation thereto, untess the same happens through his own willlul act, negled,

-defaul ar dishonesty .

SECRECY CLAUSE

Every {irector, minager member of the commilige. officer,  servan.
accountant or other Person enployed :n the bysiness of the Company shall if
50 reguirg &y the Qirastors before pnlerng upon his dules, sign 2 declaration
piedging to observa 3 strict secrecy respecting all transactions of the Compiny

wiln the cysiomers and 1he state of accounis with individusis, matters ralating
{7
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ATTACHMENT 11l

ANNUAL RETURNS OF COMPANY (AS PER SECTION
130 OF COMPANIES ACT)



Form-A

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES REGULATIONS, 2024
[Seclion 130(1), 130(2), 424(5) read with Regulalions 62 & 30]

* V.
" ' \r,

. ANNUAL RETURN OF A COMPANY- " 2G4 /o
. S %
“
- i c* ,' 7 \S X
PART-I \‘\- L%
(To be filled by All Companics) ‘\'n,__‘.;:‘ D /
{Please complete in bold capital [otrars) : -
1.1 CUIN (Registration Number) 0 |o [8 [8.]9 |9 |6
1.2 Name of the Company FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
1.3 Fee Payment Details 1.3.1 Challan No 1.3.2 Amount
1.4 Particulars oi— S Please tick  the
L relevant box
Part-II | Annual Return of a company other than inactive company v

Part-T | Annual Return of Inactive Company

A PART-II
(To bn ﬁllcr.l by an Active Company)

dd mm Yy

2.1 Anpual General Meetirighqld on 2 |8 ¢ |3 2 |0 |2 |4

22 Form-A made up to (‘lppllCilble in case no
AGM was hcld!concludcd during the
year) : ,

2.3 chistercd office address FFBL TOWER, PLOT NO C18C2, SECTOR B, JINNAH BOULEVARD,
PHASE-1I, DHA, ISLAMABAD ISLAMABAD ISLAMABAD ISLAMABAD
CAPITALTERRITORY {(1.C,T.} 44000, Rawalpindi, Islamabad, Punjab,
Paklstan

Page 1 of 10




2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

28

2.9

Email Address

Office Tel. No.

secretary@fpel.com

Mobile No. (Preferably WhatsApp enabled number) of +92 3051779374
authorized officer: (Chief Executive/ Director/ Company
Secretary/ Chief Financial Officer)
Authorized Share Capital (If applicable)
Classcs and kinds of Shares No. of Shares Amount Face Value
Ordinary Shares 900,000,000 9,000,000,000 10
Paid up Share Capital (If applicable)
Classcs nnd lkinds of Shares No. of Shares Amount Face Valuc
Ordinary Shares 858,750,000, | 8,587,500,000 10
Particulars of Officer(s) including Share chis'tmr'
S. [ Name Designation CNIC No. Addroess
No. s
1 | Mrarifur Chief Executive 421015449 238, st No. 23,
Rehman T, 9309 Block D, State Life
' Housing Soclaty
Phase |, Lahore
L Cantt, Pakistan
2 [ MrAlisiddiq Company Secretary 353021977 H No 90, St 11,
8419 Jinnah Abad,
Abbottabad,
i ‘- Pakistan
3 | MrShahid Saud | Chief Financial Officer 345015184 HOUSE NO.54,
ul - 8747 STREET NO.16,
SECTOR G, DHA
PHASE 2,
SRR ISLAMABAD
4 | Mr.Muhammad | Legal Advisor 374052767 DG-1. Midcity
Sh‘gﬁqug} 2129 Apartments,
Fazala Colony
Service Road
Islamabad.,
Pakistan
5 | A.F Ferguson Auditor 74 East jinnah
& Co, Ave, Block G 6 7/3

Page 20f10




Chartered Blue Area,
Accountants Islamabad
6 Any Other Officer
7 Share Registrar (if
applicable)
- 210 List of Directors as on the date up to which this Form is made.
Sii{ Name | Residential | Nationalit| CNIC No. for Date of Name of member
Address y Pakistanis, or NICOP | appointment | or creditor
No. for Oversecas or clection nominating or
Pakistanis, or appointing the
Passport No. for director
foreigners
1 | Syed Hause NO
Bakhtiva] 126-B, Street
r Kazmi | 37, F10/ 1,
istamabad,
islamabad R
Urban, pakistan 6110121692 453 26-03- 2024
Islamabad, T '
Islamabad
Capital
Territory,
Pakistan )
2 | MrArff | 238, 5t No
ur 23, Block D,
Rehman | State Life- o,
Housing™ | oo | 4210154499809 25-03-2024
Society Phasej ...  ~
I; Lahore
Cantt,” .
Pakistan‘fa__;: ;i
3 | M House 317, §
Muham | Street 20,
mad 611/2, Pakistan 1730113856 517 25-03- 20249
Tariq Islamabad,
: Pakistan
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Mr. Azl [ Army Officers|
lkram Coloney 5t 5,
Morgah,
HH114, Pakistan | 3740567744 925 25-03- 2024
Rawalpindi
Cantt,,
Paklstan
Mr. House #
Qamar | 150/1, 5t 6,
Haris Khayaban
Manzoo | Bukhari, DHA | Pakistan 4230110773 227 25-03- 2024
r Phase 6,
.| Karachl.,
Pakistan
Mr. H. Ne. D803,
Khurram| Satellite S
Shahzad| Town, Pakistan 5110119717 291 +| 25-03- 2024
Khan Rawalpindi .,
Pakistan
Mr. DHA Phase 2,
Muham | House No 21, o
mad Street No 15, . 3320233552697 25-03- 2024
Junaid | SectorE Pakistan
Islamabad,
Pakistan
Mr. Phase 8,
Wagar | House No
Ahmed | 139, St No
Malik | 29, Mohalla b 352014017 2419 25.03- 2024
Khayaban | Pakistan
Qasim, DHA )
Karachi =, +
(South); .
Pakisfakgmﬁ
Mr A-703 CREEK 352019515 7093 25-03- 2024
Sarfaraz | VISTA APART
Ahmed | MENTS, Pakistan
Rehman
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DHAVHI,
KARAC HI

2.11 List of members/sharcholders & debenture holders on the date up to which this Form is

made,
# { Folio Name* Address No. of Percentage of | CNIC No. for
# shares/ | sharcholding of| Pakistanis, or
debentures | member having| NICOP No. for
af 2 held 25% ormorc | Overscas Pakistanis,
any) E (Applicable| sharcholding | or Passport No. for
g incase of | (Applicable in | forcigners, or CUIN
= conipanies | - " case of No. for Pakistani
having companies | company, or
share ‘having share | Registration No. for
capitai) capital) foreign company.
Shareholders/members
i Mr Arif ur 238, St No,
Rehman 23, Block
D, State
Life | pakistan 1 0.0 421015449 9809
Housing R
Soclety
Phase],
Lahore™}
Cantf, '
Pakistan -
2 Mr. Aziz lkram Army Pakistan i 0.0 374056774 4925
' Officers
) C_g!o'r'te y SY
K /| 5 Morgah
e Tl MBS,
' Rawalp
indt Cantt.,
Pakistan
3 Mr, Wagar Phase 8, | Pakistan 1 0.0
Ahmed Malik | House No
139, 5t No

PageSofi0




29,
Mchallah
Khayahan

Qasim,
DHA
Karachl
{South),
Pakistan

352014017 2419

Mr. Qamar
Haris Manzo or

House &
150/1, 5t
6, Khayab

an Bukhari
, DHA

Phase 6,
Karachi .,
Pakista n

Pakistan

0.0

423011077 3227

Mr. Khuryam
Shahzad Khan

H. No. D-
601,
Satelllte
Town,
Rawaipindi
., Pakistan

Pakistan

0.0

611011971 7291

Mr Sarfaraz
Ahmed Rehman

A-703
CREEK
VISTA
APART
MENTS,
DHAVIH, "
KARAC HI

Pakistan

0.0

352019515 7093

Muhammad
Tardg -~

it

| 20,6113/2,
" islamab

_ w’;rHouse
'3;7, Streat

ad,
(slamab ad!
Urban,
islamab
ad,
Isjamabad
Capital

Pakistan

0.0

173011385 6517
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TYerritory,
44000,
Pakistan

Muhammad
Sunaid

DHA Phase
2, House
No 21,
Street No
15, Sector
E Islamab
ad,
Istamabad
Urban,
islamabad,
Islarmabad
Capital
Territory,
44000,
Pakistan

0.0

332023355 2697

Syed Bakhtlyar
Kazmi

House NO
126-B,
Street 37,
F10/1,
Islamabad,

Islamabad| .
Urban, | E

Islamabad, .

Islamabiad |

Capital
Territory,
o pak

0.0

611012169 2453

10

Fauji .:;j‘; Ty
Foundation” |

214687500

25.0

1234

11

Faui Fertilizer
Bin Qasim
Limited

544062491

750

876542111 2825

Debenture holders
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* In case the member or debenture holder is holding shares or debentures on behalf of other
person(s), the name of such other person(s) shall be mentioned in parentheses along with the name
of the member or debenture holder.

* [ case the member or debenture holder is holding inferest or exercising voting or control rights

it the company on behalf of other person(s), the name of such other person(s) shall be mentioned
in parentheses along with the name of the member or debenture holder.

2.12 ‘Transfer of sharcs/ debentures since last Form-A was made (Applicable for companics

having share capital)

S# | Name of Transferor { Name of Transferce | Number of shares Datc of registration of
transferred transfer
Sharcholders '
1 Mr. Abld Rafique Muhammad Tariq 1. 27-12-2023
2 Dr. Nadeem lnayat Muhammad Junaid 1 27-12-2023
3 Syed Atif Ali Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi | 1~ 26-03-2024
Debenture holders
PART-II1
(To be filled by an Inactive Company)
3.1 Correspondence
Address
3.2 Contact Details
3.3 List of Directors and members as on the date this Form is made.
S# | Name Residential| Nationality | No. of | CNIC # for | Date of Name of member
Addrcss shares | Pakistanis, or | becoming | or creditor
| B held (if] NICOP # for | member/di | nominating/
any) | Overscas rector appointing the
Pakistanis, or dircctor
Passport 7t for
foreigners
1
2
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3.4 Confirmation 1t is hereby stated and confirmed that the Company has:
about  inactive ]
status of (i) not carried out any operation since grant of status as an inactive
Company company;

(i) no substantial assets or Accounting transactions;

35 Ido hereby solcmnly and sincerely declare that the mformatmn provided in the form and

the enclosures is:

(i) true and correct to the best of my knowledge, in coﬂsonancc with the rccord as

maintained by the company and nothing has been concealed; and

(ii)  hercby reported after complying with and ﬂﬂ'ﬁl}l’i‘ng all requirements under the
relevant provisions of law, rules, regulations, directives, circulars and notifications

whichever is applicable.

3.6 Name of Authorized Officer with}) -

designation/Authorized Intermediary (‘ f| -~ Alisiddiq "Secretary"

appointed) .

N\
\
3.7 Signatures
3.8 Registration No of Authorized Intermediary, if applicable
Day Month Year

3.9 Date B avY; § |@ 2 (10 |2

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILLING THIS FORM

1. This Form sha]l be made up to the date of last AGM of the Company or the last datc of the
calendar year where no AGM is held/concluded during the year.

2. If shares are of different classcs the columns should be subdivided, so that the number of
cach class held, is shown separately against S, No. 2.7 and 2.8

Page 9 of 10




If space provided is insufficient, the required information should be listed in a separate sheet
attached to this return which should also be signed. '

This form is to be filed within 30 days of the date indicated in Sr. No. 2.1 or 2.2 (as the casc
may be). If the form is filed after 30 days, additional fee as per section 468 shall be
applicable.

An inactive company or a company which held its AGM but the same was not concluded
shall file Form-A within a period of 30 days from the close of calendar year.

This form is not applicable on single member companics & private companies having paid-
up capital not exceeding 3.0 million in casc there is no change of particulars sincc last annual
return filed with the registrar.

A company, other than a single member company or a private company having paid up
capital of not more than three million rupees, shall inform the registrar on Form-24 that there
is no change of particulars in the last annual return filed with the registrar.

Original challan or other cvidence of payment of fec s'pcciﬁéﬂ in Seventh Schedule of the
Act will be submitted with this form (not applicable in case of online filing)

Page 10 of 10




- ATTACHMENT IV

" SHARE-HOLDING PATTERN
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED

FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED B
SHAREHOLDING AS AT 02-JUNE-2025
i%T NAME HOLDING | %AGE
1
"1 [TFCLID 644.062.491 | 75.00
> | FAUJI FOUNDATION 214,687,500 | 25.00
3 | LT GEN ANWAR ALI HYDER HI (M) (RETD) [T 000
4 | MR. JAHANGIR PIRACHA 1000
5 | MR. QAMAR HARIS MANZOOR 11 000
. | MAJ GEN AMJAD AHMED BUTT, HI (M) U oo
(RETD) :
7 | SYED BAKHTIYAR KAZMI 11 0.0
. | MAJ GEN MUHAMMAD ZAFAR IQBAL , HI(M), T o0
TI(M) (RETD) :
9 [ MR. MAZHAR ABBAS HASNANI I 0.00
10 | MR. MUHAMMAD TARIQ 1] 000
11 | MR AZIZ IKRAM 1T 000
TOTAL - 858,750,000 | 100

Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd)
Company Secretary
FFBL Power Company Limited
FFBL Tower C1/C2, Sector-B
Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase-i, blamabad

FFBL Tower, C1 - C2, Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase II, Islamabad, Pakistan
Tel No:- +92 51 876 3325, Fax No:- +92 51 876 33605, www.fpcl.com




ATTACHMENT V(A)

EVIDENCE OF CASH BALANCES HELD IN RESERVE BY
APPLICANT, ALONG WITH BANK CERTIFICATES



- Date: 17 APR 2025

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

This is to certify that FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITE holding GRP# 2646023 is maintaining an account in United Bank Limited.

Title of Account . : FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
IBAN : PK52UNIL0109000224798905
Account No : 224798905
Type of Account : BUSINESS PARTNER PLUS
:PKR
Type of Currency P
Account Opening Date : 17-8EP-15
Branch Code & Name - 1133-PASMIC, KARACHI
Avagilable Balance as of Date(16-APR- : 20,000.00 PKR
2025)

Authorizad'@' Authorized Signatory

This Certificate has been issued on a specific request of the customer without any risk or responsibility on bank or any of its officials.




g HABIB BANK

4 Br 4 4 4™

e 7 o F o7

I

APRLL 18,2025

FFRIL POWER COMPANY TIJAMITED.

13 HARTRY SPTRERT  HARLKY STRERET
RAWAT.RINDT

RAWALPTINDE

Becar Customer,

Balance Certificate

We hereby certify that the following account is being maintained
at CORPORATE CLHNTER Branch.

Accounl type : HBL-DAILY PROGRESSIVE ACCOUNT
Accouni. number : 01557900150301

Wwe further certify that the balance in the subject account at c¢lose of
business on  APRII 17,2025 stood at CREDIT PKR *******1(Q (010,955.62
{ Rupees Ten Million Ten Thousand Nine Hundred I'ifty Five and Paisas

Sixly fTwo )

r Operation PA # 800572
P PCurporzle Centre Branch

l* BL Rawalpindl Cantt (0155}

Yours Sincerely

MANAGER



.
RS

it
R K

~iH

Issue Date: Apr 17, 2025

ACCOUNT BATLANCE CERTIFICATE

This is to certify that Mr. /Mrs. FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED bearing CNIC 43024815 is
maintaining Saving Account number PK39ASCMO0001751480000386, titled FFBL POWER
COMPANY LIMITED with Askari Bank Limited, DHA Phase 1, Islamabad since Jan 21, 2021.

The closing balance of the above account no as on 17-Apr-2025 is PKR 3496727.06/- (Three million
Four Hundred Ninety-Six thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Seven Only).

This certificate is issued at the specific request of the customer without any risk, obligations and
responsibility on the part of Askari Bank Limited.

b A\r.

LR T < B

Askari Ba
Near Jacaranda Family Club, Sector-E, DHA Phase |, Islamabad. SWIFT: ASCMPKKA,




ATTACHMENT V(B)

DETAILS OF CHARGES OR ENCUMBRANCES
ATTACHED TO THE APPLICANT’S ASSETS, IF ANY



T R

FFRL POWER COMPANY LIMITED {(FPCL)

Statement of Charges and Encumbrances Attached
to the Applicant’s Assets

in compliance with Regulation 3(4)(d)(ii) of the NEPRA Licensing (Application and
Modification Procedure) Regulations, FFBL Power Company Limited hereby declares
that, as of the date of this Petition, there are no charges, liens, pledges, mortgages, or
any other form of encumbrance on its assets, and all assets intended for use in the
electric power supply operations are free from any legal, financial, or contractual
obligations that would restrict or impair their usage for the purposes of the licensed
activity.




ATTACHMENT V(C)

LATEST AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
APPLICANT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of FFBL Power Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of FFBL Power Company Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, and the
statement of profit or foss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge

and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs
as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity

and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements dated February

20, 2024.

IAILL-

A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
" 7q-Bast, znd Floor, Bluc Area, Jinnah Avenue, P 0.Jox 3021, I slamabad-q4000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-60/2604934-37; Fax: +92 (51) 2277924; <www. pwe.cont/pk>

“KARACH! “LAHORE *ISLAMABAD
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the directors' report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained
prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financiai reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

HIFLL. -
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit avidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(@)

(b)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); '

the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX

of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company's business; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980). .

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is JehanZeb Amin,

NHe

Chartered Af¢ountants
Islamabad

Date: Februdry 19, 2025

UDIN: AR202410083eGg0fJUxt




.FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees 000 Rupees '000
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 23,482,398 24,241,241
Intangible assets 5 6,344 2,308
Long term investment 6 3,737,906 4,085,621
27,226,648 28,329,260
CURRENT ASSETS ‘
Stores and spares 1,335,747 1,075,839
Stock in trade 7 2,132,117 2,488,766
Trade debts 8 3,765,628 4,615,411
Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivabies 9 795,078 604,608
Income tax refundable 10 273,607 287,611
Cash and bank balances 114 2,355,776 2,869,992
10,657,953 11,942,227
TOTAL ASSETS 37,884,601 40,271,487
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY AND RESERVES
Share capital 12 8,587,500 8,587,500
Capital reserve - Acquisition reserve (452,059) -
Revenue reserve - Accurnuiated profits 19,510,123 12,005,085
27,645,564 20,592,555
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finance facilities 13 - 8,845,429
Deferred employee benefit 14 204,594 190,607
Deferred taxation 15 732,516 | 687,998
937,110 9.724,034
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term finance facilities 13 - 3,341,948
Short term borrowings 16 7,083,665 5,536,840
Trade and other payables 17 2,222,490 1,052,041
Contract liahitities 18 15,772 24,068
9,301,927 5,954,898
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ___ 37,884,607 — 40,277,487
19

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integrai part of these financial statements.

Tl A

CHIEE EXECUTIVE DIRBETOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




-FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note
Revenue - net 20
Cost of sales 21
Gross profit
Insurance claim 20.4
Gross profit after insurance claim
Administrative expenses 22
Other operating expenses 23
Operating profit
Other income 24
Finance cost 25
Finance income 24
Net finance cost
Share of profit from associate 6
Profit before taxation
Taxation 26
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Share of other comprehensive income / (loss) from associate 6
Related deferred tax
Remeasurement gain on employées' retirement benefit plan
Related deferred tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
The agnexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
[]
/ M/Q\M —_—
M el Ry
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2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000

29,506,821 28,057,476
(21,794,247) (20,017,128)
7,712,574 8,040,348
2,390,122 869,495
10,102,696 8,909,843
(169,186) {152,980}
(437,918) (287,155)
9,495,592 8,469,708
615,983 71,153
{2,509,261) (4,213,765)
73,937 14,377
(2,435,324) (4,199,388)
104,192 118,184
7,780,443 4,459,657
(276,904) (441,010)
7,503,539 4,018,647
153 (32,563)

(38) 8,141

115 (24,422)

1,498 2,249

{84) <

1,414 2,249

7,505,068 3,996,474

Rl A

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Issued, Capital Revenue
subscribed reserve - reserve - Total
and paid up  Acquisition  Accumulated
capital reserve profits
Rupees '000

Balance as at January 1, 2023 8,587,500 - 11,008,581 19,596,081
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - - 4,018,647 4.018,647
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (22,173) {22,173}

- 3,996,474 3,996,474
Transactions with owners of the Company - Distribution
First interim dividend - quarter ended March 31, 2023

{@ Rs. 1.747 per share) - (1,500,000)(| (1,500,000}
Second interim dividend - quarter ended June 30, 2023
(@ Rs. 1.747 per share) - {1,500,000)|| (1,500,000)

- (3,000,000) (3,000,000)
Balance as at December 31, 2023 8,587,500 12,005,085 20,592,555
Balance as at January 1, 2024 8,587,500 12,005,055 20,592,555
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year - 7,503,538 7,503,539
Other comprehensive income for the year - 1,529 1,529

- 7,505,068 7,505,068
Share in acquisition reserve of Fauji Foods Limited - - (452,059)
Balance as at December 31, 2024 8,587,500 19,510,123 27,645,564

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

SHHTLL

oo
.-'/ i
J CHIEFEXECUTIVE

DI R

A A

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT-OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for;

Depreciation

Share of profil from associate

Provision for staff retirement benefits’

Provision for workers' profit participation fund and workers weliare fund
Finance cost

(Gain) / Loss on sale of fixed assels

Operating cashflows befare working capital changes

Changes in
Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Gratuity paid
Leave encashment paid
Workers' profit participation fund paid
Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to capital work in progress
Purchase of operating fixed assets
Disposal of fixed assets
Investment in-associate company
Net cash generated from / {used in} investing aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term loan received
Long term loan repayments made
Dividend paid
Finance cost paid
Net cash used in financing aclivities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

4.6
6.2

25
24

s

13
13

11.4

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
7,780,443 4,459 657
1,164,307 1,099,213
{104,192) (118,184)
65,965 55,192
368,258 232,915
2,509,261 4,213,765
(528,612) 569
3,474,987 5,483,470
11,255,430 9,943,127
{259,908) (348,358)
356,649 229,870
849,783 7,872,294
(190,470) 205,979
1,022,632 {3.282.894)
1,778,686 4,676,891
13,034,116 14,620,018
{21,183) (22,702}
(25,042) (20,235)
(223,941) (221,799)
(227,554) {227,754)
12,536,396 14,127,528
(362,117) (613,366)
{135,538) {54,044)
616,857 9,396
. (4,000,000)
149,202 (4,658,014)
- 4,030,000
(12,242,785) {3,150,594)
- (3,000,000)
(2,453,854} (4,1 YO,QZQJ
{14,696,639) (6,321,517)
(2,041,041) 3,147,997
(2,666,848) (5,814,845)
(4,707,889) (2,666,848)

BRIV,

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

21

2.2

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

FFBL Power Company Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated on June 27, 2014 in
Pakistan under the repealed Companigs Ordinance, 1984 (ncw Companies Act 2017). The Company is a
subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (the Parent Company / FFC) and the ultimate parent is Fauji
Foundation (FF).The Company has been established to build, own and operate a 118 Megawatt coal based
power generation facility at Port Qasim Karachi. The Company sells electricity produced to its parent company,
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (48 Megawatt) and K-Electric Limited (K-Electric) (52 Megawatt) under a
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) having a period of 30 years. The Company also sells steam preduced from
the facility to FFC, under a Steam Supply Agreement (SSA) with a term of 30 years. The Company

commenced its commercial operations on May 18, 2017.
The geographical location and address of the Company’s business units, including plant is as under:

The registered office of the Company is situated at FFC Sona Tower, Plot No. C1&C2, Sector B,
Jinnah Boulevard, Phase |l, DHA, Islamabad.

The Company's land (measuring 100 acres) and power generation facility are located at FFC
‘Complex, P-1/EZ-1/ Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi.

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) awarded reference tariff for supply of electricity to K-
Electric Limited (KE) to the Company vide decision dated December 28, 2015 in response to Power Acquisition
Request filed by KE. The reference tariff upon Commercial Operations Date was subsequently revised by

NEPRA vide its decision dated February 09, 2022,
The Company holds 15.87% equity of Fauiji foods Limited (FFL), representing 400 million ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each, acquired at a par value of Rs. 10 per share. FFL is principally engaged in processing and sale of
toned milk, milk powder, fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. The head office of FFL is situated at 42

CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase-Vili, Lahore.

During the current year, the former parent i.e. Fauji Ferlilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL} of the Company has
merged into FFC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financiai statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of;

international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The financial statements,
except for cash flow information, have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting.




2.3

2.4
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24.2

2.4.3

244

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements of the Company are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest Thousand Rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting judgements and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting pclicies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are

discussed in the ensuing paragraphs.

Useful life and residual vaiue of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis.
Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property,
plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge, impairment and deferred tax.

Right of use asset

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the righi-of-use assets

are depreciated over the underlying assets’ useful life,

Provision for Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax laws and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage and
where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts

are shown as contingent liabilities.

Measurement of Expected credit losses {ECL)

The measurement of the expected credit loss {("ECL"} allowance for financial assets measured at amortised
cost is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behavior (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include development of
ECL models, including the various formulas and choice of inputs, determining the criteria if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL
basis and the gualitative assessment. The Company has accessed ECL on its financial assets and determined

that amount is immaterial to the financial statements accordingly, ECL has not been recorded.

SHAATQL-




2.4.5

2.4.6

24.7

2.4.8

2.5

2.5.1
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Provision for inventory obsolescence

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade and siores and spares to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated

selling price less estimated cost to complete and estimated cost to make the sales.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probabte that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obiigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and risk specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting

date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of cne or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company, or the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with

sufficient reliability.

Revenue

Revenue against pass through components of tariff is recognized on provisional basis using estimates based
on prevailing market rates. The difference between billed and actual amounts of pass through items is later on

adjusted by issuance of debit / credit notes.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

There are certain amendments and interpretations o the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Company's accounting period which began on January 1, 2024. However, these do not have

any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Company:
Effective date (annual reporting
periods beginning on or after)

January 1, 2025

1AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows {Amendments) January 1, 2025

IAS 21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates January 1, 2025
{Amendments)

IFRS7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and its accompanying January 1, 2026
Guidance on Implementing IFRS 7 (Amendments)

IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracts January 1, 2026
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Effective date (annual reporting
periods beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 & Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement January 1, 2026

IFRS 7 of Financial Instruments (Amendments)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 1, 2026

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments January 1, 2026

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Financial Reporting January 1, 2026
Standards

IFRS 18 Presentation & Disclosure in Financial Statement January 1, 2027

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have
any material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally or
declared exempt by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at December 31, 2024;

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
iFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18 ' Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability. Disclosures

IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented in these financial statements, unless

otherwise stated.

Taxation

Current tax

The profits and gains of the Company derived from electric power generation are exempt from tax in terms of
Clause (132) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITQ), subject to the
conditions and limitations provided therein. Under clause (11A) of Part |V of the Second Schedule to the ITO,
the Campany is also exempt from levy of minimum tax on 'turnover' under section 113 of the ITO to the extent
of receipts from sale of electricity. Minimum tax under section 113 and Alternate Corporate Tax under section

113C of ITQ is leviable on sale of coal and steam.

However, full provision is made in the profit and loss account on income from sources net covered under the
above clauses at current rates of taxation after taking into account, tax credits and rebates available, if any,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet methed, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences;

The initial recognition of assets or liabilities in & transaction that is not a business combination and

that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
Differences relating to investments in jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that

they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
Taxable temporary differences arising on the initiat recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
realised. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for the Company and the reversal of
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be

available against which they can be used on the reporting date.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred
tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabflities. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are offset if criteria as per applicable financial reporting framework is met.

Leases

Right of use asset

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease i.e. the date the
underlying assets are available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumuiated
depreciation and impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The amount of the initial measurement of lease Liabilities

Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
any initial direct costs, and

- Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful! life and the lease termon a
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assets

are depreciated over the underlying assets’ useful life.

Lease liabllity

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannoct be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise the following:

Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate

as at the commencement date;

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;

The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
Lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an

extension option; and
Penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate

early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination opfion.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except for capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress are stated at cost less allowance
accumulated for impairment, if any. Cost of property, plant and equipment includes acquisition cost, borrowing
cost during construction phase of relevant asset, if any and other directly attributable costs.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss on the straight line method so as to write off the
depreciable amount of the preperty, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives at the rates specified
in note 4. Depreciation on additions is charged for the full month in which an asset is available for use and on
disposals up to the month immediately preceding the disposals. Gains or losses on disposals are taken lo the
profit and loss account.

The cost of replacing a major item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probabte that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow to the Company and its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognized. The cost of the day
to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recagnized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposals with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of expenditure
incurred and advances made in respect of operating fixed assets, capital stores and intangibies assets in the
course of thelr acquisition, construction and installation. Transfers from capital work in progress are made to
the relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the assets are available for use in the

manner intended by the Company's management,

Impairment

(i) Non-derivative financial assets
The Company recagnises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The maximum pericd considered whan estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period

over which the Company Is exposed to credit risk.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportabie information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information

and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-

looking information,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 60
days past due.

The Cempany considers a financial asset to be in default when;

the counter party Is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company In full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

the financial asset is more than 80 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. '
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12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expectad iife of ihe instrument is less than 12 months).

Measurement of ECLs

Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to

receive),

Credit-impalred financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financia! difficulty of the counterparty;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 60 days past due;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

it is probable that the counterparty wili enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the carrying amount of the
assets and charged to profit or loss.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes
an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to compiy with the

Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(if) Non-financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, If any such

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amotint is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating

units (CGUs).
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its

recoverable amount,
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Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of
any goodwill allocated to CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other asseis in the CGU on a
pro rata basis. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woutd
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Intangibles

(ntangible assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, if any. Amortization charge is based on straight-tine at the rate specified in note 5 to

the financial statements.

Investment in Associate Company

investments in associate where significant influence can be established are accounted for using the equity
method. Under this method, the investments are stated at cost plus the Company's eqguity in undistributed
earnings and losses after acquisition, less any impairment in the value of individual investment.

Income on investments in associate is recognised using the equity method. Under this method, the Company's
share of post-acquisition profit or loss of the associate is included in profit or loss, its share of post-acquisition
other comprehensive income or loss is included in other comprehensive income and its share of post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. These amounts are adjusted to reflect
adjustments made by the Company when using the equity methed, including fair value adjustments and
modifications for differences in accounting policy. Dividend distribution by the associate is adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the

Company's interest in the associate,
Stores and spares

Stores and spares includes primarily mechanical spares, electrical spares and chemicals required for the day
to day operational activities of plant and maintenance. Initially, spares were recoginised at cost. However,
currently these are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, less provision for slow moving and

obsolete items, if any.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade is valued at lower of cost, calculated on weighted average cost basis and net realisable value.
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete
and slow-moving stock-in-trade based on management's best estimate. Materials in transit are stated at cost

comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Financial instruments

Financlal assets

(a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets on initial recognition in the following categories: at
amortized cost, at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial

recognition unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial asset, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period

following the change in the business model.
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(b} Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL: (i) It is held within a business model whose objective is to hald assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and (i) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

{c) Fair value through other comprehensive income

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL: (i} It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and (ii} Its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amouint outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in it's fair value as other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment by investment basis,

(d) Fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOC! as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company irrevocably designates a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOC! as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financia! liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is designated as such on initial recognition as it is a derivative
financial instrument. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognized in statement of profit or foss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
profit or loss. The financial fiabilities of the Company includes long term loans, lease liability, creditors,
retention money, other liabilities, payable to employees provident fund trust, accrued liabilities, security deposit

payable, unclaimed dividend and short term running finance.,

Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are.initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument,

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) is initially measured

at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

A financial fiability is initially measured at fair value minus, for an itern not at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly atfributable to its acquisition or issue.
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Subsequent measurement and gains and josses

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

(i Financial assets at amortized cosi

Debt investments are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income caiculated using effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized In profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OCl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVOCI

Equity investments are subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest income calculated using effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend

income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Company include trade debts, other receivables, cash and bank balances,
long term deposits, trade deposits and short term investments.

Derecognition

{i) Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. '

(i} Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial
liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilites assumed) is recognized in the statement of
nrofit or loss
(iii} Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the stalement of
financial position, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and intends either to seftle on a net basis or to realize the asseis and settle the liabilities

simultaneocusiv.
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Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme under an independent trust for its employees as a defined
benefit plan. The Company makes contributions or records liability in respect of defined benefit plans on the
basis of actuarial valuations, carried out annually by independent actuaries. The latest actuarial valuation was
carried out as of December 31, 2024. The calculations of actuaries are based on the Projected Unit Credi
Method, net of the assets guaranteeing the plan, if any, with the cbligation increasing from year fo year, in &

manner that it is proportional to the length of service of the employees.

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations
resuiting from the passage of time, and is determined by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit

liability / (asset).

Gratuily is paid to the employees as per the last drawn basic salary multiplied by the number of service years
subject to maximum service of twenty years.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a funded provident fund plan for its employees. Monthly contributions are made by the
employees at the rate of 10%, 15% and 20% of basic salary while the Company contributes at a fixed rate of

10% of the basic salary.

Deferred employee benefits

The Company maintaing provision for deferred empioyee benefits consisting of compensation against
unutilised leaves as at the reporting date to all its permanent employees in accordance with the rules of the
Company. The compensation against leaves is encashable upon separation from the Company. However, the
Company revised its policy for compensated absences in April, 01 2022. No further accumulation of annual
leaves is allowed, however, annual leaves already accumulated as of March 31, 2022 will be continued till the
time these are consumed by the individual or encashed on current gross at the time of separation,

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a resuit of a past event, and it Is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obiigation. Provisions are measured
at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a rate that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of the money and the risk specific to the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each statement

of financlal position date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Share capital and dividend

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Dividend distribution to the
shareholders is recognized as liability in the period in which it is declared.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances at banks, short term highly liquid investmenis
with origina!l maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in their fair value and short-term borrowings.
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Revenue recognition

The Company signed its PPA with K-Electric and PPA / S8A with FFC on July G4, 2018 and April 15, 2016
respectively. Under the PPA / SSA, the Company is obligated to sell and deliver aff output of the Complex, as
defined under PPA / SSA, in accordance with provisions of PPA / SSA.

Revenue from sale of slectricity and steam is recognized when or as the Company satisfies performance
obligation by transferring a promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is transferred when the
customer obtains control of that good or service. The Company principally satisfies its performance obligation
in respect of supply of electricity and steam upon fransmission of electricity and steam to K-Electric and F FC
respectively. However, capacity is recognized when due. Revenues from sale of electricity, steam and capacity
is recognised on the basis of rates determined in accordance with the mechanism laid down in PFA/ S8A ard

notifications from Nationai Electric and Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA}.

The Company applies the right to invoice practical expedient under IFRS 15. However, there is no significant
financing component. The individual components of considerations is billed on monthly basis in accordance
with the terms of PPA / SSA. The payment is due in 30 days after the acknowledgement of the output delivered
invoice and capacity available invoice, respectively. Late payment surcharge, as per the PPA / SSA, on over-
due receivables is recorded on accrual basis at 3-month KIBOR plus 2%. All sales are being made within

Pakistan locally.

Revenue from sale of coal is recognised upon satisfaction of Company's performance obligation, i.e. dispatch
of coal to customers, to the extent where significant reversal is not expected. Provisional revenue is recognised
on items of tariff which are yet to be nofified by NEPRA are recognised on an estimate basis and adjustments if
any are charged to statement of prefit or loss upon decision by NEPRA.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurrad except where such
costs reiate to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are

capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Finance income and finance cost
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested, deposit accounts and dividend income on

~investment in marketable securities. Income on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by

reference to the principal outstanding and the applicable rate of return. Income on investments is recognized
on time proportion basis taking into account the effective yield of such securities.

Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings, amortisation of transaction cost, exchange losses and
bank charges and is recognised in the statement of prafit or loss on accrual basis.

Foreign currency translation and transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated Into functional currency alt exchange rates at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding on the date of
statement of financial position are transtated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevaiting on that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in {he
functional currency at beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year, and
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at statement of financial position date.
Exchange differences are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Acquisition reserve

This reserve represents share of acquisition reserve of associate on account of merger of entire business of
Fauji Cereals into Fauji Foods Limited with effect from February 19, 2024. The reserve will be utilised as per
the instructions of the Baard of directors of FFL or upon disposal of the Company's investment in FFL,
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Building on Plantand  Operational Furniture and Other vehicles Computer Capital work Total
note 4.3 nota 4.4 leasehold tand machinery vehicles fittings and other  in progress
equipments  -note 4.5
Rupees'000 —— ‘
As at January 1, 2023
Cost 191,176 1,449,050 5.875.488 22,305,867 405,446 88,077 141,228 94,887 214,432 30,765 651
Accumulated depreciation - {323,654} (1.020.136) (4,486 842) {75,163) {30,284) (69,210) (89,836} - {6,094,525)
Net book value 191,176 1,125,396 4,856,352 17,819,225 330,283 57,793 72,018 5,051 214,432 24,670,726
Year ended December 31, 2023
Opening net book value 191,176 1,125,396 4855352 17,819225 330,283 57,793 72,018 5,051 214,432 24,670,726
Additions . . - - - - -o- 22,268 24,834 6,942 613,366 667,410
Transfers - - 126,124 645,108 - - .- - (7711,232) -
Inter class fransfers - - 2,160 - - (2.160) - - - -
Disposals
Cost - - - - - 228 27,172 1,100 - 28,500
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - {203) (17,233) {1,059) - {18.535)
- - - - 25 9,939 1 - 9,965
Depreciation
Depreciation charge - 54,897 199,504 778,849 17.014 7,302 25107 4,257 - 1,085,930
Transfers - - 1,892 - - (1,892) - - - -
Depreciation charge - (54,897) {201,396} (778,849} (17,014) (5.410) (25,107) (4,257} - {(1,086,930)
Closing net book value 191,176 1,070,499 4782.240 17685484 313,269 72 466 61,806 7.735 56,566 24,241 241
As at December 31, 2023
Cost 191,176 1,449,050 6,003,772 22,950,975 405,446 107,957 138,890 100,729 56,566 31,404,561
Accumulated depreciation - (378,551) (1,221,532}  (5,265,491) (92,177) {35,481) {77,084) {92,994) - (7,183,320)
Net book value 191,176 1,070,498 4,782,240 17,685,484 313,269 72,466 61,806 7,735 56,566 24,241,244
Year ended December 31, 2024
Opening net book value 191,176 1,070,499 4,782,240 17,685,484 313,269 72,466 61,806 7.735 56,566 24,241,241
Additions - - . - - 236 122,088 7,042 362,117 491,483
Transfers - - 53,483 301,660 - . - . {355,143) -
Disposals
Cost - - - 100,900 - - 41,781 - - 142,681
Aceumulated depreciation - - - {25 477) - (28,959) - - {54,436)
- - - 75,423 - - 12,822 - - 88,245
Deprecialion
Depreciation charge - {54,897} (205,710) (842,409) {17,014) {9,016) (27,273} {5.762) - {1,162,081)
Closing net book value 181,178 1,015,602 4.630,013 17,069,312 296,255 63,686 143,799 8,015 63.540 23,48:2, 398
As at December 31, 2024
Cost 191,176 1,449,050 6,057,255 23,151,735 405,446 108,193 219,197 107,771 63,540 31,753,363
Accumulated depreciation - (433,448) (1,427,242) {6,082 423) {109,191} _{44,507) (75,398) {98,756) - (8,270,965}
Net book value 191,176 1,015,602 4,630,013 17,069,312 296,255 63,686 143,799 9,015 63,540 23,482 358
Rates of depreciation '
% per annum - 3.76% 3.3% 3% -33% 5% 10% 20% 33% -

AT,
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Detail of property, piant and equipment disposed
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Mode of disposal

(12} As per Company policy
(690) As per Company policy

As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy

(486) As per Company policy
(1,537} As per Company policy

As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy
As per Company policy

(3486) As per Company policy

Cost Book value Sale proceeds Gainl{loss)
Rupees'000

Motor vehicle 1,932 290 278
Motor vehicle 2,040 986 296
Motor vehicle 1,955 684 1,007 323
Motor vehicle 1,923 737 944 207
Motor vehicle 1,993 . 831 972 141
Motor vehicle 2,408 - 476 476
Motor vehicle 2408 - 476 476
Motor vehicle 2899 . 43 : 571 523
Motor vehicle 2838 1,041 555
Motor vehicle 3.130 2,143 606
Moter vehicle 1917 128 278 150
Motor vehicle 2,459 - 481 431
Motor vehicle 3,098 2,017 2,081 34
Motor vehicle 4,084 3,063 3,195 132
Molor vehicle 2,580 - 507 507
Motor vehicle 2,049 854 508
Mator vehicle 2,058 - 401 401
Yotal 2024 41,781 12,822 13,602 780
Total 2023 28,500 9,964 9,395 (569}

As per Company policy

Particular of Purchaser

Alt Umair fmran

Syed Adee! Ahmed
Karrar Hussain Nagvi
Basil igbal Khan
Farhan Ahmed Mazari
Shabbir Ahmed Memon
M. Kashif Jamil
Mahboob Ahmad

Syed Sarfaraz Ahmed
Bashir Muhammad
Waris Ali

Shahid Saud Ul Hassan
Soban Bin Zafar

Imran Hyder

Abdul Khalig

Sumair Ahmed Khan
Ahmed Nawaz

Relationship with the Company

Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Executives
Execulives
Execulives
Executives
Execulives
Execulives
Executives
Execulives

During the year two stators of STG 1 & 2, have been disposed off cosling of Rs. 100.9 million and having book value of Rs. 75.4 million. The loss on disposal amounting to Rs. 75.4 milion and insurance

claim of Rs. 603.26 million has been recoginised in lhe financial statements.

The freehold Yand is in Company's possession. however, legal tille is not available with the Company.

The agreement for leasehold land held by the Company contains an oplion for further extension in lease lerm. The cost of righ of use asset over the extended lease term cannot be reasonably ascertained,
The management expects lo ulilize the option for exlension in lease term in order to fulfill its contractual obligations.

Capital work in progress

2024 2023
Rupees "000 Rupees 000
Buildings on leasehold land . 46,801
Plant and machinery 63,540 9,765
63,540 56,566

This represents to the net balance after transfers to building and plant and machinery

The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

2024 2023
Note Rupees "000 Rupees "000
Cost of sales 21 1,158,583 1,083,460
Administrative expenses 2z 3,498 3,470
1,162,081 1,086,930

03740
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5.2

6.1

6.2

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SAP Software

Cost

Balance as at January 01
Addition during the year
Balance as at December 31

-15-

Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Balance as at January 01
Amortization during the year
Balance as at December 31

Carrying amounts as at December 31

Useful life / amortization rate

2024 2023

Rupees '000 Rupees '000
6,344 2,398
50,678 50,678

6,172 -
56,850 50,678
48,280 35,998
2,226 12,282
50,506 48,280
6,344 2,398
33.33% 33.33%

This represents cost of software acquisition and implementation for SAP, SAP SuccessFactors, QlikSense, 3D

Laser Software and SAP S54 HANA.

The amortisation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

LONG TERM INVESTMENT

The Company's interest in associate is as foliows:

Fauji Foods Limited (FFL) - Quoted
Carrying value at year end

Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
Quoted market value
%age shareholding

Movement during the year is as follow:

Balance at start of the year
Investment during the year

Share of profit from associate during the year
Share of OCi from associate during the year
Share of acquigition reserve of FFL

Balance as at end of the year

RATLL-

2024 2023
Note Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000
21 2,226 11,162
22 - 1,120
2,226 12,282
6.2 3,737,906 4,085,621
4,000,000 4,000,000
7,172,000 4,456,000
15.87% 15.87%
4,085,621 -
- 4,000,000
104,191 118,184
153 (32,563)
(452,059) -
3,737,906 4,085,621
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On March 18, 2023, the Company made an investment of Rs 4 billion in Fauji Foods Limited (FFL), a Fauji
Foundation (FF} group entity, by acquiring 400,000,000 ordinary shares at par value of Rs 10 per share giving

the Company an ownership of 15.87% in FFL.

The investment was made under the authority of a special resolution and in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2017 and after obtaining all regulatary approvals. FFL is incorporated in Fakistan and
listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) and engaged in the processing and sale of toned milk, milk powder,
fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. FFL is a subsidiary of FFC and the ultimate parent is FF. This is a

strategic investment of the Company.

As required by SECP, the Company is required to retain its shareholding in these shares for a period of two
years from the date of issuance of shares to the Company.

Although the Company has less than 20 percent shareholding in FFL, this has been treated as an associate
since the Company has representation on its Board of Directors.

For the purpose of acquisition accounting, fair values of acquired net assets were measured provisionally at the
date of acquisition. The management assessed that the transactions between the date of acquisition of
associate [.e March 18, 2023 and the reporting period of the associate i.e March 31, 2023 are not material and,
accordingly, the assels and liakilities as at March 31, 2023 have been considered for the purpose of
determinatian of fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of associate as at the date of acquisition.
During the period, the Company carried out an exercise to firm up the fair values of net assets acquired, to
complete the acquisition accounting within a period of twelve months from the date of acquisition in accordance
with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations'. Accordingly, the fair values of net assets acquired have been revised
and and resultantly a notional goodwill of Rs 1,370.6 million was determined on the basis of notional fair values
as detailed below. The company has assessed that there is no retrospective effect as a result of this revision in
provisional fair values of the net assets acquired, accordingly, no adjustment is required to be made in these

financial statements retrospectively.

Recognised Recognised
values after Amounts
measured on
measurement .
. provisional
pericd .
- basis

Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Purchase consideration paid in cash 4,000,000 4,000,000
Fair value of identifiable net assets 16,565,267 11,794,974
Percentage of identifiable net assets acquired 2,629,446 1,872,245
Goodwill 1,370,554 2,127,755

Brand has been recognised as intangible asset as a result of investment in FFL. The brand amounting to Rs
784.8 million has been treated as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to contribute to net
cash inflows indefinitely based on the analysis of various economic factors which indicated that there is no limit
to the period this asset would contribute to the net cash inflows and, consequently, the said intangible will not
pe amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite, It is lested for impairment annually and whenever

there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

ALY
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The summarized financial information in respect the Fauji Foods Limited is set out below. The summarized
financial information represents the amounts shown in the associate's financial statements for the years ended

December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 is as follow:

6.6

2024 2023
Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Summarised statement of financial position

Current assets 9,094,269 6,876,494
Asset held for sale - 262,655
Non-current assets 9,558,165 9,071,180
Current liabilities {8,801,161) (2,104,527)
Non-current liabilities {336,417) (50,355)
Net Assets (100%) 9,514,856 14,055,427
Reconciliation to carrying amounts :
Opening carrying value of net assets 11,705,427 10,614,389
656,398 774,695

Profit for the year
QOther comprehensive {loss) / income 962 436,932
items directly accounted for in statement of changes in equity

-share deposit money - 2,350,000
-share issuance cost charged against share premium - . (20,589}
-acquisition reserve (2,847,931) -
Net assets 9,514,856 14,055,427
Less: Share deposit money already accounted for in
carrying value of net assets of Rs10,514 thousand
at the date of acquisition - (2,350,000)
9,514,856 11,705,427
Percentage of Shareholding 15.87% 15.87%
Share in net assetls 1,510,317 1,858,031
Goodwill / Goodwill-provisional 1,370,554 2,127,755
Fair value adjustments
- brand - intangibles recognised 778,900 -
- write down i respect of trade debts
- other adjustments 78,135 899,835
Carrying amount 3,737,906 4,085,621
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Revenue 23,404,094 19,370,542
Profit for the year 656,398 605,112
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year 962 436,932
657,360 1,042,044

Total comprehensive income for the year

SYo
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Management has performed an assessment of its investment in FFL and is of the view that recoverable
amount exceeds its carrying value based on multiple factors including the fair market value of its shares etc.
and thereby concluded that the recoverable amount of the investment in FFL exceeds its carrying amount,

2024 2023

STOCK IN TRADE Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Coal 7.1 2,121,862 2,482,617
Limestone 10,255 6,149
2,132,117 2,488,766

This includes Rs. 1,004.34 million coal stock of the Company at the Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Ltd.
site as on December 31, 2024,

2024 2023
TRADE DEBTS Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Trade debts 8.1 3,792,214 4,641,997
Expected credit losses (26,586) (26,588)
3,765,628 4,615,411

This includes Rs. 1,771.30 million (2023: Rs, 2,345.01 million} receivable from the Parent Company. Maximum
amount outstanding during the year was Rs. 4,444.14 million {2023: Rs. 8,548.11 million).

This includes provisional revenue amounting to Rs. 1,893,03 million (2023: Rs. 1,156 million} in respect of ash,
limestone, water, insurance, fuel price adjustment, WPPF, WWF and GST etc.

2024 2023
LOANS, ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Rupees '000 Rupees 000
Advances - considered good

Suppliers 151,691 ” 169,358
Customs clearing agent 149,286 34,372
300,977 203,730
Loan to employees - Secured 9.1 34,983 42,259
Prepayments 165,752 167,583

insurance claim receivable 166,453 -
Sales tax refundable 120,846 169,508
Margin against lefters of credit 558 16,019
Security deposits 5,509 5,509
795,078 604,608

This includes non-interest bearing loans to employees amounting to Rs. 30.61 miliion te management
executives (2023: Rs. 31.69 million) and Rs. 5.97 million to the staff (2023: Rs. 7.45 million). Loan has been
sectioned for the purpose of vehicle and house rent (upto 50% of one year basic pay) under the Company's

poiicy.

‘ ’ 2024 2023
INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Balance at start of the year 287,611 332,330
Advance tax paid during the year 218,504 221,446
Provision of income tax for the year {232,508) (266,165)
Balance as at end of the year 273,607 287,611

SRILY.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand - local currency
Cash at bank - local currency
- Current accounts
- Saving accounts
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Note

111 &11.2
11.3

- 2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
1,255 1,354
1,097 25
2,353,424 2,868,573
2,355,776 2,869,992

The balances in saving accounts carry interest rates ranging from 4.50% to 20.51% (2023: 7.5% to 20.51%) per
annum, This includes accrued interest amounting to Rs. 0.55 million { 2023: Rs. 0.19 million).

This include balance of Rs. 2,204 million (2023: Rs. 3.21 milfion) were held with Askari Bank Limited (related pariy) at

profit rate of 13.5% per annum.

All the bank balances as at year end are heild under lien with banks as explained in note 13.3 (e}.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Short term borrowings
Balance as per cash flow statement

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
900,000,000 (2023: 8300,000,000)

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
858,750,000 (2023: 858,750,000)

Number of shares as at year end

The patterh of shareholding of the Company is as follows:

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Fauji Foundation
Nominee Directors

Note

11
16

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
2,355,776 2,869,992
(7,063,665) (5,536,840)
{4,707,889) {2,666,848)
2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
9,000,000 9,000,000
8,587,500 8,587,500

Number of shares Number of shares

858,750,000 858,750,000
2024 2023
Number of shares shares

644,062,491 644,062,491

214,687,500 214,687,500

9 9

Shares held by Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and Fauji Foundation are pledged under lien as stated in note 13.3

All ordinary share holders have same rights regarding voting, board eiection, right of first refusal and block voting.

HATLL
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LONG TERM FINANCE FACLLITIES

The Company entered into the following long term finance facilities under Commercial and islamic Facilily

arrangements.
Note

Commercial facitity
National Bank of Pakistan
United Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited
Soneri Bank Limited

Bark of Punjab

MCB Bank Limited

Islamic facility

National Bank of Pakistan
Habib Bank Limited

United Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Total syndicate facility 13.1,13.2&13.3

Cther finance facilities: 13.2
Allied Bank Limited - conventional
Faysal Bank Limited - islamic
United Bank Limiled - conventional

Total principal outstanding
Accrued markup

Less:
Current portion of long term finance facilities

Unamortised transaction cosl of long term

finance facilities 13.6

2024
Rupees '000

2023
Rupees '000

1,638,888
454,959
1,033,999
413,599
413,599
520,869

4,575,913

413,599
1,447,598
454,959
620,399
620,399
496,319
413,599 |

4,466,872

9,042,785

1,600,000
600,000
1,000,000

3,200,000

12,242,785
5,778

12,248,561
{3,341,949)

(61,183)

8,845,420

The Company had entered into syndicate long term finance facilities under commercial facility of Rs. 11,062.5 million
and musharika facility of Rs. 10,800 million with various banks, at an interest rate of 3-month KIBOR plus 0.75% per
annum (2023; 3-month KIBOR plus 0.75%). The loan was repayable in 40 guarterly instalments commencing from
June 30, 2017, along with interest for the respective quarters. Any delay in payments to banks by the Company is
subject to liquidated damages at the rate of applicable interest rate plus 2% per annum. During the year, the
Company fully repaid its syndicate long-term financing facilities amounting Rs. 9.04 billion. Syndicate long-term
financing facilities repaid ahead of the scheduled repayment timeline, amounting to Rs. 6.5 billion (comprising Rs.
3.289 billion under the commercial facility and Rs. 3.211 billion under the Musharika facifity). These payments were
made in two tranches: Rs. 3 billion on September 30, 2024, and Rs, 3.5 billion on 2024, By prepaying fhese facilities,
the Company shortened the repayment period from the original maturity date of March 2027 to December 2024.

SR
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The Company entered into syndicate long term finance facilitiy agreement under commercial facility of Rs. 3,250
million and musharika facility of Rs. 750 million on December 29, 2022, at an interest rale of 3-month KIBOR plus
0.5% per annum (2023: 3-month KIBOR plus 0.5%). The facility was availed on March 1, 2023. The loan was
repayable in 20 quarterly instalments commencing from April 01, 2023, along with interest for the respective quarters.
The loans is secured by way of charge on all current and fixed assets (excluding land and building together with
encumbered in favour of working capital lenders). During the year, Company repaid the entire outstanding loan
amounting Rs. 3.2 billion. Sndicate long-term financing faciiities repaid ahead of the scheduled repayment timeline,
amounting to Rs. 2.4 billion (comprising Rs. 1.950 billion under the syndicate term finance facility and Rs. 450 million
under the Musharika facility) ahead of the scheduled payment timeline, by prepaying these facilities, the Company
shortened the repayment period from the original maturity date of December 2027 to December 2024,

Facilities mentioned above are secured by way of, inter alia:

{a) First ranking pari passu charge up to Rs. 29,150 miilion by way of hypothecation on all present and future moveable
and immoveable fixed assets {other than land and building) of the Company;

{b) Mortgage over land in favor of lenders;

(c) First pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future current assets of the Company (excluding all present
and future fuel stock and inventories and any charge over any accounts of the Company opened in relation to working
capital or any accounts currently opened by the Company with other banks for the purposes of the letter of credit

issuance};

(d} Assignment of Company's receivables from its off-takers in favor of financiers (excluding Energy Purchase Price -
Receivables);

{e) Lien on all project accounts opened with various banks;

{fi An assignment of all project insurances as co-loss payee or assignee except for the working capital lender's
securities;

(g) Share representing 100% of the paid up share capital of the Company have been pledged with the security trustee of
the syndicate financiers.

(h) Undertaking by the Holding Company for uncapped support to fund any payment shortfall i.e. amount less than the
required finance payment balance up o technical completion date and thereafter up to financing service cap i.e. Rs

8,000 million till debt repayment;

Significant covenants of abave facility include maintenance of financing service coverage ratio (FSCR), current ratio,
financing to equity ratio, financing life coverage ratio and forecast FSCR.

In addition to, following actions require prior consent of the lenders:

- disposal of assets;
- modification or amendment in any key project contract;

- transfer or allotment of new shares;
- incurring any new financial indebtedness;

- disbursement of dividend; and
" creation of further higher/fequal ranking security on Company's assets.

Further covenants under this loan relate 1o the operations of the Company.

Since the Company has settled the entire long term loan, therefore the process for release of above mentioned
securily package has been Initiated by the Company with the lenders,

VY1
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Noie

Unamortised transaction cost

Balance at start of the year

Addition during the year

Amortisation during the year 25
Balance as at end of the year

Detail of actuarial valuation of deferred employee benefits

Present value of defined benefit obiigation 14.1

Payable to outgoing employees
Net liability

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Balance at start of the year

Interest cost

Benefits due but not paid (payables)

Benefits paid

Remeasurement (gain)./ loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation

Balance as at end of the year

Expenses recognized in profit and loss account

Gain and losses arising on present value of defined benefit obligation
Interest cost

Changes in net liability

Liability at beginning of the year
Charged fo profit and loss
Benefits paid

Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate used for interest cost charged to profit and ioss
Discount rate used for period end obligation

Salary increase used for year end obligations is as under:
Salary increase FY 2024

Salary increase FY 2025

Salary increase FY 2026

Salary increase FY 2027

Salary increase FY 2028

Salary increase FY 2029

Salary increase FY 2030 onward

Mortality rates
Retirement assumption

53]

2024 2023
Rupees '00¢ Rupees '000
61,183 66,443
45,704 31,806
(106,887} (37,0686)
- 61,183
203,637 180,536
957 71
204,524 190,607
190,536 184,437
29,531 23177
(957) (71)
{17,565} {25,550}
2,092 8,543
203,637 190,536
2,092 8,545
29,531 23177
31,623 31,722
190,607 184,436
31,623 31,721
(17,638) {25,550
204,594 190,607
16.00% 13.25%
12.00% 16.00%

N/A 16.00%
17.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%

SLIC 2001-2005
Age 60

SLIC 2001-2005
Age 60
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Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above. The following table
summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased /

(decreased) as a result of a change in respeclive assumptions by one percent.

2024
Effect of 1% increase Rupees '000
Discount rate (15,958)
Salary 16,372
Effect of 1% decrease
Discount rate 16,234
Salary {16,362)
2025
Rupees '000
Expected benefit payment 15,079
) 2024 2023
DEFERRED TAXATION Note Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000
The balance of deferred tax is in respect of following temporary
differences:
Accelerated tax depreciation 779,489 766,704
Share of Profit rom associate 47,491 21,405
Alternate Corporate Tax _ 15.1 (94,464) (68,530)
Minimum Tax 15.2 - (31,581)
732,516 687,998

Defarred tax asset on alternate corporate tax amounting to Rs. 19.78 million, Rs.13.65 million, Rs.16.42 million, Rs.
18.69 miflion and Rs, 25.93 million will expire In financial year 2028, 2029, 2030, 2031 and 2033 respectively.

Deferred tax asset on minimum tax amounting to Rs. 31.58 million has been adjusted during the year.

2024 2023
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Principal balance outstanding 16.1 7,026,603 5,307,092
Accrued markup 37,062 229,748
16.2 7,063,665 5,536,840

The facilities for short term running finances, available from various banks, aggregate o Rs. 10 million (2023: Rs.
8,000 million). The rate of inlerest on the overdraft facilities during the year ended December 31, 2024 ranging from 1-
month to 3-month KIBOR and spread ranging -2% to 0.15% (2023: 0.10% to 0.20%) per annum. As of reporting date,

un-availed facilities amounts to Rs. 2,936 million (2023: Rs. 2,693 million).

SXRFL.
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The facilities are secured by way of assignment over present and future energy purchase price receivables,
hypothecation charge on stocks / inventory of the Company, liens over accounts established in connection with the
faciiities, ranking hypoihecation charge over lhe present and fulure fixed assets (excluding land and bailding) and

16.2

liens over import documents.

2024 2023
. Note Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000
17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 17.1 1,001,986 194,763
Accrued expenses 617,747 416,761
Retention money payable 6,133 11,744
Payable to Employees’ Provident Fund - 3,108
Payable to Employees’ Gratuity Fund 17.2 25,437 21,183
Payable against [eave fair assistance 52,458 47,724
Payable to Workers' Profit Participation Fund 17.3 353,536 T 223,941
Payable to Workers' Welfare Fund 15,276 9,604

128,675 102,976

Withholding tax payable
Other payables 21,242 20,236

This includes Rs, 212.46 million (2023: Rs. 143.79 million) payable to the Parent Company against materials /
services received and use of common facility, during the year. The related invoice is received on a monthily basis with

a credit period of 30 days.

171

2024 2023
17.2  Payable to employees’ gratuity fund Rupees '000 Rupees '000
The details of actuarial valuation of staff gratuity fund carried out
Present value of defined benefit obligation 17.2.1 173,229 146,357
Fair value of plan assets 17.2,2 (148,997) (125,174)
Payables 1,205 -
Net liability ' 17.2.5 25,437 21,183
17.2.1 Changes in present value of defined benefit
obligations
Balance at start of the year 146,357 113,078
Current service cost 25,337 21,814
Interest cost 21,957 15,253
Remeasurement (gain) / loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation (2,173) 8,300
Benefits due but not paid (Payables) (1,205)
Benefits paid {17,044} {12,088)
Balance as at end of the year 173,229 146,357
17.2.2 Changes in fair value of plan assets
Balance at start of the year 125,174 90,375
Contributions 21,183 22,703
Interest income on plan assets 20,359 13,635
Benefits paid {17,044) (12,088)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (675) 10,549
Balance as at end of the year 17.2.6 148,997 125,174

AT,
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17.2.5

17.2.6

17.2.7
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Expenses recognized in profit and loss account

Current service cost
Interest cost
Interest income on plan assets

Gains recognized in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gain from changes in democgraphic assumptions
Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions

Experience adjustments
Remeasurement loss on present value of defined benefit

obligation
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income

Changes in net liability

Balance at beginning of the year
Charged to profit and loss
Remeasurement in other comprehensive income

Contributions paid

Plan assets comprise of

Short term investments
Cash at bank

Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate used for interest cost charged to profit and loss
Discount rate used for period end cbligation

Salary increase used for year end obligations is as under:
Salary increase FY 2024

Salary increase FY 2025

Salary increase FY 2026

Salary increase FY 2027

Salary increase FY 2028

Salary increase FY 2029

Salary increase FY 2030 onward

Meortality rates

Retirement assumplion

SAggs.

Note

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '0CC

25,337 21,814
21,957 15,253
{20,359) (13,635)
26,935 23,432

- 1,180

6,315 328
{8,488) 6,822
{2,173) 8,300
675 (10,549)
{1,498) (2,249)
21,183 22,703
26,935 23,432
(1,498) (2,249}
{21,183} {22,703)
25,437 21,183
148,796 124,789

201 385
148,997 125,174

16.00% 14.25%
12.00% 16.00%

N/A 16.00%
17.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%
12.00% 16.00%

SLIC 2001-2005
Setback 1 year
Age 60

SLIC 2001-2005
Setback 1 year

Age 60
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17.2.8 Sensitivity analysis

17.3

18

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to assumptions set out above, The following table
summarizes how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have increased /

(decreased) as a result of a change in respective assumptions by one percent.

2024 2023
Effect of 1% increase Note Rupees '000 Rupees ‘000
Discount rate (14,208) (12,130)
Salary 16,553 14,223
Effect of 1% decrease
Discount rate 16,479 14,071
Salary (14,538) (12,483)
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 2024 is 09 years (2023: 09 years).
Estimated Expenses to be charged to statement of profit or loss 2025
Rupees '000
Current service cost 26,691
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 20,135
Interest Income on plan assets {18,498)
Amount chargedabie to statement of profit or loss 28,328
Expected benefit payment 10,879
2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Payable to Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Baiance at start of the year 223,941 221,799
Charge for the pencd 23 353,536 223,941
Amount paid {223,941} {221,799)
Balance as at end of the year 353,536 223,941

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

This balance comprises of the advances received on account of lechnical services.

.
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CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The Inland Revenue authorities (IR Authorities) framed an order under section 161/182/205 of the Ordinance for the
Tax Year 2015 and 2016 on October 27, 2017 whereby, tax demand of Rs. 1,168 million inclusive of default surcharge
and penalty was created for alleged non-deduction of tax on foreign payments, local payments, and reimbursement to
the parent company, 'Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited’. Being aggrieved with the order, the Company preferred an
appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A), who whilst adjudicating the appeal set aside the
principal demand along with default surcharge and penalty and remanded the case back to the assessing officer for
reconsideration, Being aggreived with the order of CIR-A the Company filed an appeal before the Appeliate Tribunal

intand Revenue (the ATIR) which is subjudice till date.

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) tax authorities framed Order in Original No.191 of 2018 dated March 28, 2018 [the
Order, 191] with respect to alleged non-withholding and deposit of Sindh sales tax of Rs.78.32 million on expense of
Rs.564.40 million claimed under the head 'professional services' in the annual accounts for the Years 2015 and 2016.
Through the Order, the SRB fax authorities along with the principal sales tax demand has charged penally of Rs.
82.23 million and default surcharge. Being aggrieved with the Qrder, the Company preferred an appeal befare the
Commissioner (Appeals), SRB Karachi [the CA{SRB)] which was heard for orders on January 17, 2020. Furthermore,
the stay has been granted by the Honorable High Court, however the Appellate order of the CA(SRB) is still awaited.

The IR authorities framed an Order-in-Original 11/26 of 2024 dated January 03, 2024 and raised the sales tax
demand of Rs. 89.9 million in respect of inadmissible claim of input tax for the tax period from January 2020 to June
2023. The Company has filed an appeal before the CIR-A against the impugned order which was remanded back to
the assessing officer for reconsideration. The matter is outsanding with the assessing officer for further proceeding.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (the ADCIR) framed an order under section 122(9)/122(5A) of the
Ordinance for the Tax Year 2018. The ADCIR challenged the basis of allocation of expenses belween exempt income,
income subject to final tax regime and normal tax regime. Further, the ADCIR have also challenged the claim of

deductible allowances on account of Workers Welfare Fund. Being aggrieved with the order, the Company has filed
an appeal before the CIR-A who upheld the Order of the ADCIR through Appeliate Order dated July 05, 2023, Being

aggrieved with the order of the CIR-A the Company filed an appeal before the ATIR which is subjudice till date.

The management of the Company is of the view that the ultimate outcome of these cases are expected to be
favorable and liability, if any, arising on the settlement of these cases is not likely lo be material. Accordingiy, no

provision has been made in the financial statements in this regard.

Commitments

(i) Commitments include those in respect of capital expenditure for an aggregrate of amount Rs. 328.03 million
(2023: Rs. 74.47 million).

The outstanding amount against letters of credit is Rs. 157.91 million (2023: Rs. 2,337.47 million) out of lotal
facility of Rs. 13,800 million (2023: Rs. 11,425 million). The aggregate facilities for opening of lelters of credit's

are secured by lien on valid import documents.

NATS.
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2024 2023
REVENUE - NET Note Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000
Sale of electricity : _
Energy 11,578,825 10,727,242
Capacity 11,596,800 10,296,678
23,175,625 21,623,920
Sale of steam :
Energy 8,866,387 ] 8,470,289
Capacity 2,578,518 2,810,008
11,444,905 11,280,257
383,510 223,578

Pass through items charged

Less:
Sales tax 4,921,155 4,102,870
Advance income tax from customers 20.2 586,064 367,349
5,507,219 4,470,319
Sales - net of government taxes 29,506,821 28,057,476

Sales to K-Electric have been recognised in the financial statements on the basis of the signed PPA and
tariff approved by NEPRA vide its lefter dated February 09, 2022. The tariff is further indexed as notified by

NEPRA from time to time.

This represents advance income tax invoiced at the rate of 5% under section 235 of the Income Tax
Ordinance 2001, on the gross amount of electricity sold to industrial consumer - the Parent Company.

Revenue from sale of electricity and steam is recognized over time, when the Company safisfies
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service lo a customer, Revenue pertaining to
capacity charge is recognized point over time when due, on the basis of rates determined in accordance with

the mechanism laid down in PPA/SSA.

(nsurance claim

This income pertains to insurance claim for business interruption resulting from technical fauits with Steam
Turbine Generators (STG) 1 and 2, which experienced trips on May 5, 2023, and March 7, 2023,

respectively.

2024 ] 2023

Disaggregation of revenue from Rupees '060 Rupees '000
contract with customer
Electricity 19,747,643 18,395,856
Steam 9,759,178 9,661,620
Tofal revenue from contracts with customers 29,506,821 28,057,476
Customer
K-Electric Limited 10,186,425 11,203,268
Parent Company . 20,51 19,320,396 16,854,208

29,506,821 28,067 478

This relates to the defunct FFBL and thereafter to the merged eniity i.e. FFC.

URILL.
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2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
- 21 COST OF SALES
Raw materials consumed 2141 17,493,425 16,017,953
Ash dumping charges 10,930 17,029
- Depreciation 4.6 1,158,583 1,083,460
Amortization 5 2,226 11,162
Salaries, wages and other benefits 21.2 1,272,360 1,145,279
= insurance 335,294 250,698
Facilities and utilities 21.3 275,514 331,046
Stores and spares consumed 421,071 467,036
- Traveliing and lodging 123,315 93,671
Repair, maintenance and related costs 21.4 575,785 469,815
Communication, establishment & others expenses 125,744 129,979
21,794,247 20,017,128
21.1 Raw material consumed include Rs. 786.94 million (2023: Rs. 448.83 million) charged by the Parent
B Company as per cost sharing agreement.
21.2 This includes charges on account of employees’ retirement benefits in respect of the gratuity fund amounting
- Rs. 24.48 million (2023: Rs. 21.48 million), provident fund amounting Rs. 26.85 million (2023: Rs. 24.90
million) and deferred employee benefits amounting Rs, 35.47 million (2023: Rs. 29.56 million).
21.3 This includes Rs. 230.98 million (2023: Rs. 255.13 million) charged by the Parent Company under cost
sharing agreement and Rs. 286.42 million (2023: Rs. 14.25 million) charged by ultimate parent, Fauji
- Foundation.
21.4 This includes Rs. 139.48 miilion (2023; Rs. 76.56 million) in respect of air freight charges for inspection of
- rotor and repair works for STGs.
2024 2023
Note Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000
- 22 ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 22.1 111,953 94,481
N Depreciation 4.6 3,488 3,470
Amortization 5 - 1,121
Travelling and conveyance 9,515 " 8,634
- Lega! and professional charges 20,680 22,890
Printing, stationery & supplies 1,242 568
Fee and subscription 739 : 3,140
Utilities and communication 8,173 10,595
Insurance 2,124 2,135
Auditors' remuneration 22.2 3,285 1,731
Others 7,977 4,215
169,186 152,980

SIRHL
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This includes charges on account of employees’ retirement benefits in respect of the gratuity fund amounting
Rs. 2.46 million {2023: Rs. 1.96 million), provident fund amouniing Rs. 2.71 million {2023: Rs. 2.41 million}
and deferred employee benefits amounting Rs. 3.56 miillion (2023: Rs. 2.21 miilion).

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Auditors’ remuneration Note Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Statutory audit fee 1,100 861
Certifications, FFBL merger related special audit etc 1,780 590
Out of pocket expenses 405 280
3,285 1,731
_ 2024 2023
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 353,536 223,941
Workers' Welfare Fund 14,722 8,974
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) 23.1 69,660 54,240
437,918 287,155

This amount refates to contribution towards CSR initigtives undertaken by the Fauji Foundation during the
year with the approval of the Board.

2024 2023
OTHER INCOME Rupees '000 Rupees 000
Income from financial assets
Interest on bank deposits
& short term investments 24.1 73,937 14,377
Income from non-financial assets
Sale of scrap 52,141 33,256
Loss on disposal of STG 1 & 2 Stator's 4.2 (75,423) -
Insurance claim 24,2 603,255 -
Gain / (Loss) on vehicles disposal 4.1 780 {569)
528,612 (569)
Technical services 35,197 -+ 32,499
Others 33 5,967
615,983 71,153

This inciudes profit of Rs. 1.53 million (2023 Rs. 0.35 miillion) received on deposit hald with Askari Bank
Limited (a related party). '

The insurance claim of Rs. 603.26 Million pertains to the newly procured stators for STG 1 & 2.

St
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FINANCE COST

Interest on long term finance facilities
Interest on short term borrowings
Amortization of transaction cost
Exchange loss

Bank charges

TAXATION

Current tax

- Current year
- Prior year
Deferred tax

- Current year

- Prior year

Reconciliation of tax charge for the year
Accounting profit before tax

Tax at applicable tax rate of 39% (2023: 39%)
Tax effect of exempt income

Tax effect of prior year charge
Tax effect of alternate corporate tax / minimum tax

Impact of difference in tax rate on investment in associate

Deferred tax impact of prior year charge
Others

AT

2024 2023

Rupees '000 Rupees '000
2,110,703 2,985,194
267,583 938,622
106,887 37,0686
22,885 251,835
1,203 1,148
2,509,261 4,213,765
259,730 229,620
(27,222) 36,545
44,396 80,064

- 94,781
276,904 441,010
7,780,443 4,459,657
3,034,373 1,739,266
(2,689,884) (1,378,747)
(27,222) 36,545
{31,581) (73,086)
{14,587) (16,548)

- 94,781

5,805 38,797
276,904 441,010
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy. :

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial Fairvalue Financial

assets at through  liabilities at Total Level Level Level Total

amortized profit or amortized 1 2 3

cost loss cost ’
December 31, 2024 Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade dehts 3,765,628 - - 3,765,628 - - - -
Loans, advances, prepayments & other 673,674 - - 673,674 - - - -
receivables
Bank balances 2,365,776 - - 2,355,776 - - - -
Total 6,795,078 - - 6,795,078 - - - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade & other payables - - 2,222,480 2,222,480 - . - -
Short term borrowings including mark-up - - 7,063,665 7,063,665 - - - -
Long term loan including mark-up - - - - - - - -
Total . - - 9,286,155 9,286,155 - - - -
Carrying value Fair value
Financial . Financial
Fair value . ...
assets at liabilities at Level Level Level
) through ) Total Total
amoitized amortized 1 2 3
profit or loss
cost cost

December 31, 2023 Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade debts 4,615,411 - - 4,615,411 - - - -
Loans, advances, prepayments & other - - - - - -
receivables 419,081 419,081
Short term investment - - - - - - - -
Bank balances 2,860,992 - - . 2,869,092 - - - -
Total 7,904,484 - - 7,804,484 - - - -

Financial liabifities not measured al fair vaiue
Trade & other payables

Short term borrowings including mark-up
tong term loan including mark-up

Total

- - 1,076,109 1,076,108 - - - -
- 5,536,840 5,536,840 - - - -
- 14,729,366 14,729,366 - - - -
- 21,342,315 21,342,315 - - -

The table analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as

follows:
Level 1; quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Jiabilities
Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e., as

prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or [iability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs).

AL -
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28.1

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's risk management pelicies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's aclivities. The Company, through ils
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment

in which all employees understand their roles,

The Board of Directors of the Company oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the

risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The

maximum exposure (o credit risk at the reporling date was as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees 000 Rupees "000

Trade debls 3,792,214 4,641,997
Loans, advances, prepayments & other receivables 673,674 419,081
Bank balances 2,354,521 2,868,598
The ageing of trade debts of related party (FFC) at the reporting date is as foliows:
- not yet due 1,747,150 2,327,952
- from 31 to 90 days 4,331 12.960
- from 91 to 180 days 3,418 4,607
- over 180 days 16,396 -

1,771,295 2,345,519
The ageing of trade debts other than related party at the reporting date is as follows:
- not yet due ) 468,786 1,149,487
- from 31 to 90 days 140,581 170,368
- from 91 1o 180 days 17,404 58,442
- over 180 days 1,394,148 918,181

2,020,912 2,296,478

Nix Vel
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The credit quality financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credil
ratings {if available) or to historical information about counterpany defauit rate.

Short Long Agency 2024 2023
Term Term Rupees '000 Rupees '000
Trade debts:
Counterparties with external
credit rating
K-Electric Limited A1+ AA VIS 1,914,519 2,196,338
FFC- parent company A1+ AA+ VIS 1,771,295 2,345,015
3,685,814 4,541,353
Counterparties without external
credit rating
Others 106,400 100,644
3,792,214 4,641,997

Expected credit loss was calculated on trade debts using simplified approach, while expected credit loss on others was
calculated using general approach. The Company has estimated that, as of reporting date the ECL on trade debts and

other receiveable is insignificant to these financial statements.

2024 2023
Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Counterparties without exlernal credit rating
Loans, advances, prepayments & other receivables 673,674 419,081

Short term investments and bank balances:

The Company's short term invesiments and bank balances are subject to the requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as the counter parlies have reasonably high credit ratings.

Short Long Agency 2024 2023

Banks balances: Term Term Rupees '000 Rupees '000

Counterparties with external credit rating

National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA VIS 102,099 4,149
Habib Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 31,196 1,087,918
Meezan Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 95 178
United Bank Limited Al+ AAA VIS 8,603 7.227
Sitk Bank Limited Al+ AA VIS 13 11
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA VIS 106 i5
Bank Affalah Limited A+ AAA PACRA 6,214 5,415
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA ' 424 591
Dubai [slamic Bank Al+ AA VIS 87 79
Bank of Punjab At+ AA+ PACRA 215 394
JS Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1 -
Askari Bank Limited A+ AA+ . PACRA 2,204,362 1,762,616
Habib Metropolitan Bank Al+ AA+ PACRA 29 -
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 1,077 5
: 2,354,521 - 2,868,508

Being low risk instruments, the Company has assessed an allowance on its balances with banks based on 12 monlis
ECL.. Based upon above mentioned high credit ratings, ECL rate on bank balances and short term investments round to

zero.
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28.2 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet ils
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities excluding the impacl of

netting agreements:
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at December 31, 2024

Trade & other  Short term Long term
payables borrowings finance facilities Total
Rupees '000
Carrying amounts 1,647,108 7,063,665 - 8,710,773
Contractual cashflows 1,647,108 7,063,665 - 8,710,773
1,647,108 7,063,665 - 8,710,773

Six months or less
Six to tweive months
One 10 two years
Two to five years
Later than five years

Contraciual malturities of financial liabilities as at December 31, 2023

Trade & other Shortterm  Long term finance

payables borrowings facilities Total
Rupees '000
Carrying amounts 643,504 5,636,840 12,187,378 18,367,722
Contractual cashflows 643,504 5,536,840 14,729,366 20,809,710
Bix months or less 643,504 5,636,840 2,261,112 8,441,456
Six to twelve months - - 2,227 646 2,227.646
One to two years - - 4,348,759 4,348,759
- - 5,891,849 5,891,849

Two to five years
Later than five years

28.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates
or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative
activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposed to currency, price and

interest rate risk only.

Price risk
The Company exposure to equity securities price risk arise from investment held by the Company in FFL and classified in
the statement of financial position at the fair value.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables

that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.
Financial liabilities include Rs. 501.10 million (2023; Rs. 14.84 million) which are subject to currency risk.

WxATL.
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The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on following amounts

2024 2023
US Dollars 1,798,432 44,050
Euro 1,000 21,020

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Average rates

Reporting date rate

2024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
US Dellars 278.48 282.81 278.85 282.40
Euro 301.24 306.41 289.66 313.11

Sensitivity analysis

A 15% strenglhening of the functional currency against foreign currencies at December 31, 2024 would have increased
the profit by Rs. 65.36 million (2023; Rs. 1.94 miltion). A 15% weakening of the functional currency against foreign
currencies at December 31, 2024 would have had the equal but opposite effect of these amounts. The analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Interest rale exposure arises from current account with the Parent Company, short and
long term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing

financial instruments is: ‘
Effective interest rates Carrying amount

2024 2023 2024 2023
Variable rate instruments Rupees '000 Rupeeas '000

Financial assets

Cash & Bank balances 4.5% to 20.51% 7.5% 10 20.51% 2,355,776 2,869,992
Financial liabilities
1-month to 3~
month KIBOR 1-month to 3- .
and spread month KIBOR
ranging -2% to  plus 0.10% to
Shaort term borrowings 0.15% 0.20% 7,063,665 5,536,840
3-month KIBOR
and spread 3-month KIBOR
ranging from plus 0.5% to
Long term finance facilities 0.5% to 0.758% 0.75% - 12,187.378
7,063,665 17,724,218

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheel date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 400 basis points in interest rates through out the year would have increased / (decreased) profit by the
amounis shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular fareign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact on profit for the year

400 basis points 400 basis
increase points
Rupees '000 Rupees "000
Cash flow sensitivity
Variable rate instruments - 2024 (188,316) 188,316
(594,169) 594,169

Variable rate instruments - 2023

ARSI
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28 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

30

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as o maintain investor and creditor confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the
Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also
monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to
capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The total net debt to equity ratio as at December 31, 2024 based on reported value of debt and equity was
17%:83% (2023: 45%:55%)

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with view
of maintaining an appropriate mix between various source of finance for optimal risk mitigation.

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Liabilities
Long term Others Total
finance facilities
Rupees '000
Balance at January 1, 2024 12,187,378 - 12,187,378
Changes from non-cash items
Interest accrual reversed (5,776) - (5,776)
Addition in transaction costs (45,704) - (45,704}
Amortisation of transaction costs 106,887 - 106,387
Dividend declared ‘ - - -
55,407 - 55,407

Total changes from non-cash items
Changes from financing cash flows

Repayment of long term loan
Receipt ¢f long term loan
Dividend paid

Total changes from finéncing cash flows

Balance at December 31, 2024

(12,242,785)

- (12,242,785)

(12,242,786)

R (12,242,785)

Liabilities

Long term
finance facilities

Others Total

Rupees 000

Balance at January 1, 2023 11,326,936 - 11,326,936
Changes from non-cash items
Interest accrual reversed 5,776 - . 5776
Addition in transaction costs (31,808) - (31,808)
Amortisation of transaction costs 37,086 - 37,086
Dividend declared 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Total changes from non-cash items 3,011,036 - 3,011,036
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of long term loan {3.150.594) - {(3.150,594)
Receipt of long term loan 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Dividend paid {3,000,000) - (3,000,000}
Total changes from financing cash flows (2,150,594) - (2,150,594)
12,187,378 - 12,187,378

Balance at December 31, 2023

G
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Note

DISCLOSURE IN RELATION TO
SHARIAH COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

b
Financing obtained as per Islamic mode
Long term finance facilities 13
Short term borrowings 16
Mark-up acerued 13& 16
Shariah-compliant bank balances 11
Statement of profit or loss & other
comprehensive income
Revenue earned 20
Profit paid on Shariah Compliant financing 25
Shariah compliant other income
Profit earned from bank deposits 24
Sale of scrap 24
Gain / (Loss) on vehicles disposal 24
Technical services 24
Others 24
Non-Shariah compliant other income
Profit earned from bank deposits 24
Gain / (Loss) on assets disposal - insurance claim 20.4

Relationship with Shariah-Compliant

National Bank of Pakistan
Habib Bank Limited
United Bank Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank
Meezan Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited
Sindh Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited

WAL

2024
Rupees "000

3,800,000
13,133

100,704

29,506,821

974,550

16,016
52,141
780
35,197
33

57,920
527,832

2023
Rupees '000

5,066,872
1,499,906

144,752

4,082

28,057,476

1,411,784

962
33,256

(569)
32,499
5,967

13,415
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Company is @ subsidiary of Fauji Ferilizer Company Limited (FFC)} with 75% holding (2023: defunct FFBL held 75%
shares in the Company) . FFC is sponsored by Fauji Foundation {FF) which hoids 43.51% shares in the hoiding company and
28% shares of the Company. Therefore, all subsidiaries and associated undertakings of FF and FFC are ralated parties of the
Company, The Company has also acquired 15.87% equity stake in Fauji Foods Limited (FFL).

The Company has related parties which comprise of entities under common directorship, directors and key management
personnel, Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in

these financial statements, are as follows:

Nature of relationship 2024 2023
Rupees ‘000 Rupees '000

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (2023:FFBL) Parent Company

Balance payable as at 212,464 143,788
Balance receivable as at 1,771,295 2,345,519
Raw materials and services received from parent company 1,076,620 798,491
Sale of electricity, power and steam 19,033,110 16,704,498
Charged to parent company in respect of utilities / other costs 310,223 149,711
Rendering of technical services 3,574 446
Payments made 1,407,143 852,937
Dividend paid - 2,250,000
Receipts ‘ 24,087,763 25,844,363
Fauji Foundation Ultimate Parent

Payments for CSR initiatives 69,660 54,240
Payments for costs charged against services 20,418 14,252
Dividend paid - 750,000
Fauji Foods Limited Associate

Investment 4,000,000 4,000,000
Askari Bank Limited - Common Directorship

Profit on PLS account 1,527 352
Mark up on long term loan - 78,282
Balance held with bank 2,204,362 1,762,616
Fauji Cement Company Limited Common Directorship

Rendering of services 138 -
Recelvable 19 -
Receipts 187 -
Fauji Trans Terminal Limited Common Directorship

Rendering of services 939 463
Recelvable ) - 8
Receipts 1,090 531
Foundation Power Company Dharki Ltd. Common Directorship

Rendering of services - 1,079
Receipts - 1,219
Fauji Meat Limited Common Directorship

Rendering of services - 175
Receipis - 198

HrAFAL
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Other Related Parties
Key Management Personnel

Directors
FPCL Employees’ Provident Fund

Remuneration
Meeting fee
Contributions
Payable
Provision
Payment
Payabie
Provision
Payment
Payable

FPCL Employees' Gratuiiy Fund

FPCL Workers' Profit Participation Fund

The pattern of shareholding of the Company is as follow;

FFC
FF
Nominee Directors

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2024
Rupees '000

126,878
2,105
29,559
26,936
21,183
25,437
353,536
223,941
353,536

Number of
shares
644,062,491
214,687,500
8

2023
Rupees '000

122,176
2,485
27,305
3,109
23,431
22,703
21,183
223,91
221,799
223,941

Number of shares

644,062,441
214,687,500
9

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the period in respect of remuneration, including certain benefits

are given below:

2024
Rupees '000 Rupees '000
' L Directors } Executives Directors Executives —]

Meeling fee 2,105 - 2,465 -
Managerial remuneration - 193,923 .- 153,631
Housing and Utilities Allowance - 193,994 - 153,674
Contribution to provident fund - 19,437 - 15,363
Contribution to gratuity fund - 20,128 - 17,191
Bonus - 120,834 - 180,520
Others - 112,811 - 77,669

2,105 661,127 2,465 568,048
Number of persons 14 72 11 a2

For the purpose of this disclosure, Executive means an employee other than Chief Executive Officer and directors ol the
Company whose basic salary exceeds Rs 1.2 million for the year.

Chief Executive Officer of the Parent Company is serving as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. No remuneration to the
Chief Executive Officer is paid or payable by the Company in this respect.

Certain executives are also provided with the use of company maintained car and fuel amounting to Rs. 34.23 million (2023;
Rs. 30.46 millien) in accordance with the terms of their employment.

AHL .
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2024 2023

Megawatt

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTICN

Electricity

Instalied capacity based on 8,784 hours (2023: 8,760 hours) 641,232 639,480

Actuzal energy delivered 483,620 410,235
Metric ton

Steam

Installed capacity based on 8,784 hours (2023: 8,760 hours) 1,756,800 1,752,000

1,529,226 1,312,031

Actual steam delivered

RECALSSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and raclassified as follows, for the purposes of comparison and betler
presentation as per reporting framework. However, the change in corresponding figures has no material impact on previously

reported financial position, financial performance and cashilow of the Company.

Rectassified from Reclassifed to Rupees '000
Trade and other payables Contract liabilities 24,068
Cost of sales Other operating expenses 44,661
Administrative expenses Other operating expenses 9,679
GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

2024 2023

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES Number of employees

331 314

Total employees at end of the year
322 315

Average employees during the year

I_hese financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting heid on

PA

CA],;/M”' MLA_

CUTIVE D R CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

»
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EXPRESSIONS OF INTEREST TO PROVIDE CREDIT OR
FINANCING ALONG WITH SOURCES AND DETAILS



FFBL POWER COMPANY LIVHTED (FPLL)

Expressions of Interest for Credit and Financing

In support of the proposed distribution arrangements to FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited
(FoST), FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) has initiated financing efforts in line with the capital

requirements of the project.
For the FoST infrastructure, the total estimated capital cost of USD 3.1 million is being fully met

through internal equity contributions by the Fauji Group. No external borrowing is associated
with this portion of the project, and financial closure for this component has already been

internally secured.
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DOCUMENTS DESCRIBING THE NET WORTH AND
THE EQUITY AND DEBT RATIOS OF THE APPLICANT



VIS credit Rating Company Limited www.vis.com.pk

RATING REPORT

_ FFBL Power Company Limited

REPORT DATE:

March 27, 2025 RATING DETAILS

RATING ANALYST: Latest Rating Previous Rating |

Saeb Jafri \ Rating Category Long-  Short- Long- Short-

saeb.jafri@uvis.com.pk term term term term
Entity AA Al AA- Al
Rating Date March 27, 2025 December 20, 2023
Rating Outlook Stable Stable
Rating Action Upgrade Reaffirmed

COMPANY INFORMATION

External auditors: M/s AF Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Public Limited Company Chairman of the Board: Anwar Ali Hyder
Key Shareholders (with stake 5% or
more):

Fauji Fertilizer Conpany Limited (FEC) ~75%
Fawji Foundation (FE) ~25%

Incorporated on June 27, 2014

Chief Executive Officer: Jahangir Piracha

APPLICABLE METHODOLOGY
Applicable Rating Criteria and Rating Scale:

Corporates https:/ /docs.vis.com.pk/docs/CorporateMethodology.pdf

Rating Scale & Definitions https://docs.vis.com.pk/docs/VISRatingScales pdf
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operations have expanded from an initial paid-up capital of Rs 18.2 million, evolving
into a diversified industrial and service-based network that supports both financial
sustainability and social welfare programs.

Corporate Governance

The board of FPCL comprises 9 members, including 1 executive director (the CEO)
and 8 non-executive directors, Thete are no female directors on the board, The
Company has three board committees: the Audit Committee, Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee and Technical Committee, responsible for governance
oversight in their respective areas. The Company has room for further improvement
in its corporate governance framework and may enhance it with an addition of a
female representative on the board.

Operational Rerformance:
The annual capacity factor for CY24 was noted higher with increased demand from
its parent FFC during the year. However, the availability factor during the year was
slightly lower faliing short of the benchmark of 85% in FY24, established in the
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with K-Electric. The lower availability was due to
operational disruptions during CY23-24, primarily caused by the tripping of two
steam turbine generators, including one supplying power to auxiliaries at the Port
Qasim Power Plant.
Table 1 Capacity and Production
Installed capacity-
Annual energy delivered-MW 410,235 483 620
Actual capacity factor
= Y
Installed capacity-MT

Actual stearn delivered-MT 1,312,031 1,529.226
Actual capacity factor 74.88% 87.04%
Key Rating Drivers
Business Risk Profile

Sector Risk: Non-Renewable Power Generation -~ Medium to Low

The non-renewable power sector in Pakistan, presents a medium-to-low business risk
profile. The sector benefits from stable electricity demand, high barriers to entry, and
long-term power purchase agreements (PPAs) that mitigate exposure to short-term
demand fluctuations for independent power producers (IPPs). However, regulatory
oversight, high capital intensity, and financial constraints arising from circular debt
remain key risk factors.

Electricity demand in Pakistan remains relatively inelastic, with long-term growth
supported by population expansion and utbanization. Although recent economic
contractions have impacted industrial consumption, residential and commercial
demand has remained stable. The sector is characterized by low cyclicality risk, with
guaranteed offtake agreements providing insulation against short-term fluctuations.
Howevet, the recent revision or termination of certain PPAs, particulatly those near
expiration, has introduced additional tisk for some IPPs. Furthermore, the
underutilization of existing capacity, with capacity factors averaging approximately
40%, has contributed to inefficiencies, leading to higher consumer tariffs, and
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January 2025, the revised tariff components with FFC (formerly FFBL) were set at
Rs. 15.78/kWh as CPP and Rs. 21.05/kWh as EPP.

Supply-Side Risk

The Company previously maintained a long-term supply agreement with a coal
supplier, with an opton for extension. However, the management decided not to
extend the contract and procure coal at spot rates from the international matket. This
approach may enhance exposute to supply risks.

Financial Risk Profile

In FY24, FPCL achieved growth in net sales, driven by tariff adjusoments
implemented during the period as well as slightly higher demand from its parent.
Despite revenue increase, the Company’s gross margin was slightly lower at 26.14%
(FY23: 28.66%), due delayed fuel cost adjustment into the tariff. However, FPCL
demonstrated improved operating margin of 34.87% (FY23: 30.91%) in FY24,
supported by realization of insurance claim for STG 1 & 2 as well as STG stators.
The improvement in operating margins as well as lower finance cost also supported
the bottom-line and net margins during the year. Net margins were reported at
25.43% (FY23: 14.32%) in FY24 which is also supported by the share of profit from
FFL with holding of 15.87% (FY23: 15.87%) in FY24. ’
During FY24, FPCL fully repaid its long-term financial obligations, resulting in no
long-term debt on its statement of financial position as of year-end. Although short-
term borrowings increased; however, the overall debt level declined significantly.
Consequently, gearing and leverage ratios decreased to 0.26x (FY23: 0.86x) and 0.37x
(FY23: 0,96x), respectively. Given sufficient cash balances, the leverage ratios were
even further lower on a net debt basis. The early repayment of long-term debt was
patt of a group-wide strategic initiative undertaken by the parent company, FFC, to
reduce financial liabilities in response to elevated interest rates.

The reduction in debt and associated financial costs, coupled with improved FFO,
resulted in improved coverages, as reflected in a higher Debt Service Coverage Ratio
{DSCR) of 4.39x (FY23: 1.29%) in FY24. Despite an improvement in profitability and
coverage metrics, the liquidity in terms of current ratio contracted slightly to 1.15x
FY23 1.20%).




VIS credit Rating Company Limited www.vis.com.pk

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

Appendix IT

Name of Rated Entity  FFBL Power Company Limited
Sector Power
 Type of Relationship Solicited
Putpose of Rating Entity Ratings
Rating Medium to Short Rating Rating
Date Long Term Term Outlook Action
03/27/2025 AA Al Stable Upgtade
12/20/2023 AA- Al Stable Reaffirmed
Rating History 10/27/2022 AA- Al Stable  Reaffirmed
10/04/2021 AA- Al Stable Reaffirmed
10/20/2020 AA- Al Stable  Reaffirmed
9/12/2019 AA- Al Stable = Reaffirmed
7/26/2018 AA- Al Stable Initial
Instrument Structure N/A

Statement by the
Rating Team

VIS, the analysts involved in the rating process and members of its
rating committee do not have any conflict of interest relating to the
credit rating(s) mentioned herein. This rating is an opinion on credit
quality only and is not a recommendation to buy or sell any securities.

Probability of Default

VIS’ ratings opinions express ordinal ranking of risk, from strongest
to weakest, within a universe of credit risk. Ratings are not intended as
guarantees of credit quality or as exact measures of the probability that
a particular issuer or particular debt issue will default.

Disclaimer

Information herein was obtained from sources believed to be accurate
and reliable; however, VIS does not guarantee the accuracy, adequacy
or completeness of any infortation and is not responsible for any
errors or omissions ot for the results obtained from the use of such
information. Copyright 2025 VIS Credit Rating Company Limited. All
rights reserved. Contents may be used by news media with credit to

VIS.

Conducted

Due Diligence Meeting Mzt. Shahid Saud Ul

Name Designation Date

CFO February 19, 2025

Hassan
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REASONABLY DETAILED PROFILE OF THE
APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT’S STAFF
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Applicant Profile

FFBL Power Company Limited {(FPCL) is an unlisted public limited company incorporated in June
2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Company (FFC) (formerly Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Limited (FFBL)). FPCL was established as a special purpose vehicle to set up and operate a
coai-fired power plant located at Port Qasim, Karachi. The plant is designed to generate electricity
at both 50 Hz and 60 Hz frequencies, enabling dual supply capabilities. FPCL holds a Generation
Licence (No. SGC/111/2015) from NEPRA for its 118 MW facility, with a mandate to supply power
to KE and FFBL. The plant operates under high-efficiency Circulating Fluidized Bed (CFB}
technology, ensuring reliable and sustainable power generation.

Applicant’s Staff

FPCL s led by an experienced and professionally qualified management team with core expertise
spanning power generation, utility operations, finance, legal and regulatory affairs, project
development, and risk management. The organizational structure is headed by the Chief
Executive & Managing Director, who provides strategic direction and executive oversight. He is
supported by the Chief Operating Officer {COOQ), who leads all technical operations, and the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), who manages all financial and commercial functions.

On the technical side, the Company is structured into specialized departments including
Operations, Electrical and Instrumentation, Mechanical Maintenance, and Steam & Power, each
led by department heads with significant experience in coal-fired thermal power plants. These
departments are staffed by teams of professional engineers, associate engineers, and technicians
responsible for daily plant performance, safety compliance, condition monitoring, and preventive

maintenance.

The Operations Department ensures reliable and optimal generation output across FPCL's 50 Hz
and 60 Hz systems. The Mechanical and E&! teams handle plant reliability, maintenance
scheduling, and root cause diagnostics. The Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE} division
ensures compliance with internal standards and applicable regulatory frameworks.,

In the finance function, the CFO is supported by a dedicated team handling regulatory tariff
modeling, cost control, financial planning, and NEPRA compliance. The finance division works in
close coordination with the planning and regulatory affairs team to ensure that all licensing, LPM,
and tariff requirements are addressed in accordance with NEPRA rules.
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCi.)

Support services such as IT, Legal, Procurement, HR, and Internal Audit report to their respective
heads and are fully integrated into project planning, budgeting, and compliance workflows. The
organization operates under a structured hierarchy, encompassing Senior Managers, Unit
Managers, Section Managers, Deputy Managers, Assistant Managers, Executives and
Management Associates, providing both strategic depth and operational agility.

This professional staffing structure ensures FPCL's continued compliance with applicable
regulations and effective execution of all operational and licensing responsibilities.



ATTACHMENT V(G)

EMPLOYMENT RECORDS OF ENGINEERING AND
TECHNICAL STAFF OF THE APPLICANT



FFBL POWER COIVIPANY LIMITEL (rrCL)

FFBL Power Company Limited {(FPCL) intends to operate the proposed distribution system through
its internal engineering and technical resources, leveraging its existing expertise in the operation
of utility-scale power infrastructure. The staffing plan for the distribution function is currently
under development, and the assignment of roles, deployment of personnel, and formalization of

team structure is in progress,

The Company will ensure that the distribution operations are staffed with qualified electrical
engineers, operations personnel, and support technicians, drawing from its established in-house
talent pool that has been responsible for the operation and maintenance of FPCL's 118 MW coal-
fired generation facility and associated transmission infrastructure.

A formal recard of the designated technical team, along with individual qualifications and
departmental responsibilities, will be submitted to the Honourable Authority at a later stage, in
accordance with NEPRA’s compliance framework and upon finalization of operational

deployment under the distribution licence.
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Referenceos in Bospect of the Exnerience of the Applicant

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) possesses proven and verifiable experience in the
development, operation, and maintenance of utility-scale power infrastructure. Since the
commencement of commercial aperations in May 2017, FPCL has been successfully operating a
coal-based thermal power plant with an installed capacity of 118 MW, located at Port Qasim,

Karachi.

The Company operates under NEPRA Generation Licence No. SGC/111/2015, and has consistently
delivered power to both K-Electric and Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL} under bilateral
arrangements. FPCL’s facility includes dual-frequency output capability (50 Hz and 60 Hz), along
with a robust internal electrical and control infrastructure.

In addition to its generation capabilities, FPCL has substantial experience in electric power
evacuation and transmission. The Company owns and maintains a dedicated transmission facility
that connects its plant to the K-Electric grid at 132 kV, operating in full compliance with NEPRA
regulations and relevant Grid Code standards.

This operational history and existing infrastructure substantiate FPCL’s technical and institutional
capacity to undertake distribution activities and manage system reliability, compliance, and

service delivery in line with the applicable regulatory framework.
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL)

Technical and Financial Proposals for the Operation,
Maintenance, Planning, and Development of Facility

1. Technical Proposal
1.1 Scope of Facility

The proposed distribution system consists of a new dedicated Feeder operating 11/13.8kV
voltage, originating from the FPCL coal-based generation facility located in Port Qasim, Karachi.
The line is designed to supply uninterrupted electric power to a designated Bulk Power Consumer
{BPC), FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST). The generation source (CPP} and associated
electrical systems are existing and fully operational; thus, the new facility under this license
pertains specifically to the distribution/export infrastructure.

1.2 Operation and Maintenance Framework

The O&M responsibility of the new feeder shall rest with FPCL and will follow a structured and
preventive maintenance regime, adapted from established practices of the Company's ongoing
utility-scale operations. The O&M regime will comprise:

« Routine visual inspections of poles, insulators, and conductors at quarterly intervals.

» Emergency response protocols to address unplanned outages, weather events, or
physical damage.

» Scheduled vegetation control to ensure line clearance and minimize hazards in
accordance with NEPRA and international utility standards.

¢ Asset management tracking, using digital systems to log inspection results, schedule
repairs, and optimize costs of the infrastructure.

All maintenance activities will be documented and aligned with NEPRA-prescribed operational
codes and safety standards.



FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL)

1.3 Planning and Development

The current infrastructure focus is on the supply to FoST. FPCL shall adopt a modular expansion
plan, enabling the timely addition of feeders or conversion equipment based on confirmed
demand and load forecasts.

Planned developments include:

« Installation of advanced metering and protective relays at both ends of the distribution
line.

« Scalable transformer configurations with the flexibility to serve dual-frequency
requirements.

« Integration of remote monitoring and control systems, aligned with SCADA/or Other
compatible architecture, of the existing plant.

All system upgrades and design development will comply with NEPRA’s Distribution Code and
relevant IEEE and IEC standards.

2. Financial Proposal
2.1 O&M Cost Structure for the New Facility

The proposed distribution infrastructure, comprising dedicated feeder operating 11/13.8 kV
voltage for the supply of power to FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited {FoST), will be operated -
and maintained under a cost-optimized internal O&M regime. FPCL has adequate in-house

capacity, both technically and financially, to undertake the full operation and upkeep of the
distribution system.

The estimated annual O&M cost for the new line includes:
» Routine inspections and preventive maintenance activities
» Thermographic and diagnostic testing
» Emergency repair services and fault response
« Line hardware replacements, protective relay checks, and compliance reporting
« Vegetation management and safety clearance

These costs will be incorporated into the bilateral commercial arrangement with the BPC and
recovered directly through service-linked charges.
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FPCL will maintain separate accounts and reporting for the O&M of the licensed distribution
facility. Cost recovery will be embedded in the monthly energy delivery invoice to the BPC,
ensuring that distribution service costs aic transparently billed and independentiy auditabie.

There will be no subsidy or cross-recovery from FPCL’s generation or other regulated activities.

2.3 Financial Governance

The financial management of the distribution O&M activity will be governed by FPCL's internal
controls and audit mechanisms. The Company will ensure:

« Annual O&M budgeting based on load forecasts and system requirements
« Quarterly variance tracking and performance reviews

This framework ensures full cost accountability and sustainable O&M performance for the new

licensed facility.
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FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED THROUGH CIRCULATION

RESOLUTION NO. C-01/2025
"RESOLVED THAT the Company is hereby authorized to file applications and petitions for obtaining
licenses, including but not limited to a supply license, permissions or modifications of its existing Tariff and
Power Generation License. As may be required, including but not limited to:
a)  Sale of power to new Bulk Power Consumers (BPCs), in addition to the existing BPCs;

b)  Addition of generation capacity as deemed suitable.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company is also authorized to file or submit application(s),
petition(s), etc., with the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) or any other authority,
regulatory body, or governmental agency, for obtaining new tariffs, licenses including Power Generation,
Distribution, Supply and Special Purpose Transmission Line or filing a Motion for Leave for Review against
tariffs and licenses, as well as License Proposed Modification (LPM), Tariff Petitions, Tariff Modifications,
changes in Agreements with FFC and KE etc., together with all other allied documents, including but not
limited to any and all undertakings, affidavits, securities etc., as may be required, to effectuate such filings
or respond thereto; or file any other applications or documents to enable the Company to implement the
foregoing resolutions and to undertake associated activities. The Company is further authorized to make any
oral or written representations, applications, or requests etc., to take all necessary or incidental actions with
regards to the above authorizations.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company is authorized to carry out all supplementary and ancillary
actions necessary for the implementation and completion of the above matters, ensuring compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any one individual from each group (A and B} jointly shall be authorized
to act on behalf of the Company to sign, execute, novate, submit, and deliver all documents, applications,
agreements, undertakings, affidavits, petitions, representations, and any other necessary instruments; and to
take any action required to give full effect to these resolutions:

Group A: Group B:
Mr. Muhammad Nauman Younas Mr. Shahid Saud ul Hassan
Mr. Bashir Muhammad Mr. Anees Afzal
Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd) Mr. Abdul Khalig” ’

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the management is authorized to take all further actions, including
engagement of legal, financial, and technical advisors, etc., to facilitate and complete the above matters.”
“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to issue a certified
copy of this resolution to all concemned authorities, regulatory bodies, counterparties, and any other relevant
entities as may be required for implementation.”

This resolution is hereby approved through circulation by the Board of Directors.

Certified

Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd)
Company Secretary

FEBL Tower, C1 - C2, Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase 11, Islamabad, Palk@gg 1 ©
Tel No:- +92 51 876 3325, Fax No:- +92 51 876 3305, www.fpel.com
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_AFFIDAVIT FOR CORRECTNESS OF DOCUMENTS
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER
REGULATORY AUTHORITY

AFFIDAVIT

I, Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd), S/o Muhammad Siddig, holding CNIC No. 35302-1977841-9, being the duly
authorized representative of FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL), hereby solemnly affirm and declare
on oath that the contents of the accompanying application for Distribution License dated May 26, 2025,

including all attached documents-in-support are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief

and that nothing has been concealed.

DEPL

4 OL,
Lt SeL-Ati Siddiq (Ret éﬁiﬁff“*y *
Company Secretal%éﬁ ‘ Q\\"':\'a')b

Authorized Represeneii
FFBL Power Compang¥itd.
Dated: May 26, 2025
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FFBL FOWER CGIVIPANY LiMITED (FPCL

Environmental and Social Soundness Assessment (ESSA)

1. Introduction

FFBL Power Company Limited {FPCL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim
Limited {FFBL}, proposes the construction and operation of a new dedicated power distribution
line to serve Bulk Power Consumers (BPC}. This Environmental and Social Soundness Assessment
(ESSA) evaluates potential environmental and social impacts arising from the proposed
transmission facility which will supply power to FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST).

The transmission line is designed to be laid primarily underground to mitigate environmental and
social disruptions, with a short above-ground span over a canal. This ESSA is developed in
alignment with national regulatory framewaorks, including the Sindh Environmental Protection Act
and NEPRA licensing guidelines, as well as international enviranmental assessment best practices.

2. Project Description

The project involves laying of dedicated transmission line extending from FPCL's coal-based
generation facility at Port Qasim, Karachi. The line will deliver uninterrupted power to FonGreen
Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST). The entire route lies within industrial zones or FPCL-owned
property, with no interference with residential or ecologically sensitive areas. The only deviation
from underground installation is a canal crossing, where an above-ground span will be
constructed without affecting water flow or local ecology.

3. Environmental Setting and Legai Compliance

The project area lies within a pre-designated industrial zone near the Karachi coastline. The
landscape is flat and devoid of forest cover or protected biodiversity zones. FPCL has previously
undertaken a comprehensive EIA for its main plant, conducted by M/s Hagler Bailly and approved
by the Sindh Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA). The current project does not exceed the
scope of the approved EIA and will adhere to all conditions and environmental commitments

already established.

There is no requirement for additional land acquisition or change in land use. All activities are in
canformity with the Karachi Development Authority’s master plan and environmental regulations
applicable to industrial development.

4. Environmental Impacts and Mitigation

The environmental impacts associated with this project are expected to be minor and temporary.
As the transmission line is underground, impacts are limited to construction-phase nuisances such
as dust, noise, and minor traffic disturbances. These will be controlled using standard mitigation
measures including water spraying for dust suppression, noise dampening techniques, and

routing adjustments to avoeid congestion.
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The canal crossing will be engineered using corrosion-resistant pylens and environmental
clearances will be ensured before construction. No disruption to aquatic flow or sediment

transport is anticipated.

5. Social Impact Assessmi=nt

The proposed transmission line does not involve resettlement, displacement, or loss of livelihood.
The line avoids all residential areas and is routed through utility corridors and industrial land.
There are no herita'ge sites, cultural properties, or vuinerable communities in the vicinity of the
route. The project poses no risk of exclusion or discrimination and does not affect any Indigenous

People or marginalized groups.

Employment generation during construction wilt benefit the local workforce. Minor disruptions
to traffic or utility access during trenching will be communicated in advance and resolved through
engagement with local stakeholders.

6. Stakeholder Engagement

FPCL has a robust stakeholder engagement framewaork established during the original EIA of the
power plant, That framework will be expanded to cover this project. Stakeholders include local
government authorities, environmental agencies, and neighboring industrial units. No public
opposition is recorded regarding the distribution project. Future engagement will include
disclosure of construction timelines, comptaint redress mechanisms, and routine updates to SEPA.

7. Health and Safety Considerations

Occupational Health and Safety {OHS) protocols will be strictly enforced during trenching, cable
laying, and testing operations. All site personnel will be trained on safety standards, emergency
response, and first aid. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) will be mandatory. Signage, fencing,
and warning systems will be installed at the canal crossing site. Construction activities will be
scheduled during low-risk hours to minimize hazard exposure to both workers and the
surrounding area.

8. Environmental and Social Managemerit Fian {(ESMP)

An ESMP will be developed prior to commencement of construction. It will include roles and
responsibilities, mitigation measures, monitoring protocols, and corrective actions. FPCL's HSE
department will be responsible for ESMP implementation. Routine audits, incident reporting, and
compliance documentation will be submitted to SEPA and NEPRA as part of post-licence
obligations.

9, Monitoring, Evaluation, and Reporting

Monitoring will cover air quality, noise leveis, and trench restoration. Baseline measurements will
be established before construction. Weekly reports will be generated during peak activity,
followed by monthly reports during the operational phase. Any non-compliance will be addressed
within a documented Corrective Action Plan {CAP).
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System Studies

FPCL has proposed to export power to FoST, starting with an initial requirement of 1 MW, which
is projected to increase gradually to 20 MW over the next coming years. To meet this demand,
FPCL has proposed the installation of 01 x 11kV feeder in the initial phase. This feeder will cater
to the current power requirement, and based on future demand growth, the infrastructure is
planned to be expanded to up to 05 x 11kV feeders.

This proposal and system configuration are based on internal technical assessments and planning
studies conducted in house by FPCL to ensure reliable and efficient power delivery to FoST over
the long term.

To meet the regulatory compliance requirements set forth by NEPRA, FPCL has engaged a
qualified and experienced consultant to carry out the necessary system studies. These studies
are being conducted in accordance with all applicable NEPRA regulations and standards,
including grid code requirements and system reliability criteria. The findings and documentation
from these studies will be formally submitted to NEPRA once the work is completed.

FPCL remains committed to ensuring a technically sound and regulatory-compliant power export
arrangement that supports FoST’s growing energy needs in a phased and sustainable manner.
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1. Introduction

To ensure safe, reliable, and uninterrupted electric power supply to Bulk Power Consumer (BPC),
FPCL is committed to rigorous preventive maintenance and timely defect identification across its
distribution network. The core of this strategy lies in structured patrolling and inspection
procedures, designed to preempt equipment failures, ensure safety, and uphold regulatory
compliance. These procedures apply to all dedicated distribution feeders under FPCL's control,
whether underground or overhead, and are implemented under the direct supervision of the
Operations & Maintenance (O&M) team.

2. Classification of Patrolling Activities
a. Scheduled Patrolling

Routine inspections conducted twice annually to assess the condition of cable trenches, joint
bays, link boxes, earthing points, and terminal ends.

b. Unscheduled Patrolling
Conducted in response to:
s Protection relay operations
* Voltage dips or thermal alarms
+ Excavation or construction activities near the route
« Rainfall/flood warnings (to assess trench integrity)
Includes the following types:
» Incidental Patrolling — Done during site visits for other O&M purposes.

e Casual Patrotling — Following events such as ﬂooding, road excavation, or suspected third-
party interference.

« Emergency Patrolling — After fault detection, to isolate section and support diagnostics.

» Night Patrolling {if applicable) — For terminal/overhead sections to detect thermal glow
or hotspots via infrared.
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Crash Patrolling — Full trench inspection before peak season or during campaign

maintenance.

3. Inspection Procedure

1

8.

Visual inspection of route markers, link boxes, and trench covers along the entire

underground cable path.

Thermal scanning of terminations, joints, and link boxes using infrared camera (especially

before summer season).
Check for signs of ground settlement, erosion, exposed ducts, or unauthorized digging.

At the canal crossing overhead span, verify insulator condition, conductor tension,
clearances, and structure integrity.

Use cable route drawings to cross-check segment locations and depth.
Record findings with geotagged photos, GPS coordinates, and condition tags.

Update the Cable Patrolling & Maintenance Register with findings, defects, and corrective
actions.

Escalate urgent defects to the O&M Control Room within 2 hours.

4. Equipment and Tools

Inspection Tools:

Infrared thermal scanner

Earth resistance tester

Cable route locator and depth measurement tool
GPS-enabied handheld logger

Digital camera with time stamp

Voltage presence detector for terminations

PPE and Safety Gear:

Safety boots, gloves, and reflective jackets
Insulated helmet
Gas detector {for confined chamber access)

Fall protection harness (if accessing canal span structure)
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Lockout/Tagout kit and caution signage

5. Documentation and Compiiance

All patrols will be recorded in a Patrol Logbook maintained by the Distribution

Maintenance Team.
Observations requiring shutdowns will be flagged with corrective timelines.
Emergency patroliing reports will be submitted within 24 hours to the Engineering Lead.

A quarterly summary of patrolling activities and observed issues will be shared with
NEPRA and internal audit,

Any third-party excavation within 5 meters of the route will trigger a pre-patrol to ensure

cable protection.
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1. Introduction

The purpose of this Maintenance Plan is to establish a preventive, predictive, and corrective

maintenance framework for FPCL’s licensed distribution system, comprising dedicated
underground and limited overhead infrastructure supplying power to designated Bulk Power
Consumer (BPC). FPCL prioritizes reliability, safety, and regulatory compliance in all operational
aspects, and this document aligns with industry standards, NEPRA codes, and best engineering

practices.

2. Maintenance Framework

2.1 Underground Distribution Line Maintenance

The underground power export line will be maintained through a structured program including
routine patrolling, inspection of joints, link boxes, cable terminations, and temperature/stress

monitoring:

+ Inspection Frequency: Biannual inspection; additional inspections post-heavy rain,

flooding, or third-party excavation.

+ Key Inspection Elements:

C

o]

Cable sheath integrity and burial depth

Link box condition and earth continuity

Heat spots via infrared thermography

Marker tape presence and trench backfill condition

Terminal box moisture ingress and sea! integrity

2.2 Canal Crossing (Overhead Span) Maintenance

For the limited overhead section at the canal crossing:

« Inspect insulators, conductor tension, anti-climbing devices, and clearance compliance.

« Tree trimming near the span conducted annually or as required.

« Ground-level vegetation management to prevent access or line contact.

3. Transformer Maintenance Procedures
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» Joints: Partial discharge detection and joint box condition
s Clamp and support integrity
+ Anti-vermin measures near terminations
7. Capacitor Bank and Reactive Support Equipment
* Visual inspections for deformation or oil leak
+ Check porcelain insulators for cracks and pollution
» Verify earthing and discharge mechanisms
o Periodic insulaticn resistance testing
8. Maintenance Scheduling and Documentation

All maintenance work shall be:

« Planned and scheduled under the Maintenance Management System (MMS)

« Logged in Maintenance Registers with date, time, type of intervention, and rectification

status
« Supported by pre- and post-maintenance photographs where applicable
« Reported monthly to regulatory and internal audit units
9, Safety and Work Permits
« All maintenance activities will be preceded by issuance of a Proper Work Permit (PWP}
o Use of PPE {helmet, insulated gloves, harness, ar¢ flash suit) is mandatory
e Shutdown schedules will be pre-approved and coordinated with BPC where applicable

« lLockout/Tagout (LOTO) protocols must be followed for energized equipment
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ocation And Troubleshoating Procedure

FPCL's Operation & Maintenance (O&M) Department shall maintain a gualified and trained team
for faulty location and troubleshooting across the underground distribution network. The
necessary skills shail be developed through structured in-house and on-job training programs for
all technical staff and engineers assigned to fault resolution tasks.

Standardized procedures shall be followed, with key elements as below:

Technical teams shall be immediately deployed to faulty locations with the required safety

gear and toals.

All safety protocols shall be enforced for personnel and equipment before beginning

inspection.

Equipment for identifying faults in underground cables, transformers, and protection
devices should be made available to the teams.

Qualified engineers shall be assigned for testing relays, breakers, and cable sections as

needed.

Where applicable, automatic isolation of faulty segments shall be triggered through relays

or fuses,

Fault Diagnosis Shall Include:

Checking system load to avoid circuit overloading.

Inspecting earthing systems across affected segments.

Checking transformers for signs of overheating or internal stress (carburization).
Reviewing relay operations for possible mis-trips or under-set conditions.

Inspecting cables, joints, and terminations for physical or insulation damage.

All fault events shall be recorded, followed by root cause analysis and implementation of

corrective and preventive measures.
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And Dovalanmant Pracedures Manuals

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL), having been engaged in the electricity generation business
since 2014, has developed and maintained a competent and professionally trained workforce.
The Company’s team comprises experienced engineers, technical staff, and commercial
professionals with a proven track record in managing reliable and compliant power supply

operations.

As part of its internal capacity-building strategy, FPCL follows a structured training and
development framework to ensure that all employees are equipped with the knowledge and skills
required to meet evolving regulatory, technological, and operational standards in the power

sector.

The framework includes:

1.

Internal Training Programs

Conducted regularly for technical, operational, and support teams. These sessions focus
on system operations, electrical safety, regulatory compliance, preventive maintenance,

emergency response, and performance monitoring.
External Trainings and Certifications

Participation in relevant industry workshops, licensing courses, and vendor-organized
sessions to keep staff updated on modern utility practices, emerging grid technologies,

and NEPRA regulatory expectations.
Project-Specific Technical Trainings

During new project execution phases or system expansions, FPCL arranges vendor-led and
OEM-supported technical training to familiarize operations staff with specific equipment,

interfaces, and safety procedures.
Continuous Skill Assessment

The Company periodically reviews employee performance and technology shifts to assess
training needs, ensuring all capacity-building initiatives remain relevant, focused, and

value-driven.

Comprehensive training logs and development records are maintained and reviewed regularly to

fulfill both internal policy and external compliance requirements.
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This training and development strategy underpins FPCL’s continued commitment to safe, efficient,
and compliant power distribution operations and is submitted as part of the Distribution Licence
application.

Procedures and Manuals

All operational and safety procedures, technical manuals, and standard operating guidelines shall
be prepared and maintained to support the training and development of all engineers,
technicians, and supervisory staff performing work under the scope of the licensed operations.
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Expansion and Investment

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) seeks a Distribution Licence to support the expansion of its
power delivery system to a new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) via a dedicated under 66 kV
underground export network. This initiative is a critical step in diversifying the Company’s
consumer base, improving system utilization, and enhancing long-term operational sustainability.

1. Scope of Distribution Expansion

The proposed expansion involves the development of new under 66 kV power export line:

e A dedicated underground line (approx. 4 km) to supply power to FonGreen Silicon
Technologies Limited (FoST), initialty off taking more than 1 MW.

The line will be physically and electrically independent, with one canal-crossing segment to be

implemented overhead under controlled clearances.

2. Justification for Expansion

FPCL's primary power buyer, K-Electric, has significantly reduced its offtake since late 2023,
resulting in capacity underutilization and adverse financial impact. Simultaneously, the
Company’s generation infrastructure remains technically capable of supplying additional demand
without enhancement of installed generation capacity.

The proposed BPC:

» Represents a strategic national and industrial investment, with FoST classified as a
National Strategic Project, and

o Offer long-term load stability that aligns with FPCL's generation design and fuel

procurement strategy.

This expansion ensures optimal usage of FPCL's infrastructure while contributing to national

energy resilience.
3. Investment and Financing Readiness
The capital investment is planned as follows:

« FoST Connection: Estimated CAPEX USD 3.1 million — 100% equity financed by Fauji
Group.
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Expressions of interest for credit support have already been initiated and-recorded, and FPCL has
confirmed its ability to undertake the works without external delays.
4. Documentation and Approvals

s Environmental and Social Soundness Assessment (ESSA} has been completed, indicating

no major impact.

» System Studies have confirmed technical viability under the sub-66 kV architecture.

e Training, O&M, and Protection Protocols have been established and submitted as part of

the Distribution Licence application.

The expansion is fully supported by technical, financial, and organizational readiness. FPCL
commits to commence construction immediately upon receipt of licence and associated

regulatory approvals.
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Distribution System Configuration

1. GENERAL

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL), located in the Eastern Industrial Zone of Bin Qasim, Karachi,
is a coal-fired cogeneration facility with an installed generation capacity of 118 MW. FPCL
currently supplies power to K-Electric and FFBL (Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited) and is now
expanding its distribution footprint to include new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) through a
dedicated distribution network.

The proposed expansion involves the construction and operation of an independent distribution
lines to serve:

+ FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST) — A government-endorsed industrial
initiative classified as a National Strategic Project.

The distribution network will be developed exclusively by FPCL as a dedicated, isolated system
that does not interface with the national transmission grid.

2. TYPE OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM {CONFIGURATION)

The proposed distribution system will operate entirely below 66 kV, designed as an underground
export network with limited overhead spans only where technically essential (e.g., canal
crossings). The system design provides for the below configuration based on technical feasibility,
system compatibility, and consumer requirements:

= 11/13.8 kV Transmission Voltage

Dedicated 11/13.8 kV underground feeders will originate from FPCL's 11/13.8 kV
switchgear.

o Feeders will terminate at BPC battery limits, where metering, protection, and interface
equipment will be instalied.

« Intermediate joint bays, link boxes, and sectionalizing points will be installed to maintain
system serviceability.

e 11/13.8 kV kiosk-type transformers may be installed at the consumer end where required
for internal distribution.
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All civil and electrical works related to the distribution system including trenching, cable laying,
joining, and terminations shall be completed by FPCL under a centralized control and monitoring
plan. Standard operating procedures, emergency restoration systems, and digital metering
infrastructure shall be integrated as part of the licensee’s operational protocol.

The proposed configurations offer flexibility, technical redundancy, and scalability to
accommodate future BPCs while maintaining reliability and full regulatory compliance.
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Service Territory, Right Of Way, and Feeder Maps

SERVICE TERRITORY
The proposed service territory is located in:
« Country: Pakistan
« Province: Sindh
» Zone: Eastern Zone
o Area: Bin Qasim, Karachi

This area encompasses the operational and facility sites of identified Bulk Power
Consumers situated within the Eastern Zone of Bin Qasim. The infrastructure and energy
delivery systems are exclusively designed for these commercial and industrial premises.
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FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) is in the process of securing all necessary
approvals for Right of Way (ROW) required for the construction and operation of
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dedicated transmission lines associated with the proposed Electric Power Supply and
Distribution License projects.

Apptications for Right of Way have been formally initiated with the concerned authorities,
namely the Port Qasim Authority (PQA) and the National Highway Authority (NHA). The
approvals from these authorities are currently under process. Once obtained, certified
copies of the approved ROW documents shall be made available to the Honorable
Authority for record and compliance purposes.

FEEDER MAPS

In addition, detailed Single Line Diagrams (SLDs) depicting the proposed transmission
routes, interconnections, and system configuration have been prepared and are attached
herewith as part of this submission.
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Voltage Levels and Regulation

The voltage levels and regulation for FPCL’s proposed dedicated underground distribution system

shall conform to the applicable provisions of the NEPRA Performance Standards (Distribution)
Rules and relevant engineering codes.

Medium Voltage Levels

The system will operate at a medium voltage level of 11/13.8 kV, depending on project-specific
design finalization and the load requirements of the Bulk Power Consumer (BPC).

Power Losses and Power Factor
» Distribution losses will be maintained within:
o +3% for medium voltage systems
o +B% for low voltage feeders

o Power Factor (PF) shall be maintained at not less than 0.90 lagging, through reactive
power management and appropriate capacitor sizing where required.

FPCL commits to implementing necessary voltage regulation equipment, protection devices, and
monitoring tools to ensure that these performance criteria are maintained consistently across its
dedicated distribution network.
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Type Cf Distribution System

FFBL Power Company Limited {(FPCL) proposes a dedicated underground power distribution
system designed to serve specific Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) from its existing coal-based
generation facility located in Bin Qasim, Karachi. The distribution network will be isolated from
the national grid and shall operate entirely below 66 kV, in full compliance with NEPRA’s
regulatory framework.

System Characteristics
e The system wilt operate at medium voltage level, with the foliowing configuration option
under consideration:

o 11/13.8 kV distribution voltage

e The network will comprise underground XLPE-insulated cables, sized according to load
and distance requirements.

e Cable routing will include direct buried and protected trench arrangements, with limited
overhead spans only at necessary crossings (e.g., canal).
Connection Arrangement

s BPCwill be connected through a dedicated feeder from FPCL’s existing switchgear system.

e Terminal equipment such as VCBs, metering panels, or RMUs may be installed at the BPC
intake as needed.

e Where low-voltage distribution is required within consumer premises, step-down
transformers may be used at intake locations.
Protection and Control

+ Standard protection equipment (breakers, relays, isolators) will be installed at appropriate
points.

e FPCL will ensure proper earthing, safe isolation procedures, and voltage regulation within
the NEPRA-defined limits.

This system is designed to ensure high reliability, ease of maintenance, and operational safety,
with all technical parameters aligned to NEPRA’s distribution and performance standards.
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Line Equipment Characteristics

The proposed distribution system operated by FPCL shall consist of underground medium voltage
lines and associated equipment designed to ensure safe, reliable, and efficient delivery of power
to designated Bulk Power Consumer (BPC). The system will operate at 11 kV/13.8 kV, depending
on technical compatibility and end-user requirements.

All materials and equipment will be procured from approved local or international manufacturers,
and will conform to generally accepted electrical standards applicable in Pakistan.

Key Equipment Components Include:

Underground Medium Voltage Cables: Armored or unarmored power cables suitable for
distribution voltages, laid as per route and site conditions.

Cable Accessories: Jointing and termination kits compatible with the selected cable type,
with appropriate insulation and protection.

Switchgear and Protection Devices: Medium voltage breakers, isolators, and metering
panels at source and consumer end, installed as per safety and operational needs.

Earthing Systems: Standard earthing arrangements at all connection and termination
points to ensure operational and personnel safety.

Metering Interface: MV-level metering panels or equipment to be installed at the BPC
intake, as per regulatory and contractual requirements.

The selection of equipment will be based on technical suitability, ease of maintenance, and
regulatory compliance. FPCL may opt for locally manufactured equipment (e.g. from established
pakistani vendors) or international suppliers, including Chinese OEMs, depending on availability,
cost, and project schedule.
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Power Quality Control

1. General Philosophy

FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) is committed to delivering consistent, reliable, and high-
quality electric power to its Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) through a dedicated sub-66 kV
underground distribution network. The system is designed and will be operated in accordance
with NEPRA Performance Standards (Distribution), IEC/IEEE best practices, and established utility
norms.

2. Voltage Levels and Regulation

The distribution system shall operate at 11 kV/13.8 kV, depending on technical requirements and
final load assessment. FPCL will maintain voltage regulation within standard limits at the
consumer delivery point under both normal and contingency conditions. Regulation will be
ensured through appropriate conductor sizing, system design, load balancing, and switching
protocols.

« Voltage Deviation Limits: Maintained within 5% under normal conditions
« Contingency (N-1) Tolerance: Not exceeding £10% where applicable

Tap changers and sectionalized protection systems will assist in maintaining voltage stability
across feeders.

3. System Losses

System design aims to minimize I°R losses through:
o Short, radial underground cable runs
o Efficient conductor sizing
+ load management and switching control

tosses will be monitored periodically and compared against accepted benchmarks, with
corrective actions initiated if variances are observed beyond tolerable thresholds.

4. Power Factor Control

FPCL will maintain system power factor (PF) above 0.90 lagging under typical loading conditions.
While PF correction is not initially required due to the isolated nature of the system, provision for
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reactive power compensation (e.g. capacitor banks or filters) is reserved should harmonic-
producing or inductive loads increase at the BPC level.
5. Frequency Management

FPCL’s generation blocks operate in both 50 Hz and 60 Hz systems, each isolated and feeding
specific loads. Frequency stability will be maintained via internal governor and turbine control
logic. Under normal operation, frequency variation will be maintained within +1 Hz of nominal.

6. Harmonic Distortion

System harmonics will be monitored and controlled in line with IEEE 519 guidelines. Load-side
harmonic injection shall be the responsibility of the BPC. FPCL may require instailation of
mitigation equipment such as passive or active harmonic filkers if excessive distortion {(>5% THD}
is observed.

7. Reliability and Equipment Loading

Distribution components including cables, breakers, transformers, and terminals will be selected
based on peak demand and redunda ncy allowances. Transformers will be derated in accordance
with ambient and load-cycle conditions. Loading shall not exceed equipment nameplate ratings
unless otherwise tested and certified.

8. Monitoring and Compliance
A periodic Power Quality Audit shall be conducted, and logs maintained for:
» Voltage fluctuations
« Load unbalance
» Transient events
o System ocutages
e Frequency excursions

Where applicable, SCADA-enabled metering will allow for near real-time monitoring at the feeder
level.

9. Corrective Measures
In the event of deviation from standard power quality benchmarks, FPCL will initiate:
« Load shifting or redistribution

¢ Tap setting adjustments
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+ lsolation of defective feeders or sections
+ Corrective maintenance of transformers or switchgear
« Coordination with BPC for internal rectification if required

This Power Quality Control framework forms part of FPCL's Distribution Licence Application and
will be adhered to in both system design and operational phases.
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Back-Up / Express Feeder Pravision

The power generation and distribution framework at FPCL is designed in accordance with the N-
1 contingency principle to ensure continuous and uninterrupted supply to all connected
consumers, particularly Bulk Power Consumer (BPC).

At the core of this reliability model is FPCL’s dual boiler configuration. The power plant operates
two Circulating Fluidized Bed (CFB) boilers, both connected to a common steam header. This
setup provides inherent redundancy in steam generation, ensuring that if one boiler becomes
non-operational due to maintenance or unforeseen technical issues, the other boiler can
continue supplying sufficient steam to sustain power generation.

The common steam header plays a critical role in maintaining operational flexibility and load
management across the connected steam turbines. This integrated configuration allows for
immediate load takeover and eliminates single-point failure risks at the generation stage.

By incorporating boiler-level redundancy into its infrastructure, FPCL maintains system stability,
avoids supply disruptions, and ensures that power delivery to consumers remains unaffected
even during partial outages within the generation facility.
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Accident Protection And Prevention Procedure

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the operation and maintenance of all electrical
equipment will be prepared and impiemented.

Safety protocols will be developed in line with the respective voltage levels, including medium
voltage {11 kV / 13.8 kV) and low voltage distribution.

All operational and maintenance personnel will be provided with complete sets of personal
protective equipment {PPE} and safety gear.

Each installed equipment unit will be clearly tagged and labeled to prevent inadvertent
operation or accidental contact.

Earthing systems for all equipment will comply with international standards such as IEC and
IEEE to ensure personnel safety and system grounding integrity.

Formal documentation for handing over and taking over equipment during maintenance or
shutdown periods will be developed and enforced.

Asset maintenance and tracking will be supported by SAP or a similar plant maintenance
software system.

Written notifications will be mandatory for planned shutdowns required for maintenance or
operational tasks on any system component.

Clear communication protocols will be established for both de-energization and re-
energization procedures post-maintenance.

All switching operations will be logged in site registers, including timestamps and responsible
personnel, to enhance traceability and accountability.

SOPs will specify roles and responsibilities of all team members involved in system operation
and maintenance.

Proper safety signage and hazard indicators will be installed across all operational areas.

All underground cables will be marked with visible UG cable markers on the ground surface.

Operational and maintenance areas will be secured to prevent unauthorized access.
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Fire extinguisher systems, both manual and automated, will be instalied at critical equipment
locations such as transformers and control rooms.

Power transformers will be equipped with automatic fire suppression systems to mitigate fire
hazards.

Underground earthing mesh systems will be installed to manage step and touch voltages,
maintaining safe thresholds.

Fire safety training sessions will be conducted periodically for all operational and maintenance
personnel.

Adequate lighting will be ensured in all indoor and outdoor operational zones to avoid
accidents due to poor visibility.

All accident protection protocols will adhere to the NEPRA Distribution Code and relevant
local regulations.

Comprehensive health and safety policies will be developed and implemented to safeguard
employees and visitors.

Equipment testing schedules will be integrated with SOPs to detect faults early and prevent
potential accidents.

Physical barriers and fencing will be placed around high-voltage and sensitive installations to
restrict access.

A Preventive Maintenance {PM) and Annual Maintenance (AM) plan will be developed and

executed to minimize the risk of failures or safety incidents.
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EFmergency Provisions

Emergency provisions and protocols for electrical systems are designed to ensure the safety of
personnel/equiprnent and mitigate the risks during emergency situations. Following measures

shall be taken to implement emergency protocols and procedures:

a. Emergency Contact No.

All vital areas shall have emergency contact numbers displayed for ease of communication by
anyone noticing any emergency situation or hazard.

b. Emergency Response Team

Emergency response team shall be made available 24/7 to encounter any emergency situation in

least time.

¢. Fire Tenders

Fire tenders with appropriate firefighting equipment shall be maintained in readiness to reach
affected sites promptly under the supervision of the safety department.

d. First Aid Service

First aid facilities, including basic medical support and access to ambulance services, shall be part

of the emergency provision plan.

e. Communication

All emergency vehicles and response teams should be equipped with wireless communication

systems to enable fast coordination and action.

f. Emergency Exits

All buildings and technical rooms associated with the distribution facility shall ensure the
provision of emergency exits for the safety of personnel.

g. Emergency Response Plan

An emergency response plan, outlining procedures to be followed during electrical emergencies,
shall be implemented. This includes communication protocols, evacuation procedures, and

contact details for emergency services.
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h. Emergency Maintenance Shut Down Plan

Clearly defined protocols shall be established for isolating or shutting down specific sections of
the electrical system during emergency maintenance, minimizing hazards and protecting system

integrity.
i, Fire Alarm System

Fire alarms will be installed in all operational areas, supplemented with smoke and/or thermal
detectors to trigger automatic alerts for evacuation and intervention.

j- Regular Maintenance and Safety Inspections

Routine inspections and preventive maintenance of all system components shall be carried out
to detect potential hazards and mitigate emergency risks.

k. Emergency Power Off

Emergency shutdown switches shall be installed in accessible areas, allowing for immediate

disconnection of power in critical situations.

|. Emergency Lighting

Battery-operated lights or generator-backed lighting systems shall be provided to maintain
visibility during power outages or blackouts.

m. Back-up Power Sources

Emergency generators and/or battery back-up systems shall be integrated into the facility’s
infrastructure to ensure essential operations can continue during extended outages.



ATTACHMENT XXVI

PROTECTION, CONTROL, AND MEASURING
INSTRUMENTS
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Protection, Control and Measuring Instruments

1. Protection and Control

Protection and control will be implemented using protection relays and devices in accordance
with NEPRA standards and applicable 1IEC/IEEE guidelines. The system will ensure reliable fauit
detection, isolation, and operational continuity across the network.

2. MEASURING INSTRUMENTATION

All critical Feeder and offtake nodes will be equipped with metering and monitoring
instruments. These include digital ammeters, vbftmeters, kWh meters, power factor meters,
and energy analyzers, all conforming to NEPRA and IEC/IEEE standards. The metering systems
will facilitate smart energy accounting.



 ATTACHMENT XXVII

TYPE OF METERING SYSTEM TO BE USED
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Tyne of Metering Svstem to be Used

All of the metering systems to be installed will comply with the stipulations of the NEPRA Grid
Code, NTDC specifications, and relevant IEC Standards. These include, but are not limited to,
standards such as DDS-50, DDS-60, DDS-65, IEC 62052-11, and IEC 62052-22.

The exact metering configuration for the project, including CT/PT ratios, communication
protocols, and integration with billing systems, will be finalized during the implementation phase.
The detailed metering scheme shall be submitted to the Authority for review and approval when

required.

e ATIEEE N



ATTACHMENT XXVIII

METERING INSTALLATION AND TESTING FACILITIES
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Metering installation and Testing Facilities

1. Metering Installation

The metering system for the distribution network shall be specifically designed to serve a Bulk
Power Consumer (BPC), namely FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited ({FoST).Metering
installations will adhere to the guidelines set forth by NEPRA in the CSM-21 and other applicable

standards.

Meters will be installed at the respective take-off points of a BPC, ensuring ease of access for
authorized personnel. Each metering point shall be located in a secure, visible, and tamper-proof
location, at an appropriate height, and outside the consumer facility boundary to facilitate clear
access for inspection and meter reading without disruption to either party.

All installations will be carried out using standardized equipment and methods to ensure high

accuracy, safety, and data integrity.
2. Testing Facilities

All energy meters to be deployed for BPC will be pre-tested and calibrated in accordance with
approved testing procedures using certified equipment and laboratories. The objective is to
ensure that all installed meters meet NEPRA's accuracy and compliance requirements.

In addition to pre-installation testing, FPCL will establish on-site testing protocols and engage
qualified technical staff to verify metering performance periodically or upon complaint.

In the event of any discrepancy reported by a BPC regarding energy consumption, the existing
installed meter shall not be disturbed. Instead, a parallel check meter will be installed temporarily
to validate the readings and determine any deviation or fault.

Comprehensive records of all meter installations, calibration certificates, and performance checks
will be maintained as part of the distribution licensee’s compliance documentation.

This metering setup ensures accurate measurement, transparent bitling, and technical reliability
across both consumer points in the distribution network.
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COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS
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Communication Systems

A centralized communication and control system will be established to support operations,
outage coordination, fault reporting, and system health monitoring. The system will be designed
to match the existing operational scale while allowing for scalability.

1. System Overview

A centralized communication and control system will be established to support operations,
outage coordination, fault reporting, and system health monitoring. The system will be designed
to match the existing operational scale while allowing for scalability.

3. Metering Communication
All meters installed at FoST will be digital static meters compatible and capable of:
* Remote reading and periodic data export.
* Recording active, reactive, and apparent power along with power factor and energy usage.
¢ Sending data over secure LAN, fiber, or GPRS, depending on site infrastructure.
4. Control Room Communication
A centralized control room at FPCL will be responsible for:
» Coordinating ocutages, maintenance windows, and load dispatch.
o Communicating with BPC focal points via:
o Dedicated landlines and mobile phones.
o Email alerts and notices.
o Instant messaging (e.g., WhatsApp) during urgent events.
5. Data Handling and Logging
+ All events and system readings will be logged through digital monitoring system.
» Manual shift logs will also be maintained for redundancy.
o Logs will be reviewed for preventive maintenance and compliance documentation.

6. Alarms and Notifications
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The system will generate visual and audible alarms for:

Voltage sags or surges.

Frequency deviations.

Communication loss.

Breaker/fuse operations or faults.

Alarms will be configured to prompt field teams and operations supervisors for rapid response.

7. Cybersecurity and Access

e Access to monitoring and communication systems will be restricted to authorized
personnel.

e User roles and credentials will be managed internally by FPCL IT/OT teams.
« Remote access, if needed, will be secure and limited to VPN-based connections.

8. Future Readiness

The system is scalable to accommodate additional BPC or integration with utility-level monitoring

frameworks. Advanced features {load forecasting, demand response) may be introduced as
operational needs evolve.
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SECP CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

1st Floor SLIC Building No.7, Blue Area,
Islamabad

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

[Under Section 32 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984)

Corporate Universal Identification No. (088936

I hereby certify that FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED is this
day incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984) and
that the company is limited by shares,

Given under my hand at Islamabad this 27th day of June, Two

Thousand and Fourteen.

Fee Rs. 16,272,000/-

Additional Registrar'of Companies




ATTACHMENT XXXI

SERVICE TERRITORY



FFBL POWER COMPANY LIMITED (FPCL)

Proposed Service Territory

FFBL Power Company Limited proposes to supply electric power exclusively to Bulk Power
Consumers (BPCs) within a defined and limited service area. The scope of supply is
restricted to specific commercial and industrial consumers under direct agreements, in
accordance with NEPRA’s regulations governing bulk power supply.

2. Geographic Area
The proposed service territory is located in:

« Country: Pakistan

» Province: Sindh

s Zone: Eastern Zone

e Area: Bin Qasim, Karachi

This area encompasses the operational and facility sites of identified Bulk Power
Consumers situated within the Eastern Zone of Bin Qasim. The infrastructure and energy
delivery systems are exclusively designed for these commerciat and industrial premises.

3. Service Limitations

+ The service territory includes only Bulk Power Consumers with whom FFBL
Power Company Limited maintains formal supply agreements.

» No electricity will be supplied to residential, agricultural, or general public
consumers.

« Al power delivery will occur via dedicated feeders and metering systems,
consistent with applicable technical and regulatory standards.
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4. Site map
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FFBL Power Company Limited undertakes:

» Notto extend its supply operations beyond the defined Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim,
without obtaining prior written approval from NEPRA.

+ To operate within the bounds of its approved license and adhere strictly to
NEPRA’s regulatory framework for bulk power supply.
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MINIMUM SOLVENCY REQUIREMENTS
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Sr.

No.

Requirement

Remarks

shall have and maintain minimum long-term

credit rating of "A" from a credit rating agency
licensed by the SECP and submit a report to the
Authority at the time of application

Long term rating of FPCL is “AA”,
Rating report of VIS Credit Rating Company
Ltd’ is attacheq.

shall have and maintain minimum current ratio
of 1:1

Current ratio of FPCL as on Dec 31, 2024 is
“1.15"

Please refer to Audited FPCL Financial
Statements for the year ended Dec 31, 2024.

shall have minimum paid-up capital of one
hundred and fifty million rupees; and

Paid up capital of FPCL as on Dec 31, 2024 is
PKR 8,587 Mn.

Please refer to Audited FPCL Financial
Statements for the year ended Dec 31, 2024.

shall have and maintain minimum net worth of
five hundred million rupees:

Net worth of FPCL as on Dec 31, 2024 is PXR
27,645 Mn
Please refer to Audited FPCL Financial

| Statements for the year ended Dec 31, 2024.
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~ MINIMUM TECHNICAL AND HUMAN RESOURCE
FULFILMENT
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[ Younas |

Position
Chief Operating Officer (COQO)
Qualification

EMBA - SZABIST-Islamabad
BE. (Mechanical) - UET Lahore

Highlight of Skills

Knowledge & working
experience of complete Services
and Contracts Management,
Experienced in developing
maintenance procedures, quality
control procedures.
Linderstanding of hazardous
process environment & work
permit procedures.
Understanding of IMS
implementation & compliance
(1SC 9001, 14001, 18001)
Familiar with ASME / ASTM /
API / TEMA standards

Resource Management and
Team work.

Good communication and
presentation skills.

Professional Summary
A seasoned professional with diverse

experience in maintenance planning,
contracte management, field maintenance,
project management, construction,
turnaround maintenance, and business
process re-engineering. Currently serving as
Chief Operating Officer (COQ) of FPCL,
leading the operations of a 118 MW coal-
based  co-generation  power  plant.
Previously, held key roles at Fauji Fertilizer
Bin Qasim, including over eight years as a
Maintenance Coordinator, ensuring smooth
O&M execution. A results-driven and
disciplined leader with a strong technical and
business acumen, actively contributing to
safety forums, risk assessments, and
HAZCP teams. Experienced in CMMS, SAP,
and aligning technical strategies with
business objectives. Thrives in challenging
environments, driving operational excellence
and efficiency.

Experience Details

July 2014 — Present

FFBL. Power Company Limited

- Currently serving as Chief Operating
Officer (CO0Q) at FPCL, overseeing the
operations and strategic growth of the
118 MW coai-based co-generation power
plant. Previously led the Coal Power Plant
(CPP) Project as Project Manager,
playing a key role in its development fram
inception to execution. Expertise includes
strategic planning, regulatory
compliance, contract  negotiations,
technology selection, financial modeling,
and team building. Manages overall plant
performance, operational efficiency, and
business expansion while ensuring
compliance with industry standards and
regulatory requirements.

Mar 2008 ~ June 2014) Head Office Fauji

Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd.

Staff Manager — New Business Ventures.

Job Assignment Includes:

- ldentification of the new projects for
strategic Investment, business expansion
and diversification. The spectrum of new
ventures not only includes projects at
National level but alsoc Direct Investment
in foreign ventures as well. Monitor and
apprise  management on  plants
performance i.e. FFBL plant at Bin Qasim
Karachi and Phosphoric acid plant at
Morocco.

- Suggest improvement in company
business operations. Review of annual
business plans. Selection/ Hiring of
Technical personnel. Support to other
departments.

"Jan 1998 ~ Mar 2008 Plantsite Fauji
Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd (FFBL.

Worked on Balancing, Modernization and
Revamp of Ammonia plant for sustained &
increased production to 1570 MTPD from
its existing capacity of 1270 MTPD (50
million dollars Project). Carried out
Engineering, RFQ's preparation, vendor
selection, inspection visits to vendor
workshop and supervision of erection
activities. Lead the team to carry out major
revamp of Primary Reformer along with
erection of two air blowers (K-1001A/B)
including design and engineering of various
equipment.

Also worked as Machinery Maintenance
Engineer in different areas ie, DAP,
Bagging, Urea, Ammonia and Ufilities in
different capacities and as area head
ammonia machinery to execute major
modification jobs on Synthesis
Compressor, Air Compressor Turbines and
Ammonia Compressors.
May 1993 ~ Nov. 1997} Pak-Arab
Fertilizer Ltd. Multan

Worked as Area Engineer in Compressor
and Turbine Department, responsibie for
the smooth running of over 100 rotary
machines. During the tenure worked on
revamping of the Reforming Furnace at
Ammonia plant in coordination with
KELLOGG VSM.

Technical Training
- Auditing of IMS system by Pakistan

Institute of Quality Control.
Hands on Training on Flame Metallizing
Techniques for the internal repair of

pressure  vessels by DONEGANI
ANTICROSSIONE, ITALY.
- Attended Workshop on  Alloying

Material for Furnace Tubes in Kuala
Lumpur by Schmidt & Clemens.

- Maintenance Management

- HSEQ Mngt. System - Intemal Audit

Course.

- SAP Plant Maintenance Academy
Training.

- Occupational Health & industrial
Hygiene.

Management Courses
- Problem solving and Decision making

Techniques by Pakistan Institute of
Management Sciences.

- Effective Presentation Skills by FFC

- High Performance Manager

- Problem Solving & Decision Making

- Occupational Health & Industrial
Hygiene

- Leadership Skills

- Maintenance Management

- Finance for Non-finance Manager

- Project Management



Hyses / Aspen Plus / HTFS—-

Knowledge and
understanding of Plant
Monitoring, centrolling &
Troubleshooting

Resource Management and
Team work.

Good communication and
presentation skills.

Certificates & Trainings

-Writng for Results &
-Communication--.Skills by
Institute of Training &
Consultancy.

- Integrated Management
System (IMS) ‘SO

9001:2000, I1SO 14001:2004
and OHSAS 18001:2007" by
BQl.

- Health, Safety & Environment
related programs and training
at FFBL including Fire
Fighting, Emergency
Handling, Acid Handling, First
Aid and Dry Run activities.

-SAP Plant Maintenance
Academy Training.

- Problem solving and Decision
making Techniques.

- Effective Presentation Skills

- High Performance Manager

- Leadership Skills

based cogeneration plant. Responsibilities

include:

-Managing plant maintenanrce strategies to
ensure operationat efficiency.

- Conducting technical evaluations and root
cause analysis of equipment failures.

- Qverseeing maintenance planning,
budgeting, and execution of shutdowns.

- Coordinating with multi-package contractors
and vendors for technical solutions.

- Ensuring compliance with industry standards

and best practices for plant reliability.

Experience Details .. . . L
FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL)

Senior Manager — Maintenance (2017 -
Present}

- Leading the maintenance division of the 118
MW coal-based cogeneration power plant.

- Developing and implementing maintenance
strategies to ensure plant reliability and
efficiency.

- Conducting root cause analysis of equipment
failures and unplanned shutdowns.

- Managing maintenance planning, budgeting,
and execution of planned shutdowns,

- Coordinating with contractors and vendors fo
optimize plant performance.

FE?IEB!IT’Ty*a%a“ péﬁéfménce ofthe 118 MW coal- Process Engineer (Jan 1997 - Dec 2006)

-Worked on the engineering, design,
erection, and startup of the FFBL
Ferilizer Complex.

-Evafuated engineering designs
compliance  with standards
contractual requirements.

-Led the revamp of the Ammonia plant,
increasing production from 1270 MTPD to
1570 MTPD ($50 mutlion project).

-Conducted equipment performance
evaluations, process simulations, and
efficiency calculations.

-Managed process improvements, plant
modifications, and implementation of new
technologies.

for
and




Mahboob Ahmed

Position

Senior Manager- Maintenance
Qualification

BE. (Chemical) - UET Lahore
Highlight of Skills

Responsible awareness of
safety practices in chemical /
industrial complex.

Understanding of hazardous
process environment & work
permit procedures.

Knowledge, understanding &
working experience in ERP
envircnment (SAP).

Understanding of IMS
implementation & compliance
{1ISO 9001, 14001, 18001)

Proficient in Technical
Reviews, evaluations,
Drawing technical conclusions

Understanding of Process
Engineering Calculations &

Professional Summary

A professional having vast experience in the
field of Power Plants, Chemicals Process
Plants and their associated Utilities,
development of basic concepts, Basic
Engineering Design, Detailed Engineering
Design, field execution, field verification,
functional and performance test execution of
troubleshooting, testing, commissioning and
projects handling. Highly motivated with 17
years of diversified experience in power and
fertilizer plants in leading roles. Leading the
Engineering team of Fauji Power Company
limited (FPCL), wholly owned subsidiary of
Fauji Group, developing 118 MW Coal power
plant. Resuit oriented and disciplined
engineer, an active team player along with
impressive educational and proven
professional track record. Comfortable with
business and technical perspectives and
understands their convergence. Member of
different safety forums, risk assessment and
HAZOP teams. Experienced in using CMMS &
SAP. Comfortable with business and technical
perspectives and  understands  their
convergence. Possess good leaming
capabilities and enjoy working in a chailenging
Environment.

Current Assignments
Presently Assigned as Senior Manager —

Maintenance, FFBL Power Company
Limited

proficient in use of

e e maf o imen Bl

Currently leading the maintenance division at

" Project Engineer — Coal Power Plant

Instailation {2014 — 2017)

-Played a key role in the installation and
commissioning of the 118 MW coal power
piant.

-Managed engineering activities, ensuring
compliance with industry standards and
project timelines.

- Coordinated with EPC contractors for
equipment procurement, installation, and
startup.

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL)
Unit Manager - Process {(Jan 2007 - Dec
2013)

-Led the process engineering team for
Urea, DAP, Ammonia, and Utilities plants.

- Monitored and optimized  plant
performance, resolving technical issues
and improving efficiency.

-Evaluated plant modification requests,
conducted feasibility studies, and
implemented process improvements.

-Conducted root cause anpalysis for
incidents and ensured timely resolution.

-Developed and implemented process
packages and modifications to enhance
plant performance.

- Acted as Depariment Safety Coordinator,

ensuring  compliance  with  safety
procedures.
- Prepared performance reports,

highlighting key operational indicators.



Muhammad Kashif
Jantii

Position

Manager (Operations)

Qualification

BACHELORS OF ENGINEERING
B.E. MECHANICAL)
University of Punjab

Highlight of Skills

Frection, Pre-commissioning
End Commissioning of Coal
Powerplant.

Experience of Ammonia Plant
Erection, Pre-commissioning
@nd Commissioning activities.
Operationai Experience of
lAmmonia Plant for 15 years.
Experience of Ammonia Plant
BMR activities for capacity
enhancement.

Managerial Experience of
years at Ammonia Plant.
Total Experience of 15 years in
Plant Operations.

Project Experience of Coal
based power piant (In
Progress).

Professional Summary

A professional having vast experience in the
field of electrical Power generation,
maintenance  execution, troubleshooting,
testing, commissicning and projects nandiing.
Result ariented and disciplined engineer, an
active team player along with impressive
educational and proven professional track
record. Comfortable with business and
technical perspectives and understands their
convergence, Posses good  learning
capabilities and enjoy working in a challenging
environment.

Experience
July 2014- Present FFBL Power Company

Limited

Experienced in power plant operations,
overseeing  efficiency, reliability, and
compliance. Played a key role in the erection
and coammissicning of FPCL, ensuring smeoth
startup and operational excellence. Skilled in
process optimization, troubleshooting, and
team leadership to enhance plant performance.

Jan. 2005 - Jun 2014 - Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi, Pakistan

As Deputy Unit Manager, Ammonia Unit, at
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd., Karachi,
Pakistan

Basic Responsibilities:

-To handle all the administrative, technical
issues of the unit.

-Ensure safe operation of the plant through
audits, safety talks and EHP discussions.
-Execution of routine jobs in coordination with
planning and maintenance departments.

-BMR activities during 80 days of Turnaround
to increase Production by 300 Met.

Erection, Pre-commissioning and
Commissioning of FFBL Ammonia Plant,
Relocated from Lake Charles, USA.

Duties And Responsibilities:

-Setting up of Technical Training Centre.
-Preparation of Area General and Area Specific
courses

-lmparting lectures to aperating staff.
-Checking and verifying Hydrotest Packages.
-Preparation of punch lists regarding plant
completeness study.

-Preparations of pre-commissioning packages
like chemical cleaning, steam blowing, air
blowing and water flushing etc

-Air biowing of process gas and fuel gas circuits
using portable and process air compressor.
-Steam blowing of high, medium and low-
pressure steam networks with copper target
plaies.

-Preparations of log sheets and checklists.
-Loading of Ammonia Plant catalysts.
-Verification of logics as per configuration in
DCS and in field.

-Hands on working experience on the
Distributed Control System (DCS) of Elsag
Bailey “Infi 90" USA

-Startup of Ammonia plant and bringing it to
normal production.

"Mar 2003 — Dec 2004 — Fauji Fertilizer Bin

Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi, Pakistan.
As Co-ordination Engineer at Fauji Fertilizer
Bin Qasim Ltd., Karachi, Pakistan.

Basic Responsibilities:

-Establishment of efficient coordination
among shift Incharge of various units during
plant startup, shutdown, load changes,
upset in normal operafion and emergencies.
-Coordination with maintenance for prompt
rectification  of defective equipment
especially during off hrs.

-Coordinate with Operations Manager and
respective unit Incharge during plant
abnormalities.

-Act as fire chief during emergencies.

Sep. 1996 - Feb 2003

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd (FFBL),
Karachi, Pakistan

As Ammonia plant” Shift Incharge” at Fauji
Fertilizer Bin Qasim. Ltd., Karachi, Pakistan.
Duties and Responsibilities:

-Ensuring safe and efficient operation of
FFBL Ammonia plant,

-Monitoring of operation of all
equipment, machines and instruments,
-Review of operating data on two hourly
basis.

-Handling of all plant emergencies
-Supervision and follow up of maintenance
jobs.

-Preparation of plant emergency handiing
procedures.

-Preparation of turn around packages.
-Revisions of plant startup and shut down
procedures.

-Conduct emergency handling talk among
staff employees.

-Conduct safety talk to increase safety
awareness among the staff employees.
-Training of the staff.

-Energy conservation and pollution control.

plant

Certificates & Trainings:

-Cooling Water Treatment Technology,
conducted by BUCKMAN Laboratories At
SINGAPORE

-Problem Solving & Decision Making,
conducted by Pakistan Institute of
Management sciences (PIMS)

-Effective Presentation Skills conducted by
FFBL

-Introduction and Operation of DCS
conducted by Descon Limited, on hehalf of
“BAILEY".

Computer Literacy:

-SAP, Lotus Notes, MS Office, MS Access,
Internet & other Software.



Syed Sarfaraz Ahmed

L S

Position

Manager (HSE & Asset
Integrity)

Qualification
B.E. Chemicat
NED University Karachi

Highlight of Skills

Skills in Goal Setting & Work
Planning.

Effective presentation skills.
Communication skills.
Leadership Skills.
Communication Skills Training.
Problem solving and decision
making.

Team Work.

Computer Literacy

SAP, Lotus Notes, MS Office,
MS Access, CTi, PHA and
Hysis software's.

Certificates & Trainings
Cooling Water Operation

Treatment Program

Seminar on RO Membrane
Chemical Cleaning ’
Buckman Cooling Water
Treatment

Buckman Water Treatment
Program

Process Hazard Analysis
(PHA) Techniques

Strategic Time Management
Ultrasonic Flow Meter
Training

Communication Skills
Training

Seminar on Reverse Osmosis
Technology by GE Osmonics
Drew Ameriod Singapore on
CW, Waste & Fuel Treatment

Professional Summary

A professional having vast experience in the
field of Process engineering, Utilities (water
processing, power generation, etc), Safety,
Procurement, Projects handling. Result
oriented and disciplined engineer, an active
team player along with impressive educational
and proven professional track record.
Comfortable with business and technical
perspectives and understands their
convergence. Passes  good learning
capabilities and enjoy working in a challenging
environment.

Experience
July 2017 — Present FFBL Power Company

Limited

Experienced in managing HSE and Asset
Integrity at FPCL, ensuring compliance, risk
assessment, and asset reliability. Skilled in
safety audits, preventive maintenance, and
implementing HSE policies for a safe work
environment.

Nov 2013 - June 2017 Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi

Lead Process & Balance of Plant (BoP)
Worked as Lead Process & BoP for new Coal
Power Plant {(CPP) Project undertaken to
ensure continual of FFBL fertilizer complex by
curtailing Natural gas as fuel and supply of
power and steam requirements of FFBL
fertilizer complex.

CPP project consist of coal based Circulating
Fluidized Bed (CFB) boilers and Stearn Turbine
Generators and sfate of art coal, sorbent and
ash handling system as well as balance of
plants.

Oct. 1996 - Oct 2013 Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi

Staff Unit Manager - Process

(Worked as an In-charge Process / Utilities
Operations / Safety / Procurement}

FFBL is a large Ammonia (1570 MT/D) / DAP
{2230 MT/D) / Urea (1920 MT/D) ferilizer
complex possessing own power generation of
52 MW (02 Gas Turbines). Company is IMS
{Quality, Environment & OHSAS) certified. All
major processes of the organization are
managed thru ERP (SAP) system modules.
www.ffbl.com

Process Engr.

“Worked with Engineering Group during
engineering design, erection and start-up of
FFBL fertilizer complex.

-Review and evaluation of engineering design
w.r.t. codes & standards and compliance with
Contractual requirements for EPC side of FFBL
fertilizer complex i.e. Urea, DAP and Utilities
units.

-Worked as various capacities as Process
Engineer mainly focusing on Utilities and DAP
and worked as acting Process Engineering
Unit.

Following were job performed:-

-Evaluate requests for plant modification,
recommends appropriate  solutions and
proposes changes as hecessary, gather,
researches and analyze pertinent data and
information and prepares recommendations
with supporting technical data.

-Prepare PFDs, Piping and Instrumentation
Diagrams.

"~ Performance evaluation of compressors, heat

exchangers, gas turbines, cooling fower, efc.

-Conduct quarterly Technical Menitoring
Program and developing reports.

-Prepared process packages {or  plant
modification requirement based on cost

saving, energy efficiency, safety, reliability and
capacity enhancement.

-Developing production loss reports in
consultation with Operation & Maintenance,
-Developing weekly, fortnightly & monthly
reports for Management Information Channel
indicating Key Performance Indicators of
Plants.

-Daily technical monitoring of plant operation /
upsets / deviations and suggestions for
corrective actions.

Worked as UM-Safety & HAZOP. Actively
persuade for actively implementations of
safety procedures and instruments to ensure
incident free work environment at the fertilizer
complex.

“Worked as Procurement Engineer in PMP
during Secondment along with Process
Engineer as well as performed role of
Secretary for PMP Management Committee
reporting to BoD.

Staff UM- Utiiities (Operations)

-Ensure safe and quality supplies of utilities to
the Ammonia, Urea, DAP, PH&S and offsite
facilities, maintain proper performance track
and quality controls, ensure consistent supply
of steam, power, cooling water, industrial
water, chilled water, potable water, plant and
instrument air.

-Maintenance of plant HYAC. Control plant
effluent discharge and emissions within
national environmental quality standards in
order to provide utllities as per defined
parameters and standards.

-Manage Cperations of utilities unit, prepare of
chemical requirement reporis, review
Process/Mechanical packages developed by
Technical Services Department for
modifications and improvements, etc.

-Ensure the implementation of IMS policies
and procedures; operate the plant as per
standards for external and intemal audits.
April 94 - Aug 95 Gatron Polyester, Karachi,
-Joined Gatron Polyester in 1894 as Shift
Engineer

-A  leading polyester company, which
manufactures polyester chips and polyester
yarn. The raw material used in the
manufacturing is Mono-Ethylene Glycol (MEG)
and Pure Teraphatic Acid (PTA).

-Job was related to arrange shift and note
down the features of the previous shift. To
minimize waste generation of polymeric waste
in spinning section during the shift,



Muhammad Khalid
i Jaiil

Position
Manager-Technical (L & [}
Qualification

B.Sc. Engg. Mechanical
(UET), Lahore
MBA Finance/Marketing
{IBA), Karachi

Highlight of Skills

Effective Presentation Skills
Communication Skills
Effective Delegation Skills
Effective Meeting Skills
Leadership Skills

Professional Summary

A professional having vast experience in the
field of Mechanical engineering especially
maintenance of rotating equipment in
computerized SAP environment. Result
oriented and disciplined engineer, an active
feam player along with impressive
educational and proven professionat track
record. Comfortable with business and
technical perspectives and understands their
convergence. Possess good learning
capabilities and enjoy working in a
challenging environment.

Experience
Manager Technical L&D | 2022 — Present

Leading technical learning and deveiopment
initiatives ~ to enhance  engineering
capabilities. Responsible for designing and
implementing training programs, conducting
skill assessments, and ensuring knowledge
transfer across teams to improve operational
efficiency and reliability.

Lead Engineer Mechanical & Solid
Handling | FPCL | 2014 - 2021

Managed the engineering, design, and
supply of all rotating equipment and solid
handling systems for the 118 MW Coal
Power Plant project Oversaw the
installation, commissioning, and operational
readiness of coal, sorbent, and ash handling
systems. Collaborated with EPC contractors,
ensured compliance with industry standards,
and optimized system performance for plant
reliability and efficiency.

12 September 1996 - October 2013

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd {FFBL),
Karachi, Pakistan

Staff Unit Manager — Mechanical

(Worked  as Project  Procurement,
Construction, Machinery Engineer and SAP
Plant Maintenance Module Implementation
and Power user and Lead Machinery and
Solid Handling in CPP Project)

FFBL is a large Ammania {1570 MT/D) / DAP
(2230 MT/D) { Urea (1920 MT/D) fertilizer
complex possessing own power generation
of 52 MW (02 Gas Turbines). Company is
IMS (Quality, Environment & OHSAS)
certified. All major processes of the
organization are managed thru ERP (SAP)
system modules. www.ffbl.com

SAP Plant Maintenance (PM) Module
Power User

Worked as core team member in SAP Plant
Maintenance Module implementation during
Information Technology Enabled
Organizational Transformation (ITET)
Project. Following were job performed:-
-Evaluate the “As is Maintenance Process”
for process reengineering.

-Design the customized the new
maintenance  process  lke  normal,
preventive, refurbishment and turn around
maintenance and fleet management.

'-Design and prepare the master data like

equipment, functional locations, measuring
points for PM module.

-Train the SAP Go-Live Team for smooth
implementation.

-Provide support during and after SAP Go-
Live in April 2010.

-Design different reports for Business
Intelligence Module for maintenance
department.

Machinery Maintenance Engineer
Worked as Machinery Maintenance
Engineer in different areas ie. DAP,
Bagging, Urea, Ammonia and Utilities in
different capacites and as area head
utiliies machinery, Main assignments are
as follows:

-Maintenance and spare parts management
of all rotating equipment of assigned area.

-Preventive maintenance of rotating
equipment of assigned area.,
-Cost saving and overall machinery

maintenance budget preparation.

-GE frame 5, 26.2MW, Model MS5001P
Gas turbine major overhauling in FFBL
during Turnaround 2006, 2007 and 2012
and in FFC-GM in TA-2006.

-Vast experience of maintenance of various
types of rotating equipment including
pumps, centrifugal compressors, instrument
air compressor, steam turbines, gear boxes,
fans & blowers, conveyor belts, crushers,
bucket elevator, screens and feeders etc.
Project Procurement Engineer

During FFBL erection phase worked as
Project Procurement Engineer in Technical
Construction Services. Main assignments in
that phase were as follows:

-Review of mechanical drawings of pumps,
turbines, compressors, heat exchangers,
reformer, piping plans and isometrics and
preparation of Bill of Materals for
procurement.

-Project phase procurement and inspection
experience of mechanical parts and
accessories of worth Rs. 43.8 million and
US $ 3.31 million,

Certificates & Trainings:

Maintenance Management

HSEQ Mngt. System - Internal Audit
Course

SAP Plant Maintenance Academy Training
Occupational Health & Industrial Hygiene
General Cotrosion

Project Management

Problem Sclving and Decision Making
Time Management

Team Work

Coaching, Motivating And Delegating

High Performance Manager

People Management

Role of Manager During Performance
Appraisal

Conflict Management

EQ - Emotional Intelligence

Computer Literacy:
SAP, Lotus Notes, MS Office, Power Point.



Farhan Ahmed Mazari

Fosition
Unit Manager - Electrical

Qualification

Bachelors of Engineering
(B.S . Electronics)

Highlight of Skills

GE Frame-5 Gas Turbines
(MS5001) with Speedtronic
Mark-V control system.

Conversant with Mark-V control
system hardware and software,
Carried out major overhauling
of machines in annual
shutdown.

alibration of servo regulators.

Updating of different HMI

displays.

Installation of Bentley Nevada

\Vibration monitoring system.

Logic modifications in CSP and

downloading in different

nrocessors.

Rectification of diagnostic and

process alarms.

Exposure to fire suppression

systems and its various alarms

rectification.

Gas turbine and Mark V spare

parts ordering, inspection and

inventory updating.

Time Management Skills.

Effective Presentation Skills.

Distributed Control System.

IABB Bailey INFI-90 Open.

IABB symphony PCP Tenore.

IABB Industrial IT 800xA Ver.

5.0 / Composer 5.0.

HIMA H51-HS.

\Allen-Bradley PLCS & Flex

Logix 5000 Series.

Turbo-Machinery Control.

(GE SpeedTronics Mark-V

Turbine Control System.

Triconex TS5-3000 Turbine

Control System.

Woodward Peak-150.

Woodward S-505.

Machine Monitoring System.

Bently Nevada 3500.

Bently Nevada 3300.

Others.

Burner Management Systems,

Ohmart-Vega Nuclear Density

Meters.

Analyzers.

Kl;ransmitters & Switches.
ibration probes, Speed
ensors etc.

Control Valves, Positioners, |/P

converters eic.

Professignal Summary

A diverse experience encompassing 18
yeare in the fiald of Instrumentation and
Controls including Engineering, Design,
Erection, Commissioning and Maintenance
at chemical plant at various positions.

Experience

July 2014 - Present

FFBL Power Company Limited

Currently leading the |&C Team, overseeing
design reviews, budgeting, and planning for
the Coal Power Plant (CPP). Experienced in
project execution, contractor supervision,
and technical/commercial document
evaluation. Skilled in equipment installation,
troubleshooting, SAP work order
management, and developing preventive
maintenance schedules. Focused on
optimizing inventory, ensuring critical spare
availability, and training staff for enhanced
operational efficiency.

Aug. 2006 - June 2014 - Fauiji Fertilizer
Bin Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi, Pakistan.
Designation: Deputy Manager
(instrument & Control}

FFBL is one of the leading and sole granular
Urea and granular DAP fertilizer
manufacturing company in Pakistan. FFBL
also has a Joint Venture with OCP Group of
Morocco, for the production of merchant
grade Phospharic acid in Morocco, which is
not only transported to Karachi for DAP
fertilizer manufacturing, but also marketed
internationally.

‘Certificates & Trainings

-Writing for Results & Communication Skills
by Institute of Training & Consultancy.

-integrated Management System (IMS)
‘SO 9001:2000, ISO 14001:2004 and
QHSAS 18001:2007" by BQL.

-Health, Safety & Environment related
pregrams and training at FFBL including
Fire Fighting, Emergency Handling, Acid
Handling, First Aid and Dry Run activities.

Computer Literacy

SAP, Lotus Notes, MS Office, MS Access,
Internet & other Software.



Ahmed Nawaz

L _

Position
Unit Manager (Inspection)

Qualification

BACHELORS OF ENGINEERING
(B.E. MECHANICAL)

Highlight of Skilis

COADCALC (Pressure Vessel
Heat Exchanger Designing
Software).

ALGOR PIPE PLUS (Piping

AUTO PIPE (Piping Design
land Analysis Software).
STAAD PRO (Structure
Designing and Analysis
Software).

E-TANK (Storage Tank Design
Software)

MS PROJECT.

UTOCAD.
S-OFFICE.

Design and Analysis Software).

Professional Summary

Present working with Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Limited (FFBL), one of the leading
fertilizer manufacturers in Pakistan, with
production capacities of 1570 MTPD
Ammonia, 1570 MTPD Urea and 2400
MTPD DAP plant, as Section Manager with
more than Sixteen years of experience in
Project Management.

Experience

Inspection Department | FPCL | 2022 -

Present

-Overseeing inspection and
monitoring of boilers, steam
balance-of-plant (BOP) equipment,
critical rotating machinery.

- Conducting non-destructive testing (NDT),
vibration analysis, thermography, and
hydrostatic testing.

-Performing root cause failure analysis
(RCFA) for equipment breakdowns and
unscheduled shutdowns.

- Ensuring compliance with industry QA/QC
standards, safety regulations, and
operational reliability.

- April. 2000 — QOct 2013 - Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi,

condition
turbines,
and

Project Engineer | FPCL | 2014 — 2022

-Key role in the installation and
commisgsioning of the 118 MW FPCL Coal
Power Plant.

- Oversaw engineering design, procurement,
and construction supervision for major
mechanical systems.

- Managed inspection and quality confrol of
boilers, turbines, coal handling systems,
and auxiliary equipment.

-Ensured successful project execution
through technical assessments, material
inspections, and confractor coordination.

Ammonia Plant Bmr Project

Involved in BMR {balancing modermnization
and revamp) of Bechtel Ammonia Plant as a
core team member from 2004 to 2008. Major
responsibilities includes:

-Engineering, Procurement and installation
of Natural Gas Compressor along with civil
works and associated piping.

-Revamp of Old Primary Reformer (1965
vintage), Foster Wheeler design. It includes
installation of new 432 micro-alloy catalyst
tubes with larger diameter for reliability and
capacity enhancement.

-Procurement, replacement & repair of
Secondary Reformer {(C-102) High Intensity
Burner.

-Procurement, Engineering review and
Installation of Ammonia Recovery Unit along
with civil works and associated piping.
-Procurement, Engineering review and
Installation of BFW Pre-Heater (E-205) along
with civil works and associated piping.

"_Procurement,

Engineering review and
Installation of Low Pressure Steam
Generator (E-2002) along with civil works
and associated piping.

-Procurement, kngmeerng review and
Installation of Ammonia Converter Effluent
Cooler (E-302A/B) along with civil works
and associated piping.

-Engineering, Procurement and installation
of New Cooling Water Pump along with civil
works and associated piping.

Join Fauji Fertilizer as a Project Engineer
in 2001 and worked in Project
Engineering Unit till 2004. Major
responsibilities include:

-Preparation of engineering packages for
plant modification jobs as per codes &
standards & ensuring the execution of jobin
the area as per engineering package.
-Designing and analysis of existing as well
as new structures, platforms and piping
supports

-Designing and analysis
vessels.

-Designing and flexibility analysis of existing
as well as new piping system.
-Development of welding
specifications for various jobs.
-Designing of on line box-up to rectify
leakages without shutdown of plant.
-Arrangement / procurement of material.

of pressure

pracedure

Inspection Unit

As a part of cross training program | worked
as Inspection Engineer from 2008 to 2013
with following job responsibilities:

-Internal, external and on-stream
inspections of plant equipment inciuding
pressure vessels, columns, furnaces,

boilers, exchangers, tanks etc.
-Preparation of inspection reports to record
observations and recommend repair work in
equipment. Maintaining equipment history /
records.

-Hydrostatic and leak testing of all types of
heat exchangers, piping & vessels.
-iImplementation of 14 years “Piping
Thickness Monitoring Plan” by using
ultrasenic technique of all the major plant
piping circuits as per API 570.

-Skin temperature measurement of high
temperature refractory lined equipment of
ammonia plant using infrared temperature
meters & thermography.

-Material verification of incoming warehouse
inventory against MTCs,

-Material dentification using alloy analyzer
& laboratory analysis.

-PSV calibration & record keeping.
-Pressure testing of all types of new &
refurbished valves as per AP! 508.



May 2000 — March 2001 -
Asia Engineers &
Contracicrs “arachi.
Estimation / Planning /
Project Engineer

| worked with Mechanical
Engineering contractor “Asia
Engineers & Contractors”
dealing with the fabrication,
erection and repair of pressure
vessels, shell & tube heat
exchangers, storage tanks,
plant piping and steel
structures.

Job Responsibilities:
-Estimation, planning,
scheduling and monitoring of
mechanical projects.
-Preparation of bids for all
types of mechanical projects.
-Preparation of construction
schedule for various project /
fabrication activities.
-Designing & development of

fabrication drawings of
mechanical equipment.
-Supervision of fabrication

activities of tanks and vessels.

Major Projects Handled:

-BP  Pakistan Exploration
(Formerly Union  Texas
Pakistan Inc.).

-Fabrication / repair of tanks &
vessels at site as well as in
workshops.

-Dalda Gil /Banaspati
(UniLever Pakistan Ltd.).
-Supply & fabrication of 02 nos
Qil Storage tanks.

-Supply & fabrication of
Stainless Steel tanks for
Margarine plant.

-Lipton Tea Company
{UniLever Pakistan Ltd.).
-Supply & fabrication of

working platforms for the
inspection of Tea Conveyor.

Nov 1999 — April 2000
M&J  Engineering
Karachi.

Ltd

Assistant Engineer

I worked with Mechanical
Engineering Confractor “M&J
Engineering Ltd.” Dealing
with the Fabrication & Erection
of Power Plants, Chemical, &

Petrochemical Piants &
various Mechanical
Equipment's like Pressure
Vessels, Heat Exchangers,

Storage Tanks & Over Head
Cranes.

Job Responsibilities:

various projects.

-Preparation of daily progress report for
various jobs in hand.

-Coordinating between different job sites &
also with the client so as to facilitate timely
completion of the project.

-Development of fabrication drawings of
mechanical equipments.

-To ensure execution of job in accordance
with the drawing, design & construction
schedule during fabrication.

June 1997 — Nov 1999 Sagri Associates
Karachi.
Design Engineer

| worked as a Design Engineer with
Mechanical Engineering Consultant “Sagri
Associates” dealing with the Design of Oil
Storage Tanks and Terminals at Port Qasim.
Job Responsibilities:

-Layout planning for oil storage terminals.
-Design of oil storage tanks,

-Development of fabrication drawings of oil
storage tanks,

-Development of pipeline key plan, internal
piping layouts and. lsometric drawings.
-Detailing of mechanical, electrical, & civil
works on AutoCAD.

-Preparation of bills of materials for various
activities.

-Preparation of tender documents / analysis
and evaluation of bids.

-Monitoring of the schedule submitted by the
contractor and development of progress
sheets for various activities.

-Contractor’s bill verification.

-Development of As-built drawings.
-General site inspection especially of
mechanical works & rectification of site
problems.

"Certificates & Trainings:

-Project Management, by PIMS

-Problem Solving and Decisicn Making, by
TLO.

“GUNGHQ" Team Building, by Navitus.
-Change Management Workshop by
Navitus.

-Goal Setling & Work Planning, by Navitus.
-Effective Presentation Skills, by FFBL
Training Center.

-Effective Communication Skills, by PIMS
-Strategic Management by L & D FFBL.
-Stress and Time Management by M/s
Octara.

-Conflict Management by M/s Qctara.

-High Performance Manager by M/s Evolve
-Finance for non-finance Manager by
Pakistan Society for Training and
Development.

-Basic French Language course from
Alliance Francaise, Karachi.

-General Corrosion by Ex- Corrosion expert
of Stamicarbon .BV.

-Corrosion / Cooling and Boiler Water
Treatment by M/s Buckman.

-API1-510 Pressure Vessel Inspection and
Rerating.

-API-580/ APl  RP-581Risk
Inspection Technology.

-API-653 Above Ground Storage Tank,
Scope & Inspection by SGS Pakistan.
-Basic Vibration Monitoring course by SKF.
-IMS Audit Technigues by SGS Pakistan.

Based



Anees Afzal
L |

Position
(Mechanical Engineer)
Qualification

B.E. MECHANICAL
UET. Peshawar

Highlight of Skills

Played a key rale in Erection,
Pre Commissioning and
Commissioning of Coal Power
plant.

Carried out part of .
engineering in house to speed
up the engineering /
procurement phase and able
to complete the Ammonia
BMR project in time and
within budget.

Evaluate that it is safe to
operate Ammonia Plant
Secondary Reformer even
after a number of hot spots
due to refractory failures, 8.2
million dollars were saved in
8.4 million dollars Secondary
Reformer replacement
project,

Overnight designed of bundle
pulling structure for Low
Pressure Corbamate
Condenser which reduced the
downtime by 05 days as
crane of such capacity was
not available in the vicinity.
Conversion of data from
legacy system to SAP
requirement in five days
against estimated time of 02
months, by MM team
members and make SAP Go-
live on time. All this become
possible by the help of
Almighty Allah and my
exceptional / unmatched skills
in MS Excel.

Got First Position in Final
Year Mechanical Engineering
with Highest ever marks in
Mechanical Depariment.

Professional Summary

With over 20 years of experience, Anees
Afzal specializes in piping and mechanical
equipment design, project execution, and
plant operations. He spent over a decade at
FFBL Fertilizer Complex, focusing on piping
design, structurai analysis, and mechanical
supervision, After 2014, he played a key role
in the erection and commissioning of a coal
power plant. Currently, as Manager -
Projects at FPCL, he leads project planning,
execution, and technical evaluations,
ensuring  compliance  with  industry
standards. Skilled in AutoPIPE, STAAD Pro,
AUtoCAD, and MS Office, he excels in cost
estimation, bid evaluations, and engineering
management.

Experience
June 2014 - Present

FFBL Power Company Limited:

Role- Manager Projects Department
Currently working as Manager — Projects at
FPCL, oversees project planning, execution,
and contractor management. Played a key
role in the erection and commissioning of the
coal power plant. Responsible for technical
evaluations, cost estimation, bid
assessments, and ensuring compliance with
industry  standards for large-scale
engineering projects.

March-2009 to June 2014- Fauji Fertilizer
Bin Qasim Ltd. (FFBL), Karachi, Pakistan
-Role: Project Engineer

-Areas of responsibility:

-Project Documentation Manger
-Implemented Project System , Investment
Management and DMS modules

-Solutions includes CAPEX, Tumaround,
Document Management

Jan-2008-Feb-2009) IT Enabled Business
Transformation Project. Fauji Fertilizer
Bin Qasim Ltd (FFBL.), Karachi, Pakistan

Evaluation of Ammonia Plant Secondary
Reformer for its safe and continued
operation. Engaged M/s Hador Topsoe for
engineering. (8.4 million dollars project).
Equipment was technically found safe for its
continued operation and project was closed.

"Mar-2005-Dec 2007 Fauji Fertilizer Bin

Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi.

Worked on Balancing, Modernization and
Revamp of Ammenia plant for sustained &
increased production to 1570 MTFD from ils
existing capacity of 1270 MTPD (50 million
dollars Project)

Key responsibilites of Ammonia BMR
includes:

HEAT EXCHANGERS AND VESSELS
(AMMONIA BEMR)

-Carried out Engineering, RFQ's
preparation, vendor selection, inspection
visits to vendor workshop and supervision of
erection activities.

-The scope incudes for the following
exchangers and vesseis:
-Trim Heater, E-212
exchanger)

-DMW Preheater, E-2010
-Syn Gas Chiller, E-2011
-Methanator Feed / Effluent exchangers, E-
209A/B

-Back End Steam Generators, E-322A/B
-Methanator Knockout drum {C-2011)

AIR BLOWERS (AMMONIA BMR)
-Erection of two air blowers (K-1001A/B)
including design and engineering of the
following associated equipments:

-Suction filters, L-1001A/B

-After coolers, E-1002A/B

-Knockout drums, C-1009A/8

-Methanator Knockout drum, C-211

This project offered a great chalienge due to
area limitation in existing ammonia plant
layout.

(gas-gas heat

-Development of layout, piping isometrics
and support structure design, ordering of
piping material for Benfield (CO2 removal
system,) revamp {about 60 process gas and
solution lines). Reviewed and finalized its
piping flexibility analysis at M/s Chemprod
office, Milan ltaly (02 visits}).

-Engineering and execution of Low-Heat
system for energy efficiency of Benfield
system. A Benfield solution Flash Vessel
was installed at 20 meters from FFL along
with four Steam Ejectors.

-Modification in a number of vessels
including;

-Conversion of tray system in Benfield
fowers to packed bed with addition of 09
new nozzles and man-ways followed by
localized heat treatment of vessels

-06 knockouts were modified with enlarge
nozzles and new internals.

-04 Heat exchangers were modified with
enlarge nozzles and 01 heat exchanger was
elevated for better performance.

-Flexibility analysis of exiting process air
compressors (K-101 A/B) suction, discharge
and interconnecting piping.

-Prepared as-built isometric contract of
ammonia plant required for BMR.

Cost estimate of Urea Plant BMR (€ 40 MiM)
based on study conducted by M/s
Stamicarbon to increase production from

_ 1760 MTPD to 2400 MTPD.



Oct-19989-Feb 2005

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim
Lid {FFBL), Warachl

-Stress analysis of complete
Benfiled piping circuit (CO2
removal system in Ammonia
Plant), its piping rerouting,
design of new structure for its
supports. The circuit contains
06 pumps and 02 HPRT.
-Flexibility analysis of Steam
Export circuit from Ammonia
Plant to Urea Plant (70 Million
Rupees / yr saving project)
-Design of expansion loop for
BFW pump (G-106A/B) to
eliminate existing damaged
expansion bellows.

-Stress analysis of new ZnO
Desulfurization project piping
system.

-Excess vibration removal of 8
NPS line from Stripper to
rectifying column.
-Rectification  of  vibration
problem and provision of Y-
type suction strainers at high
pressure BFW supply pumps
(G-403A/B} and BFW pumps
to MS header (G-418A/B).

Structure design  using
STAAD-Pro including
Monorails, Jib cranes,
platforms, walkways (74

MeT of steel structure was
analyzed and designed),
including:

-Rigging structure for bundle
pulling structure (11 MeT) for
Low Pressure Corbamate
Condenser (UH-271).
-Interconnection of Urea Wet
with Urea Granulation plants
(3.0 MeT).

-Interconnection of desorber
with Urea Wet (4.8 MeT).
-Monorail at Urea top, a large
portion of existing structure of
urea wet was analyzed to
check its safety for additional
loading (27 MeT).

-Rigging structure for bundle
pulling structure (05 MeT) for
Reflux Condenser (UH-411).
-Suspended maintenance
platform for Urea granulation
screens (7.6 MeT).

Other Mechanical Design Packages
based on Service Requests (PCRs)
-Macharical Deasign Packaae for sulfuric
acid dosing system to coocling towers,
including design of new sulfuric acid day
tank, its associated piping.

-lnvolve in erection of new HRSG.
(Replacement of existng 80 MeT/hr
problematic HRSG with new Macchi boiter of
130 MeT/hr capacities).

-Design  review and implementation
packages of several major piping and other
plant modification and improvement jobs
including piping, pressure vessels, tanks &
structure etc.

-Weld and other repair procedures for
various plant problems including a Chart for
welding procedures of common material
used in FFBL.

Inspection Engineer

-A number of visits to vendor workshop for
inspection of heat exchangers / pressure
vessels fabrication, including inspection of
Backend Steam Generators at M/s Borsig
Germany.

-Pressure vessels inspection of over twenty
vessels in annual turnarounds.

-Ingpection of boiler, heat exchangers and
piping systems.

-Hydro testing of piping, vessels and heat
exchangers.

-Experience in thickness monitoring, Dye
penetrant testing, etc.

Good knowledge of corrosion phenomenon
and other testing techniques.

June-1998-Sep 1999 Fauji Fertilizer Bin
Qasim Ltd (FFBL), Karachi.

Worked as a planning engineer during
erection of Pak Arab Refinery Project with
Descon engineering. Assignments include
planning of manpower & consumables and
production of progress reports & Invoicing for
piping erection job. Most of these jobs were
handles using Primavera Project Planner
and other software developed by Descon.

Materials Warehouse

-Worked as a materials engineer with local &
foreign ordering

-Experience of warehouse operations
Safety, Health and Environment

-Safety Coordinator for Project Engineering
at FFBL,

-Conducted weekly safety talks
numerous safety-training sessions.
-Review of FFBL safety manual,
Integrated Management System
-Developed a number of Procedures and
Work Instruction for Project Engineering
based on IMS (ISO 9001:2000, ISO
14001:2004 & OSHAS 18001:2007).
-Trained as IMS auditor by M/s Bureau
Veritas with a number of refresher courses.
-Conducted a number of IMS internal audits
of different section.

and

" Certificates & Trajnings:

-High Performance Managers by M/s
Nabitus (02 days).

-Computer course for AutcCAD and MS
office (15 days).

-Primavera Project Planner (30 days).
-Piping design and flexibility analysis {03
days).

-Management Skills (02 days).

-Problem Solving & Decision Making (01
day).

-Workshop on Communication skills (01
day).

-Time Managements (02 days).

-Integrated Management System (QHSE)
Auditor Course along with 03 refresher
workshops ({04404 + 01 +01 +01 days).
-Safety Training (01+ 01 days).

-Safe driving course (01 + 01 days).
-Medical first aid training course (01 day).
-Effective Presentation Skills (02 days).
-Management course for Junior Executives
(03 days).

-High Performance Managers (02 days).
-Goal setting & Work Planning (02 days).
-Level-ll training on SAP Projects Systems.

Computer Literacy:
Major working experience in following

General Software;

MS Office

MS Project

Primavera Project Planner

Visual Basic

Lotus Notes

Major working experience in following
Engineering Soft wares:

-AutoPIPE Plus, Piping design and stress
analysis.
-ALGOR-Pipeplus,
stress analysis.
-STAAD Pro,
Analysis.
-AutaCAD, Drafting software.
-CODECALC, Designing and evaluation of
gasket, flange, pressure vessel etc.
-STAHL, Key to steel.

-CADWORX-PIPE, 3D modeling of piping
with Isogen.

-TEMA Tubesheet, Exchanger Tubesheet
designer.

-Compress, Pressure Vessel designing.
Develop Engineering Software’s for
Project Engineering, :

Piping design and

Structure design and

-Software for preparation of Welding
Procedure Specifications in MS-ACCESS
with Visual Basic.

-On-Line Box-up for flange leakages with
compiete database.

-Pipe thickness design based on B31.3
-Piping branch [/ Vessel opening
reinforcement design based on B31.3 /
ASME Sec. IV Div-L

insulation & Painting system with BOM
generation.



and good speaking and
writing ability in Urdu and
English.

Experience to manage large
team of more than one
department.

- Engmeenng & Commissioning of ABB

800xa DCS for HRSG, Balance of Plant Tetemetry System.

&ESD of CoGen Power Plant in Lotte
PPTA.

Job Scope

Logic & HMI development DCS hardware
Panel design, FAT of hardware, MODBUS
TCP communication of DCS with Natural
Gas Compressors PLCs, Diverter Damper

PLC and Gas Turbine PLC, testing &

L AW AEN 3 geaenBevnrir ¢ m¥us  masaedy

- Instaliation, Calibration and Data logging

configuration on GSM of Electromagnetic
Insertion type Flow meters (ABB Aqua
Probe 2) in WSS813 project for Karachi
Water & Sewerage Board {(KW&SB).
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Muhammad Ayaz Butt

Position
Unit Manager — Instrument
Qualification

Bachelors in industrial Electronics
Engineering

Institute of Industrial Electronics
Engineering

Highlight of Skills

Practical Knowledge &
experience of Installation,
Engineering &
Commissioning of both
server based & Hybrid DCS
and PLC based systems in
various Processes.
Practical experience in O&M
activities in Power plants and
Qil & Gas field including
troubleshooting of control
system hardware and HMI
issues and configuration and
tuning of control loops.
Experience of reading and
development of loop,
Electrical & Termination
drawings for Cantrol System
projects on AutoCAD& MS
Visio.

Experience in Pre Projects
DCS& PLC design and
reading P&ID to segregate
process variable tags for
system designing.

Skills to manage & leading
projects and experience in
supervision of contractor
during installation jobs in
projects.

Good hands on experience
on process instrument
installation and calibration
and actuation system,
Experience of FAT (Factory
Acceptance Test) & SAT
{Site Acceptance Test) in
DCS& PLC projects.
Experience of
Commissioning of Motor
Drives (AC & DC Drives) in

various industries.
Crnd Cammunicotinon Skille

Professional Summa
Experienced in managing instrumentation

and control {I&C) systems for power plant
operations, ensuring reliability, efficiency,

tand compliance with industry standards.

Skilled in project execution, maintenance
planning, troubleshooting, and calibration of
instruments. Expertise in automation, control
system oplimization, contractor supervision,
and technical evaluations to enhance plant
performance and operational safety

Experience

July 2014 — Present

FFBL Power Company Limited
Responsible for overseeing instrumentation
and control (I&C) systems, ensuring reliable

plant operations. Manages project
execution, technical evaluations,
maintenance planning, and contractor

supervision. Experienced in troubleshooting,
testing, calibration, and installation of
instruments while ensuring compliance with
safety and industry standards. Skilled in

optimizing plant performance through
automation and control system
enhancements.

ABB Pvt. Ltd. Pakistan

1st May, 2008 to 30th May, 2014.

Senior Project Engineer Process

Automation (Project Design & Execution).

Server based DCS (800xa System).

- Engineering & Commissioning of Vertical
Cement Mill in Al-Abbas Cement Lid.

- Job Scope
Logic & HMI development, System
configuration, Commissioning,
Networking of server client based DCS
System, Startup & SAT of System for
Vertical Cement Mill Process Control.

- Engineering & Commissioning of Rope
Dyeing Machine in Mekotex Karachi.

- Job Scope

- Logic & HMI development, System
configuration, System Networking,
Commissioning, Startup & SAT of System
for Rope Dyeing Machine Automation.

- Engineering & Commissioning of DCS for
Station Control & ESD System for
Compression plant in Qadirpur Gas Field.

- Job Scope
- Logic & HMI development, System
configuration, Commissioning,

Networking of server client based DCS &
ESD System, MODBUS TCP
communication of 14 Alien Bradley PLCs
on compressors with DCS, Startup & SAT
of System of 14 Gas Compressors Control
for 150 mmscfd Natural Gas expansion

~ M Il

" Hybrid DCS {Freelance 2000 System).

- Engineering & Commissioning of Data

Center in Islamabad (Building
iMianagement Sysiem).
- Job Scope

- Logic design and development, DCS
Panel design, HMI development,
Installation of Instrument for building
automation, Networking of System along
with MODBUS (RS485) communication of
ABB DCS with third party equipment and
ABB LV Panel and commissioning of ABB
LV panel. Supervision of contractor was
also part of job scope in Panel and
instrument installation.

- Engineering & Commissioning of Burner &
Furnace Control Loop for 84 tons boiler in
National Refinery.

- Job Scope
- Logic development, HMI development,
Networking of System along with

MODBUS (RS485) communication of
ABB DCS with ABB Burner Managernent
System PLC AC31, Commissioning and
start up of 84 tons Boiler.

- Up gradation of front end of ABB
Freelance 2000 DCS from old version to
latest version in Pakistan Petroleum
Limited (PPL) Mazarani Gas Field.

- Job Scope

- Up gradation included Replacement of old
workstations with new workstations with
latest version of Freelance 2000 installed
(Windows 7 Compatible), Networking of
system with DCS hardware, Modification
in their existing control loops and
modification in ESD logics in ABB Trigaurd
PLC (SIL2 System). Whole activity was
done in their 4 days Annual Shutdown
period.

infi30 & B0Oxa Harmony,

- Communication of CM50 controliers with
Infis0 DCS via MODBUS RS485 layer
PPL Sui Gas field.

- Job Scope

- Communication of 4 CMS0 single locp
controllers (Slaves) with BRC400 (Master)
via MODBUS RTU on RS5485 layer in PPL
Sui Gas Field.

- Up gradation of front end of ABB Infi90
DCS with 800 Harmony System of Urea &
Utility Plant in Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim
Limited.

- Job Scope

- HMI development, Installation of Servers,
Networking of PCUs (Infi90 link) with
800xa servers, 800xa system
configuration for infi90 control system
Commissioning and start up activities of

Hlraa 2 1 itilitu Plante
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Positicn

IUnit Manager (Projects
Department)

Qualification

ME Energy sys-NED- (2008}
BE Mechanical-NED- (2004)

Highlight of Skills

Strong Presentation Skills
Effective Communication
Efficient Delegation

Productive Meeting Management
Leadership & Team
Management

MBA Marketing-UOK- (2010)

| Experienced Mechanical Engineer with
expertise in maintenance, project execution,
inspection and commissioning of rotating

equipment in SAP-driven environments.
Skilled in technical evaluations,
procurement, vendor coordination, and

construction oversight across power plants,
and fertilizer plants. A results-driven
professional with strong analytical skills,
teamwork, and problem-solving abilities,
thriving in challenging industrial
environments.

Experience

FFBL Power Company Limited

Unit Manager — Projects (Sep 2022 -

Present)

-Leading project execution, planning, and
stakeholder coordination.

-Managing budgets,
timelines for key projects.

Unit Head — Maintenance (Jan 2022 - Aug

2022)

-Improved plant reliability and developed
mitigation plans for recurring failures.

-Conducted RCA, optimized maintenance
budgets, and ensured machinery reliability.

Inspection Unit (2017 — 2021)

-Led vibration diagnostics,
monitaring, and technical training.

-Managed QA/QC for boilers, piping, and
pressure vessels.

-Developed inspection dashboards and
optimized shutdown planning.

resources, and

condition

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (2014-

2016)

Project Unit:

Project-CPP

-Review and finalization of BOM/BOQ &
invitation to Bid (ITBs} packages for
Boilers,Steam turbine generators (STGs)
for vendor's proposal.

-Review and finalization of technical
proposals from all vendors.

- Coordination and follow-up with Supply
Chain for timely procurement of material /

services.

-Coordinated with package suppliers
{Chinese, Korean, European and Local) for
design finalization and interference checks
for mechanical and civil work.

-Manage timely completion of Mechanical
and Civil designing related to Boilers, STG
and BOP. Including piping, equipment,
structure, vessels, tanks, heat exchangers,
silos.

-Finalized Painting,
Valves

DM /Section Manager-

Insulation, Piping,

ENAR Petrotech Services Limited (2010-

2014)

Project Manager / Site Manager

-Led audits for BYCO Refinery, Attock
Refinery, and NRL for commissioning and
upgrades.

- Managed Work Optimization Project for
Penspen UK {(White Qil Pipeline) and
prepared bid documentation.

-Oversaw QA/QC and consultancy for
projects like EPRF-il, Sour Gas Plant
Dakhni, and Pirkoh Gas Plant.

-Ensured safety compliance, inspection
plans (QIPs), and quality assurance per
industry standards.

-Reviewed BOQs, technical specs, bid
evaluations, and coordinated  with
stakeholders for seamless execution.

Engro Vopak Terminal Limited {2008-
2010)

Project Engineer — Ethylene Storage &
Handling Facility ($35M Project)

-Managed pressure vessels, tanks, piping
engineering, procurement, and
construction with international EPC
consultants.

- Reviewed basic and detailed engineering,
QA/QC documents, and  material
specifications.

-Monitored project progress, conducted
weekly meetings with contractors (China &
Scotland), and ensured API-620
compliance.

- Presented monthly progress reports to the
CEOQ and  coordinated  technical
discussions with designers in China.

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (2005-
2008)

Project Engineer — Ammonia Plant
Revamp ($55M Project)

- Worked on structure analysis, piping stress
analysis, heat exchangers, waste heat
boilers, and pressure vessels design.

-Provided support during 2006 & 2007
major plant turnarounds (BMR Phase-! &
).

-Reviewed EPC contractor documents,

vendor prequalification, and bid
evaluations.
-Conducted pipeline stress apalysis

(Autopipe), vessel design (Codecal), and
structure analysis (STAAD Pro),
-Coordinated with vendors, contractors,
and consultants for procurement and
construction.

Trainings and external services:
- Vibrational Analysis
- Pressure Vessel Inspection
- Hydrostatic testing
- Entrepreneurship /Start-up
-at DHA Suffa
-More than 100 Machine
- Diagnostic Services to EPCL,
-KE and ENI
- Technical Adviser at Suffa
- University
- External Examiner & Project
- adviser at NED University
-Mentor at TCF



FEBL POWER COMPARY LIMITED

Dated: July 01, 2025
To,
The Registrar
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
NEPRA Tower, Attaturk Avenue (East)
Sector G-5/1, Islamabad

Subject: DOCUMENTS SUBMISSION IN RESPONSE TO NEPRA LETTER DATED JUNE
24,2025

This is with reference to the NEPRA letter dated June 24, 2025, concerning the deficiency of

certain documents in the application submitted by FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL) on
June 5, 2025, for the grant of Distribution License.

We hereby submit the requisite documents annexed as per following list:

Feasibility Study.
Affidavit for Grant of Licence under the NEPRA Act.

Authorized Statement regarding any prior licence application refusals.
System Studies.

Minimum Technical and Human Resource Requirement Compliance,
Affidavit confirming fulfillment of Eligibility Criteria Requirements,

"m0 a0 oW

We confirm that the enclosed documents are complete in all respect and accurate to the
best of our knowledge and belief.

Should NEPRA require any further clarification, supporting documentation, or submissions
in this regard, we remain fully available to provide the same on priority.

Authorized Representative
FFBL Power Company Limited

FFBL Tower, C1 - C2, Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase II, Islamabad, Pakistan
Tel No:- +92 51 876 3325, Fax No:- +92 51 876 3305, www.fpcl.com
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FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR ADDITION
OF BPC TO EXSISTING FPCL SYSTEM
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1. BACKGROUND

1.1. GENERALITIES
1.1.1 FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL}is an Unlisted Public Limited
Company incorporated under Section 32 of the Companies
Ordinance 1984 (XLV!! of 1984) on 27th day of June, 2014 having
Corporate Universal Identification No. 0088996. The Company is
formed for setting up a coal-fired cogeneration power plant to
1.1.1.9 Sell power to K-Electric (formally known as Karachi
Electric Supply Corporation) and/or Bulk Power
Consumers
1.1.1.2 Sell power to Fauji Fertilizer Company (FFC)to meetthe
requirements of the FFC fertilizer plant.
1.2. SPONSER
1.2.1 FPCL is a fully owned subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Company/ Fauji
group (FF). FFC is a public limited company incorporated in
Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
1.3. THEPROIJECT
1.3.1 The FPCL coal-based power plant is located within the Port Qasim
industrial Zone, Karachi. The facility consists of:

¢ Two CFB boilers, each rated at 250 MTPH
¢ Multiple steam turbine generators (STGs) supporting a
total licensed generation capacity of 118 MW

¢ Ahybrid operational model using 50 Hz and 60 Hz systems
for diverse consumer needs

The plant has historically supplied:

e 52 MWto K-Electric
e 20 MW {plus steam) to FFC(formerly FFBL)
¢ Remaining power to internal auxiliaries

1.3.2 FPCL now seeks to include new Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) in its
Generation Licence, namely:

¢ FonGreen Silicon Technologies Limited (FoST) — off taking
>01 MW

1.3.3 No capacity expansion is being proposed. The supplies to the BPC
will be met entirely through optimized reallocation of FPCL’s
existing 60 Hz generation facility.

2. LOCATION & SITE CONDITIONS '
2.1. LOCATION
2141 The Project Site is within the existing FPCL Plant site
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2.1.2

2.1.3

located in the Eastern Industrial Zone, Bin Qasim,
Karachi.

Given the following characteristics for site selection. The
site meets the essential criteria

2.1.2.1 Land availability within existing Ptant site.
2.1.2.2 Reliable Power and Steam availability.

2.1.2.3 Availability of water and other utilities in near
proximity.

2.1.2.4 Suitability for the construction of intake / outfall
structures.

2.1.2.5 Sea Port Vicinity for equipment and more
importantly for Rock Phosphate impont.

2.1.2.6 Availability of road infrastructure.

2.1.2.7 Low cost of site development and suitable
topographic / geological conditions.

2.1.2.8 Minimum socio-economic and environment
implications of the Project such as displacements,
availability of effluents disposal area etc.

The site co-ordinates are 67 © 25’ longitudes east, 24°50’
latitude north, about 45 km east / south east from
Karachi.
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2.2. TOPOGRAPHY AND SUBSOIL CONDITIONS

2.2.1

222

223

2.2.4

The site is located in an almost flat zone close to the existing
complex.

The Available soils test performed for structures in the
neighborhood show that the subsoil consists of very densefine to
medium coarse sand with some silt. The soil stratigraphy seems
homogeneous in this area and we can suppose that the soils
characteristics will be the same on the new plant location

Based on the existing soil tests, the allowable bearing pressure on
the soil can reach 2.00 to 3.00 kg/cm® depending of the
embedment depth.

The water table is very deep (more than 20.00 m). Due to the fact
that the area is flat, the earthworks volume will be reduced to a
levelling.

2.3. CLIMATIC & AMBIENT CONDITIONS
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Average 1005 mbar + 10 -
mbar
Maximum variation +10 mbarin hour -
speed
-20 mbarin hour -

Design conditions 43 °C with RH 45%
For outdoor Electrical & | 50 °C with RH 85%
Instruments
Average conditions 31 °C with RH 60%
(Yearly)
Minimum {winter) 1 °C with RH 100%

Maximum in 24 hours 207 mm

During 1 hour -

-for storm water sewer 50 mm/hour
-for waste water
40 mm/hour
treatment

3. PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY

3.1

3.2,

Existing Configuration

Total Steam Production: ~490 TPH from Boilers 1 & 2
STGs:

STG 1 (10 MW, 60 Hz): Running at ¢ MW

STG 2 & 3 (24 MW each, 60 Hz): Running at ~12.5 MW each
STG 4 (60 MW, 50 Hz): Running at 44 MW

Post Modification Configuration

« The plant will continue to operate with its existing coal-fired
boilers, with an optimized steam supply strategy.
« Steam allocation:
o STG 10 MW > Receiving 200 TPH (Running at 9 MW)
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3.3.

3.4.

o STG 24 MW (x2) » Receiving 68 TPH each (Running at 17.5
MW each, up from 12.5 MW) allocated for new BPC
o STG 60 MW > Receiving 164 TPH (Running at 44 MW)

Optimization Strategy

Rebalancing of existing load through improved STG output
Minor internal reconfiguration of switchgear and metering
No additional boiler or turbine installations

Use of frequency converters for BPCs operating on different
frequency requirements.

Procurement and Equipment Installation

The modification primarily focuses on reconfiguring turbine output
and upgrading power distribution infrastructure, rather than
acquiring new turbines.

Transformers and, frequency converters will be installed to
facilitate seamless power delivery to FoST.

Grid interconnection adjustments will be made to enable
dedicated power export to FoST from FPCL’s existing 60 Hz shared
facility with FFC.

4. FUEL AND EMISSIONS

4.1.
4.1.1

4.1.2

41.3

FUEL

The Project expects to utilize approximately 500,000 MT/annum
(for 310 days of operations} of coal (as per required
specifications). The Project boiler technology allows use of
different quality of coals including imported and indigenous coal.
However, at present, the coal is expected to be imported for the
project as the Company sees no issues with the availability of
quality coal as per required specifications in the international
market. Use of indigenous coal as when reliably available can be
used. Given the proximity of the Project to the por, the Project
expects to utilize either the existing facitities of the Karachi Port
Trust (KPT) or the upcoming Pakistan Bulk Terminal facilities for
coal receiving and handling.

In order to mitigate any fuel availability, risk the Projectincludes a
coal storage yard of 60,000MT storage, which is sufficient for 40
Days operation at 100 % plant load.

The basic characteristics of coal range which can be utilized by
the project are as under:
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Coal Characteristics
LHV 3000 ~ 3400 Kcal/kg
Moisture 30~50 %
Ash 3~12 %
Volatile matters 20~30 %
Sulphur 0.1~1.65%
4.2. EMISSION LIMITS
4.2.1 The whole installation will be in accordance to the World Bank

Guidelines (WBG) and Pakistan National Environmental Quality
Standards (NEQS). The project will be designed to remain within
the fo

500 mg/Nm?®
50 mg/Nm*
800 mg/Nm’®

5. TECHNICAL CHOICES

5.1. Frequency Converter Integration

5.1.1 Electrical Specifications
» Power Capacity: 10 MW (single or multiple units, each of
2 MW),

« Input Voltage: 13.8 kV, 60 Hz (single unit), 60 Hz.
+ Output Voltage: 3-phase, 5-wire {3P+N+E), 50 Hz.
+ [nput Frequency: 60 Hz.

e Output Frequency: 50 Hz.

+« Power Factor: Adjustable > 0.95.

« Efficiency: 2 98% at full load.

+ Voltage Regulation: £1% or better.

« Frequency Regulation: £0.1 Hz or better.

5.1.2 Converter Type
» Technology: Solid-state IGBT-based or IGCT-based
frequency converter.
« Topology: AC-DC-AC (Rectifier + Inverter) or Direct Matrix
Converter.
+ Cooling System: Air-cooled.

5.1.3 Protection Features
To ensure reliability, the frequency converter includes
advanced protection mechanisms:
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« Overvoltage and Undervoltage Protection.
» Overcurrent and Short-Circuit Protection.
« Thermal Overtoad and Surge Protection.

5.1.4 Control and Communication
« Control System: PLC/DCS integration with HM{ control
panel.
« Communication Protocols: Modbus, Profibus,
Ethernet/iP.

» Remote Monitoring: SCADA-ready and loT-enabled for
real-time diagnostics. '

5.1.5 Mechanical Specifications
s Cooling Method: Water-cooled (high efficiency) or Forced
air-cooled.

» Enclosure Protection: 1P54 {indoor) / IP65 (outdoor).
» Operational Temperature Range: -10°C to +45°C.,
¢ Humidity Resistance: < 95% non-condensing.

5.1.6 Compliance and Standards
« Compliance: IEC 61800, IEEE, CE, ISO 9001 certified.
« Harmonic Distortion: < 5% THD (IEEE 519 compliant).
¢ Electromagnetic Compatibility: IEC 61000 standards.

5.1.7 Additional Features
» Soft Start/Stop Functionality for smooth operation.
e Redundancy for Critical Components to enhance
reliability.
» Energy Efficiency Optimization for minimal power loss.
e Load Sharing Capability (Parallel Operation) to ensure
fiexibility.

6. EXPECTED POWER PRODUCTION

6.1. Power Production Efficiency and Reliability

¢ Steam Turbine Optimization: Running 24 MW STGs at 17.5 MW each
improves plant efficiency.

« Stable Power Distribution: Integration of a frequency converter and
transformers ensures seamless power conversion for the Data Center.

¢ Grid Stability: Adjusted load balancing and distribution strategy
prevents system overload or fluctuations.
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6.2. Conclusion

The proposed modification is a no-expansion, low-capex optimization plan
that leverages FPCL’s existing 60 Hz generation assets generation assets
to supply power to new BPC (FoST), ensuring:
¢ Noincrease in instatled capacity
e No adverse impact on existing off takers (KE or FFC)
e Full regulatory compliance under NEPRA’s Generation Licensing
framework

The modification is technically feasible, commercially sound, and aligned
with national goals for industrial growth and grid reliability.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER
REGULATORY AUTHORITY

f AFFIDAVIT

[, L1 Col Ali Siddig (Retd), Company Secretary, FPCL, being the duly authorized representative of TFBI.
Power Company Limited, hereby declare that FPCL was granted a Gencration License under the Act,

hearing License No. SGC/111/2015.

DEPONENTL

Authorized Representative
FIEBLE Power Company Lid
Drate June 30, 2023




STATEMENT OF PREVIOUS LICENSE APPLICATION REFUSALS UNDER
THE ACT

I, Lt Col Ali Siddiq (Retd), S/o Muhammad Siddiq, hoiding CNIC No. 35302-1977841-9, being the
duly authorized representative of FFBL Power Company Limited (FPCL), hereby declare that FPCL
has never been refused the grant of a license under the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and
Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997 (the “NEPRA Act”).

This statement is being submitted in compliance with the Regulation 3(h) of NEPRA Licensing
{Application, Modification, Extension And Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021, as part of
FPCL’s application for grant of the Distribution License.

FFBL Power Company Ltd.
Date June 30, 2025

FFBL Tower, C1 - C2, Sector B, Jinnah Boulevard, DHA Phase 11, Islamabad, Pakistan
Tel No:- +92 51 876 3325, Fax No:- +92 51 876 3305, www.fpcl.com




POWER SUPPLY STUDY
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Exacuiive Summary

[FonGreen Silican Technologies Ltd (FoST) intends te establish a technology zone with the
litle Foundation Renewable Technologies Zone (FRTZ) on N-5 Karachi Thatta road having an
arca of 202 Acres (approx.) as per Master Plan attached in Annexurc-A, which will consist of
following major facilitics load as per SLD attached in Annexure-A.

« Data Center _
¢ [V Manufacturing Facility
* Sclar Pancl Manulacturing Facility

FRTZis expected to reach ultimate load demand of 18.5MW in 2028, as per below power plan.

Power Requirement [MW) Instefled Copacity {(MW)
Ser | Timeline R K
= oc | iz | BHeM | cumuiative | Solar | Wind | Grid emarks
ntities
> .
Rar 2026 2.0 0.5 - 2.5 2.5 - 0 I—-gv' 11 KV line
IooiMar 2097 Al .3 2.0 10.5 =L RRSY
— R — L] T —— - s e —— ’___ ————— e eam J—
WTS meralled
- ,f'gddii'onal ]_1 K
50 |Mariooe| 0 |25 10.0 18.5 wo | 7s 1\ | Deys iemtien e
) idecition o os foker
in Mar 2027

Ir arder to meet the above load demand at an optimized rate FRTZ will purchase power from
FPCL at 11 kV through B2B modet and blend this encrgy with Solar and Wind cnergy to form
the Hybrid Energy Mix model. FPCL has committed to provide 8.5 MW power from its
13.8kV,58 MW (60 [1z]} Fertilizer plant at 11kV 50 Hz through two underground cable feeders
each 3.5 km having option of either 1C,500 sq.mm XLPE Aluminum (Al cable or 1C, 630
sq.mm XLPE Copper(Cu) cable alang with installation of frequency converters (60/50 Hz).

FPCL is also working on provision of additional 10~12 MW power supply to FRTZ by March
2028, at 11kV through its 60 MW (50 Hz) system via two underground cable {eeders each 3.5
km having option of either 1C,500 sq.mm XLPE Aluminum(Al) cable or 1, 630 sq.mm XLPE
Cepper {Cu) cable.

This report evaluates the feasibility of integrating a hybrid cnergy mix comprising power as
delined above using Sicmens PSSE software, the study spans March 2026 to March 2028 and
assesses load flow, short circuit levels and reactive power needs with the critical aim of
maintaining a power factor of 0.9 at 11kV FRTZ bus interconnection peoint

To have optimized utilization of power from various sources for the duration from March
2026 to March 2028, following contributions from each source has been considered:
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In abave table, for power import from FPCL 60 {7 system, following three sub-scenarios w.r.t
5TGs and GTGs are considered:

Normal case of 03 sources i.c. Steam Turbines (2x30 MVA + 1x12.5 MVA STGs)
Normal case of 04 Sourcesi.e. 03 §TGs & 1x 36 MVA Gas turbine (G1G)
Normal case with 05 Sources i.c. 03x STGs+ 02 GTGs

Key Findings

Load Flow

The Load flow simulations performed as per above power contribution table with cases for
FPCL STGs and GTGs. The simulations does not reveal any bottleneck issue of Voltage limit
violation or any overloading of Underground Cable or transformer w.r.t. NEPRA grid code.
However, in 2027 during non-availability time of Selar and Wind power the deficit of 2 MW
needs to be taken care by restricting/shedding the non-critical load or by making availability
of power through FPCL 50 Hz system or through some other source.

Loading of Underground Cables

Following two underground cable options are considered for provision of power supply from
FPCL to FRTZ:

Option-l:

11kV, 1C 500 sq.mm, XL.PE Al cable




Option-II:
11kV, 1€ 630 sq.mm XLP) Cu cable

¢ Under normal load flow conditions, the cable interconnections remain well within
capacity (<50%) for both options [ and IL.

s Under N-1 conditions, peak loading is observed at 100% {Option-1) and 66% (Option-
11), which still meets operational limits criteria.

If there are no further plans to increase facility demand above 18.5MW then 500mm? Al cable
is a viable option. However, we suggest opting for 630mm? Cu cables (Option-11) to ensure
long-term capacity and thermal margin.

Evolution of 11kV Feeder Loading for Option-|
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Figure 1: Loading with cable selection of 500mm? - Al
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Figure 2: Loading with cable sefection of 630mm?Z - Cu

Loading of 13.8/11kV, 8/10MVA Transformer

l.oading obscrved on 13.8/11kV, 8/10MVA Transformer under normal and N-1 contingency

is well within Transformer capability.

~
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Evolution of 13.8/11kV Transformer Loading for Option-|

m Max Loading lntact Condition

2027

m Max Leading N-1 Condition

Figure 3: Transformer loading with cable selection of 500mm? — Al




Evolution of 13.8/11LkV Transformer Loading for Option-il

Figure 4: Transformer loading with cable selection of 630mm? - (u

Reactive Power Requirement

e Tomaintain 0.9 PFat 18.5 MW peak demand, up to 20 MVARadditional compensation
is required. This additional requirement is based on the fact that there is limited

reactive power compensation available from PV & Wind. To compensate for reactive

power demand of facility and maintain a Voltage profile of 11kV, Z0MVAR Reactive
Power Compensation is necessary.
» VSC-based Frequency Converters are assumed to provide 5 MVAR support cach,

Evolution of Reactive Power Requirement
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Figure 5: Additional reactive power requirement




Short Circuit Level

= Short Circuit level on 601z side of the system is directly impacted by the number of
machines online. The short circuit level is not affected by power being cxported to
FRTY site via Frequency Converter.

» Shortcircuit levels at 501z side is impacted by load demand of the FRTZ facility and
Renewable Generation online. 11KV 5011z feeder connection to FPCL, will also impact

! the Short Circuit levels at FRTZ site,
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Figure 6: Three Phase & line to Ground MVA S lLevel at 13.8kV FIFBL for varying number of Sources at 6011z Side
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Figure 7: Three Phase & Line to Ground MVA SC Level at 13.8kY I'PCL for varying number of Sources at 6011z Side




Transient Stability Analysis

Transient stability analysis piays a vital role in asscssing the dynamic response of a power
system to disturbances. However, its impact in this study is limited being an interconnection
on 11 kV voltage level. Following constrainls lead to adopt the generic mode] with typical
values based on best industrial practices

s Absence of Detailed Dynamic Models
s No tuned dynamic models/parameters were provided for the Synchronaus
gencrators of FPCL 60Hz & 501z system, PV inverters and Wind turbines.
s Limited Technical Information on Static Frequency Converters
» Only basic specifications were available for the 10 MVA industrial back-lo-
back converter system.
e Dynamic responses such as frequency ride-through, control mode transitions,
and fault behavior are not defined, restricting accurate/precise modeling in
PSSE.
e Assumption of Ideal Converter Behavior
e The converters were modeled as VSC-based [IVDC with assumed reactive
compensation capabilities (5 MVAR).

The adoption of generic models and typical values against parameters replicate the plan€,
behavior that gives basic idea about the transient response/behavior. The dynamic
simulalions based on above criteria do not depict any contraint.




introduction

FonGreen Silicon Technologies Lid (FoST) intends to establish a technology zonc with the
title Foundation Renewable Technologies Zone (FRTZ) on N-5 Karachi Thatta road having an
arca of 202 Acres (approx.) as per Master Plan attached in Annexure-A, which wiil consist af
following major facilities load as per SLD attached in Annexure-A.

¢ Data Center
e [V Manufacturing Facility
s Solar Pancl Manufacturing Facility

FRT? is expected to reach ultimate load demand of 18.5MW in 2028, as per below power plan.
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in order to meet the above load demand at an optimized rate FRTZ will purchase power from
FPCL at 11 kV through B2B modcl and blend this energy with Solar and Wind energy to form
the Hybrid Energy Mix model. FPCL has committed to provide 85 MW power from its
13.8kV,58 MW(60 Hz) Fertilizer plant at 11kV 50 Hz through two underground cable feeders
cach 3.5 km having option of ecither 1/C,500 sq.mm XLPE Aluminum(Al} cable or 1/C,630
sq.mm XLPE Copper(Cu) cable aleng with installation of frequency converters (60/50 11z).

FPCL is also working on provision of additional 10~12 MW power supply to FRTZ by March
2028, at 11kV through its 60 MW (50 {1z} system via two underground cable feeders each 3.5
lem having option of cither 1/C,500 sq.mm XLPE Aluminum(Al) cable or 1/C,630 sq.mm XLPE
Copper{Cu) cable.

This report cvaluates the feasibility of integrating a hybrid energy mix comprising power as
defined above using Siemens PSSE software, the study spans March 2026 to March 2028 and
assesses load flow, short circuit levels and reactive power needs with the critical aim of
maintaining a power factor of 0.9 at 11kV FRTZ bus interconnection point.




System Configuration Overview

Power Sources
60Hz System

6011z Network consists of two major sites FI'BL & FPCL. FFBL consists of two 26 MW CGas
Turbines along with ZMW DG set. Whereas FPCL consists of two 24MW Steam Turbines and
onc 10MW Steam Turbine. The FRTZ Site will be connected to the exisling 6011z network
through 2x10MVA Frequency Converters (60/50 Hz) with underground cable

50Hz System

5011z Network consists of 60 MW Steam Turbine which is connected to the KE System
through 132/11kV Step-up Transformer as shown in figurc 8.

~ ALSTOM

[ manuracTLRER ALSTOM ENERJEND A3 34 3 33BZE < ASAEL . TURRIYE ]
[TreE oF TRANSFORMER POWER | | NUMBER OF PrASES 3| INSULATICH LEVELS
[ seraLnc Pat0101 | [FrEGuENCY 50 He WHDNG i HY-N w
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AC (V) 75 275 50
[FROCSTANCARD IEC800TS | | SERVICE CONTINUCUS TR YR = YT
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DHAF 50000 32000 ) 3043 T g 188

Figure 8: Technical Specification of 132/11kV Step-up Transformer for 5011z 75MVA Generating Unit

FRTZ site will be equipped with hybrid rencwable generation, which includes 2x5MW PV
Plants and 2x7.5MW Wind Turbines. Available technical parameters of PV inverter are
shown in Figure-9
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Figure 9: Technical Specification of PV Inverter

Technical Specification of WTG are shown in Figure-10 whercas technical specification

related to WTG Step-up. Transformer are shown in Figure-11.

= Goldwind -

Edition:8 No.. GW-24CP.0029
Parameters Value | Unit
Rated Frequency 50760 Hz
Rated Voltage
1140 \
{phase lo phase}
Rated Active Power (Pn) 5.3 8.2 7.2 7.5 Mw
Rated Apparent Power -
5.57 6.52 7.57 7.89 MVA
{0.95 power factor} )
-0.95(ind) ~ -0.95(ind) ~ -0.95(ind} ~ --0.95(ind) ~
Default o
Power Faclor +0.95 (cap) +0.95 {cap) +0.95 {cap) +0,95 (cap)
Range: ] -0.9(ind) ~ -0.9(ind) ~ -0.9(Ind) ~ ‘
QOptional : - !
I +0.9 (cap) +0.9 (cap) +0.9 (cap)

-

Short-circuil Current

(Maximum)

Pri(1.732xUn=0,9%Power Factar)

Figure 10: Technical Specification of 7.5MW WTC '




] Parameters T T T e ' i

irType of transformer liquig-imimersed iransiormer N

| WTG rated power (MW) 385 | 40 |45 (455 50 (52753 56 . 80 |62]625 648, 67 .75, 72 15,

!F‘,a,fﬁf;ap“""d"”"mm” a.osi 42 s8 | 53 sg ss i §3 ) 66 . 6B y | 78 80!

: ! i | : ; ! ! : : i

T No ‘oad loss (kW) 34 | 35| 385 Jais| a3 (a5 |ar2| <8 |50 [sa] s7  !s9z]

| Load luss (kW) 3.4 | 34 3 [429| a7 4521464 | 505 |517;589 62 648

i Rated fraguency 80 or 60 Hz :

?ated voltage al MY side 10KV or 22kV or 33kV or 35kV or athers ij
Rated vollage at LV side 1140V J

1 MumBer of phases ) Jiphase A. B and C) ‘

|‘ Range of lap changar F2X2.5%

tTap changer type off-cir¢uit tap changer

| Positive sequence impedance 7.5% (=10%} T % (2 10%)

! ecior group Dynt1 i

;mr paint of LY side of the grounded '

. equipment ;

‘ No-l0ad current E <0.5%

Figure 11: Technical Specification of 7.5MW WTG Step-up Transformer

Transmission Netweork

[t Phase-1, FRTYZ site will be connected to FPCL 60 Hz system through two 11kV underground
cable feeders each having length of 3.5km after frequency conversion (60/50 Hz). Simiiarly,
in Phase-1I of the project FRTZ site will be connected FPCL 50 Hz system at 11 kV through
two underground cable feeders each having length of 3.5km.

Load Demand
The total load demand of cxisting 60Hz network is 32.79MW. Out of this ~19.6MW is the
demand of FFBL and remaining 13.3MW is the demand of FP’Ci..

The load demand of FRTY Site is expected to increase from 2.5MW to 18.5 MW from 2026 to
2028 as per power plan.

Methaodology

Since there is no existing software model of the entire facility. The existing 6011z System and
future planned 50z system shall be modeilled in PSSE Software.

The 6011 System shall be connected to S0Hz System through an asynchronous link. The
project is cxpected to cvolve in phases. The study scenarios to be considered can be found in
Table-1.
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In above table, lor power import from FPCL 60 Hz system, following three sub-scenarios wert
STGs and GTGs arc considered:

Normal case of 03 sources i.c, Steam Turbines (2x30 MVA + 1x12.5 MVA 5TGs)
Normal case of 04 Sources i.c. 03 STGs & 1x 36 MVA Gas turbine (GTG)
Worsce case with 05 Sources i.e. 03x STGs+ 02 GTGs

The assessment for all the scenarios shall be done considering the analysis as discussed in
the seclions below.

Lond Faow analyss

Yor cach scenario as per Table-1 along with three sub scenartos of power import from FPCL
60 11z system, Load Flow Analysis should be conducted to ensure power balance,
acceptable voltage levels, and Power Factor compliance at FRT.

Following two options of 11kV interconnection feeders are considered

¢ Option-1-1/C500mm?2 Al Cable
» Option-lI - 1/C630mm?2 Cu Cable

Load Flow analysis shall be performed considering both options to identify which cable
option will be best under normal andN-1 contingency conditions. ‘

Reactive Power Compensation Study
'RTZ site is required to maintain a Power Factor of 0.9 at the point of interconnection.
Reactive Power Compcensation assessment shall be performed considering grid voltages of ;

+ 959
¢« 100%
« 105%

To identify the additional reactive power compensation needed to maintain the desired
Power Factor.

Short Circuit Analysis

For each scenario as per Table-1 along with three sub scenarios of power import from FPCL
60 iz system,3-phasc and 1-phase fault simulations at FRTZ 11 kV bus shall be performed to
cvaluate required breaker duty as well if enough Short Circuit level is available to achiceve
reasonable performance from Back-to-back Frequency Converter and Renewable Power
Plants.

3-phase and 1-phase fault simulations were also performed at 13.8 kV FPCL and FFBE, bus at
60 1l to sce the impact (if any) after interconnectien to FRTZ.




Transient Stabilitv Analysis

Evaluation of Transient Stability requires dynamic modelling of main assets like Generating
units, Back-to-back Frequency Converters, PV and Wind Power Plants. In the ahsence of
actual tuncd models, the real response of the system cannot be predicted. It is worthwhile to
mention here that no dynamic tuned models have been provided. Assuming generic models
with typical valucs for dynamic testing depicts no constraint.

Study Assumptions

+ Power Factor for load demand at various sites is assumed as 0.9

* Frequency conversion and voltage matching via Back-to-back converters assumed
ideal. Since the available dctails of Frequency converter were limited, it has been
modclled as VSC based Back-to-back HVDC.

* Solar and wind capacities deployed as per Table-1

* Reactive Power Capability of PV and Wind Plants is assumed to be 0.95 of Pg in both
l.eading/lagging

System Modelling in PSSE

Generator Modelling
60 Hz system

There are five conventional generators available in the 6011z System. The details of these
generations are given in Table-2.

Generator | Connection . -{ Max. Generation ;- 55"R'éé_ijct:ivpif?oivg'r
Site Limit . . - Capability

Gri FFBL 26.3MW +1595MVAR ]
Grz _{FEBL [ 263MW _ ! £1595MVAR
STG (CEU FPCL 24AMW -9.36/+18BMVAR
1011)

STG (CEU FPCL 24MW -9.36/+18MVAR

2011) _

STG (CED ) FPCL 10MW -4.35/+7.65MVAR

3011) |

Table 2: Overview of Generating Units in 601z System




50 Hz system

There is a single generator available in the 50Hz System. The details are given in Table-3.

[ Generator | Connection Site | Max. Generation Limit | Reactive Power Capability
6 FPCL 60MW + ARIIMVAR

Table 3: Overview ofGenerating Units in 5011z System

{
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|
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The only document related to Frequency converter attached in Annexure-B revealed the
lollowing insights:

* Freguency converter appears Lo be Industrial Static Converter.
» I[thas a capacity of 10MVA and is composed of 4x2.5MVA units

The presence of multiple 2.5 MVA “Inverters” suggests a modular voltage source inverter
configuration. Industrial frequency converters for applications like 50/60 Hz transformation,
variable-speed drives, or isolated grid supplies almost always use VSC due to:

» Bidircctional power control
» Independentactive/reactive power control
* Ability to operate in weal or no-grid conditions

Bascd on consultant assessment, it is decided to mode! Frequency Converter as Back-to-Back

VSC Based HVDC. VSU based devices are usually equipped with Reactive Power Compensalion

therefore reactive compensation of #5MVAR is assumed for the VSC based connection.:
Parameters assumed for VSC Based HVDC medel are shown in Figure-12.
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Figure 12: Parameters considered for VSC based HVDC model!

Transformer Modelling

I'requency converter performs conversion operation at 13.8KV whereas FRTZ site operates
at 11kV. Therefore, 13.8/11kV Transformation is required. Parameters considered for

Transformer Model are shown in Figure-13,
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Figure 12: Parameters considered for VSC based HVDC model

Transformer Modelling

Frequency converter performs conversion operation at 13.8kV whereas FRTZ site operates
at 11kV. Therefore, 13.8/11kV Transformation is required. Parameters considered for
Transformer Model are shown in Figure-13.
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Figure 13: Parameters considered for 13.8/11kV, 8/10MVA Transformer

Cable Modelling

Frequency converter will be connected at FPCL site followed by two 3.5km long cables.
Similarly, in future FRTZ site will be connected through two 11kV, 3.5km long cables from
FPCL 50 Hz system. As mentioned in the report, two options for cable size will be evaluated .




The cable parameters considered for the study are shown in Figure 14 & Figure 15. Please
note that all the parameter values are in per km.

~ Calculated impedance

Layout Fat

R X L 2 xR c Y
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I3
Base 30 ~iC Mn 7% C Mx 90 <T
| S ——

Figure 14: Parameters considered for 11kV Cable (Option-I: 1/C 500mm2 (578.6 Amps] - Al)
Wlm b a4 s e s R . o e aes e e e

Layout Fiat

: R X L z xR c Y
e Pog 003345 018954 00000033 019341 493 . - OSUIO4° 160549

el zem 018640 174766 0005563 175758 0371 . Q5104 . 160549

Bse® ~vig Mo B T Max 90 C
ﬂ L =

H
H

Figure 15: Parameters considered for 11kV Cable (Option-I: 1/C 630mm2 (813.4 Amps) - Cu}

Aggregated PV Plant Model

The PV plant is developed as aggregated PV plant as per WECC recommendations for PV Plant
modelling. Aggregated PV Plant along with model parameters for PV inverter and Inverter
Transformer are shown in Figure 16 to Figure 18. The model is prepared based on the data
provided by FoST attached in Annexure-A. Where missing generic data has been assumed.

11203 11213
PV1-PPAEY PVE-PP-LV
27 27 @ - - 27 28
s ¥ o 0.6 o 1
- %3 L&
110 1 6]

Figure 16: Aggregated PV Model Based on WECC Recommendation




Two Winding Transformer Data Record

- L"B Dtﬂ v 8 e ¢ e ot
. From Bus Number 11203

To Bus Number 11213
i Branch ID

- /0 Data

From Bus Name  PVIPP-MV 11.000
To Bus Name PVI-PPLV 0.8000

Tranaformer Name -
Vector Group

{ i
Mo

8 In Service
& Metesed on From end
8 Winding 1 on From end ’ .

! Winding L0 Code impedance L0 Code Admitance 1/O Code L
{1 Tumeratio puonbusbasekV) v '2-ZpuwidngkVwindngMVA) v [1-Ypuiystembase) -~ .
i " | Windng 1 Ratio Winding T Norinal Ratings (MVA} |
. Spechied Ripu) Speced X} | ) KV -]
. 0000000 '0.100000 1.0100 11.0000 ; RATET
. Windng 2Ratio Winding 2 Nowing 60
 MagnetizngGu)  MagretzngBeu) | ) kv RATE2
000000 : 10000 0.5000 60 :

RATE3

. 0.00000

impedance Table
0

| Rtable comected
)

ou)

Xtable corected

| Windng (12
'} Angle {degrees)

000

00
RATE4
00

- Control Data
Controlled Bus
Number

Dcu'i!ﬂed&ﬂ
On Winding Side
Tap Posiions

i

Rimax fpu)

Vmax fpu)

1.10000

Figure 17: Parameters considered for PV Inverter Transformer




Machine Data Record x
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